
 

1 of 4 
 

 
NOTICE OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS, WILL MEET IN REGULAR SESSION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS FOLLOWS: 

 
DATE:   Tuesday, July 21, 2015 

 
TIME:   7:00 p.m.  

 
PLACE:  Rosenberg City Hall 

City Hall Council Chamber 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas  77471 
 

PURPOSE:  Regular City Council Meeting, agenda as follows: 
 

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss 
any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. 
 
Call to order:  City Hall Council Chamber 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. (Reverend Jose Linares, Lion of Judah, Rosenberg) 
 
Presentation of Award to the City of Rosenberg by the Texas Department of Insurance and the Texas State Fire Marshal’s 
Office for Achieving a Public Protection Classification Rating of ISO Class 2. (Wade Goates, Fire Chief) 
 
Presentation of Willie D. McQueen, Jr., Employee of the Quarter Award. (Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor) 
 
Presentation of Certificates of Achievement to 2015 Pitch, Hit and Run Skills Competition Winners.  (Lydia Acosta, 
Recreation Programs Coordinator) 
 
Presentation of Certificates of Appreciation to 2015 Pitch, Hit and Run Skills Competition Volunteers. (Lydia Acosta, 
Recreation Programs Coordinator) 
 
Presentation of Certificate of Recognition to Rosenberg Xtreme Girls Softball Team for Finishing 2nd Place in the Texas 
State Championship (Girls 14U Division). (Lydia Acosta, Recreation Programs Coordinator) 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each 
speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted 
from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves 
by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda will be 
received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by the 
City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to 
have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Review of Consent Agenda. 
All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be enacted by one 
(1) motion.  There will be no separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City Council Member has 
requested that the item be discussed, in which case the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered in its normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 
 

 A. Consideration of and action on Special Meeting Minutes for June 30, 2015, and Regular Meeting Minutes 
for July 07, 2015. (Linda Cernosek, City Secretary)  
 



 

2 of 4 
 

 B. Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-21, an Ordinance amending the Code of 
Ordinances by adding a portion of Ward Street to Section 28-116 of Article III of Division 2 of Chapter 28 
thereof, as a portion of a street within the City upon which it is unlawful to park a vehicle; and repealing 
Ordinance No. 2013-11 in its entirety; providing for the installation of “No Parking” signs indicating the 
boundaries of the no parking zone along Ward Street; providing a penalty in an amount of not less than 
$1.00 nor more than $200.00 for each violation of any provision hereof; providing for a cumulative and 
conflicts clause; providing for severability; and providing for an effective date. (John Maresh, Assistant 
City Manager of Public Services) 
 

 C. Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-22, an Ordinance providing for the extension of 
the City Limits of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, by voluntary annexation of 3.483 acres of land in the 
Eugene Wheat Survey, A-396, Fort Bend County, Texas; granting to said tract of land and to all current 
and future inhabitants of said tract of land the rights and privileges of other citizens and binding said 
current and future inhabitants by all of the acts, ordinances, regulations and resolutions of said city, now 
in effect and to be hereafter adopted; adjusting the boundaries of Council District No. 4 to include the 
tract annexed hereby; providing a severability clause; providing for an effective date; providing for a 
savings clause and repealing conflicting ordinances or resolutions.  (Travis Tanner, Executive Director of 
Community Development) 
 

 D. Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-23, an Ordinance providing for the disannexation 
from the corporate boundaries of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, of 8.709 acres of land in the Wiley Martin 
League, A-56, Fort Bend County, Texas, pursuant to the petition for disannexation; adjusting the 
boundaries of Council District No. 4 to exclude the tract disannexed hereby; containing certain findings; 
providing for non-severability; and establishing an effective date.  (Travis Tanner, Executive Director of 
Community Development) 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

2.  Review and discuss a presentation regarding a proposed Eagle Scout Project by Matthew Banse of 
Troop 1656 to build an Edible Arbor Trail in Brazos Park, and take action as necessary. (Darren McCarthy, 
Parks and Recreation Director) 
 

3.  Consideration of and action on appointments to the following Boards, Committees, and Commissions 
(Linda Cernosek, City Secretary): 

a) Planning Commission; 
b) Animal Control Shelter Advisory Board; 
c) Building and Standards Board; 
d) Image Committee; and, 
e) Parks and Recreation Board. 

 
4.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2003, a Resolution designating a Director to the West 

Fort Bend Management District Board of Directors for a four-year term beginning June 01, 2015, and 
ending June 01, 2019. (Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor) 
 

5.  Review and discuss presentation regarding the City’s FY2016 Budget/Rosenberg Development 
Corporation’s FY2016 Budget, and take action as necessary. (Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of 
Administrative Services) 
 

6.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2005, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Contract for Engineering Services for Phase II -  Sanitary Sewer 
Pipebursting Project, for engineering and surveying services for the Sanitary Sewer Pipebursting Project, 
by and between the City and Kelly R. Kaluza and Associates, Inc., in the amount of $446,500.00. (John 
Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

7.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2006, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Proposal for Engineering and Surveying Services for Lift Station 
No. 2 Replacement, by and between the City and Jones and Carter, Inc., in the amount of $290,000.00. 
(John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

8.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2007, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute, 
for and on behalf of the City, a Cooperation Agreement, by and between the City and Fort Bend 
County regarding Urban County Qualification for cooperative participation in the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), HOME Investment 
Partnership, and/or Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) programs. (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager 
of Public Services) 
 



 

3 of 4 
 

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

9.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2008, a Resolution determining a public purpose and 
authorizing funding in an amount not to exceed $3,500 for survey costs related to a proposed 
disannexation petition by the residents of the Spacek Tracts; and, authorizing the City Manager to 
negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, necessary documents and/or agreements to 
facilitate same.  (Scott Tschirhart, City Attorney) 
 

10.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2004, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute, 
for and on behalf of the City, an Interlocal Agreement for Fire Code and Investigations by and between 
the City and Fort Bend County, for Fire Code and investigations for Fort Bend County owned or leased 
buildings located within the City Limits of Rosenberg. (Wade Goates, Fire Chief) 
 

11.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2009, a Resolution authorizing the Assignment of the 
Development Agreement by and between the City and 16 Rose, Ltd., regarding the Reading Road 
Office Park, a subdivision of 8.928 acres, to Richwest Investors, LLC; and authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, First Amendment to said Agreement.  (Travis Tanner, Executive 
Director of Community Development) 
 

12.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2010, a Resolution authorizing amendments to the 
Employee Benefits Trust Declaration of Trust, a Trust created for the purpose of providing City officers, 
employees, and qualified retirees and their dependents, with life, dental, disability, sickness, accident, 
and other health benefits, either directly or through the purchase of insurance, and to perform 
operations in furtherance thereof. (Lisa Olmeda, Human Resources Director/Burke Sunday, Gallagher 
Benefits Services, Inc.) 
 

13.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2011, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, an Administrative Services Agreement, by and between the City 
and the Rosenberg Employee Benefits Trust, for the provision of certain administrative services for a term 
of one (1) year. (Lisa Olmeda, Human Resources Director/Burke Sunday, Gallagher Benefits Services, 
Inc.) 
 

14.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2012, a Resolution authorizing funding for a Contract 
with BlueCross BlueShield of Texas, for healthcare benefits for City employees, qualified retirees, and 
their dependents; and, for life insurance for City employees for one (1) year; and, authorizing the 
Rosenberg Employee Benefits Trust to negotiate and execute a Contract for same. (Lisa Olmeda, 
Human Resources Director/Burke Sunday, Gallagher Benefits Services, Inc.) 
 

15.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2013, a Resolution authorizing funding for a Contract 
with Assurant Employee Benefits for dental care benefits for City employees, qualified retirees, and their 
dependents; and, authorizing the Rosenberg Employee Benefits Trust to negotiate and execute a 
Contract for same. (Lisa Olmeda, Human Resources Director/Burke Sunday, Gallagher Benefits Services, 
Inc.) 
 

16.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2014, a Resolution approving employee and retiree 
premium contribution rates to the City’s health insurance plan. (Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of 
Administrative Services) 
 

17.  Hold Executive Session to deliberate the potential purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property 
pursuant to Section 551.072 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

18.  Adjourn Executive Session, reconvene into Regular Session, and take action as necessary as a result of 
Executive Session. 
 

19.  Announcements. 
 

20.  Adjournment. 
 



 

4 of 4 
 

 
 

DATED AND POSTED this the ___________ day of ____________________ 2015, at _______________m.,  
 
 
by ____________________________________. 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Attest:       

     Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  
 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved for Posting:   
Robert Gracia, City Manager 

  
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved:   
Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor 

 
Reasonable accommodation for the disabled attending this meeting will be available; persons with disabilities in need of special 
assistance at the meeting should contact the City Secretary at (832) 595-3340.   

 
Executive Sessions: The City Council may retire to executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, any 
time between the meeting’s opening and adjournment for the purposes of: 

 consultation with legal counsel (Section 551.071); 
 deliberation regarding real property (Section 551.072); 
 deliberation regarding economic development negotiations (Section 551.087) 
 deliberation regarding the deployment or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or 

devices (Section 551.076) 
 
Attendance by other elected or appointed officials: It is anticipated that members of other city boards, commissions or 
committees whose meetings may be governed by the Texas Open Meetings Act may attend this meeting in numbers that 
may constitute a quorum of the other city boards, commissions or committees.  Notice is hereby given that the meeting, 
to the extent required by law, is also noticed as a possible quorum/meeting of the other boards, commissions or 
committees of the City, whose members may be in attendance.  The members may speak as recognized by the presiding 
officer, but no action may be taken by any board, commission or committee unless such item is specifically provided for 
on an agenda designated for that board, commission or committee and posted in compliance with the Texas Open 
Meetings Act. 
 
This Agenda has been reviewed and approved by the City’s legal counsel and the presence of any subject in any 
Executive Session portion of the agenda constitutes a written interpretation of Texas Government Code Chapter 551 by 
legal counsel for the governmental body and constitutes an opinion by the attorney that the items discussed therein may 
be legally discussed in the closed portion of the meeting considering the available opinions of a court of record and 
opinions of the Texas Attorney General known to the attorney.  This provision has been added to this agenda with the intent 
to meet all elements necessary to satisfy Texas Government Code Chapter 551.144(c) and the meeting is conducted by 
all participants in reliance on this opinion. 



 
 
 
 
 

Presentation of Award to the City of 
Rosenberg by the Texas Department of 

Insurance and the Texas State Fire Marshal’s 
Office for Achieving a Public Protection 

Classification Rating of ISO Class 2.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Presentation of the Willie D. McQueen, Jr., 
Employee of the Quarter Award



 
 
 
 
 

Presentation of Certificates of Achievement 
to 2015 Pitch, Hit & Run Skills Competition 

Winners. 



2015 Pitch, Hit & Run Awards: 
 
 

Boys 7-8 Year-Olds: 
  All-Around Champion   Tate Cloud 
  Pitching Champion  Tate Cloud 
  Hitting Champion   Tate Cloud 
  Running Champion   Tate Cloud 

 
 

Boys 9-10 Year-Olds: 
  All-Around Champion   Carson Mixon 
  Pitching Champion  Carson Mixon 
  Hitting Champion   Brian Luna 
  Running Champion   Bradley Wright 

 

 
Boys 11-12 Year-Olds: 

All-Around Champion   Felix Medina 
Pitching Champion        Felix Medina 
Hitting Champion   Chase Cloud 
Running Champion   Judson Mixon 

 



























 
 
 
 
 

Presentation of Certificates of Appreciation 
to 2015 Pitch, Hit & Run Skills Competition 

 Volunteers. 







 
 
 
 
 

Presentation of Certificate of Recognition to 
Rosenberg “Xtreme” Girls Softball Team for 

Finishing 2nd Place in the Texas State 
Championship (Girls 14U Division).





General Comments from the Audience: 
 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments 
of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each speaker 
is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas 
Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted from 
discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  
It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by 
providing their name and residential address when making 
comments. 



Comments from the Audience for 
Consent and Regular Agenda Items: 

 
 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to 
matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda will be 
received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is 
limited to three (3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by the 
City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda 
item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to have all 
speakers identify themselves by providing their name and 
residential address when making comments. 



ITEM 1 
 

Review of Consent Agenda. 
 

All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the 
City Council and may be enacted by one (1) motion.  There will be no 
separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City Council 
Member has requested that the item be discussed, in which case the 
item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its 
normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 



ITEM A 
 

Minutes: 
 

1. Special City Council Meeting Minutes – June 30, 2015 
2. Regular City Council Meeting Minutes – July 07, 2015 
 



Page 1 of 4 * Special Workshop City Council Meeting * June 30, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

 
CITY OF ROSEBERG 

SPECIAL WORKSHOP COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
***DRAFT*** 

 
On this the 30th day of June, 2015, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, 
met in a Special Workshop Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 4th 
Street, Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
PRESENT 
Cynthia McConathy  Mayor 
William Benton   Councilor at Large, Position 1 
Amanda Barta  Councilor at Large, Position 2 
Jimmie J. Pena  Councilor, District 1  
Susan Euton   Councilor, District 2 
Lisa Wallingford   Councilor, District 3 
Lynn Moses   Councilor, District 4 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Robert Gracia   City Manager 
Linda Cernosek  City Secretary 
John Maresh    Assistant City Manager of Public Services 
Jeff Trinker   Executive Director of Support Services 
Joyce Vasut   Executive Director of Administrative Services 
Travis Tanner   Executive Director of Community Development 
Tonya Palmer   Building Official 
Lisa Olmeda   Human Resources Director 
Ashley Scaggs   Administrative Assistant 
Dallis Warren   Police Chief 
Wade Goates   Fire Chief 
Angela Fritz   Executive Director of Information Services 
Darren McCarthy  Parks and Recreation Director 
Randall Malik   Economic Development Director 
James Lewis   Information Services Manager 
Luis Garza   Accounting Supervisor 
Daniel Kelleher  Main Street Manager 
Kaye Supak   Executive Assistant 
Paul Jones   GIS System Administrator  
Angelia Hayes   Court Administrator 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of 
this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the 
Texas Government Code. 
 
CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor McConathy called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE CLASSIFICATION AND TOTAL COMPENSATION STUDY AND ANALYSIS AS 
PRESENTED BY GALLAGHER BENEFITS SERVICES, INC., AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT 
STAFF.  
Executive Summary: On November 25, 2014, the City Council approved the Classification and 
Total Compensation Study and Analysis (Project) with Gallagher Benefits Services, Inc. The 
Project consisted of: Study Initiation and Compensation Philosophy, Classification Study, Job 
Evaluation, Compensation Study, and Final Report.   



Page 2 of 4 * Special Workshop City Council Meeting * June 30, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

 
On January 22, 2015, a strategy meeting with the department heads and management staff 
was conducted and Project orientation meetings were held with City employees.  
Occupational Panel Meetings were held in March 2015 with department employees to provide 
details relating to duties, responsibilities and career development. 
 
All employees completed a Position Description Questionnaire (PDQ) that detailed their specific 
position, any related supervisory responsibilities, essential duties, knowledge/skills, education, 
experience, special requirements, machines, tools, and equipment, decision-making and 
judgments, physical factors, and working conditions.  
 
From the PDQs, Gallagher Benefits Services, Inc., created Classification Structures, Class 
Specifications, Class Allocation, Decision Band Method (DBM) Ratings, Pay Structures, and 
Implementation Options.  
 
Lori Messer with Gallagher Benefits Services, Inc., will present the draft of Final Report at the 
Workshop Meeting and will be available to answer any questions that City Council may have. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of Administrative Services, read the 
Executive Summary. Lori Messer, Senior Consultant for Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc., gave a 
presentation regarding the Classification and Total Compensation Study and Analysis, and 
presented a draft of the final report.  
 

• Benefits were not included in the scope of the study; however, the City of Rosenberg’s 
benefits are in line with other Houston-area cities. 

• From an aggregate perspective, current range midpoints of all non-sworn jobs 
combined are slightly misaligned compared to the 50th percentile of actual salaries in 
the market, lagging the market by 12.4%. 

• From an aggregate perspective, current range midpoints of all sworn jobs combined 
are competitive compared to the 50th percentile of range maximums in the market, 
lagging the market by 7.3%. 

• Three implementation options were presented, although the plan could be 
implemented in any number of ways. 

• The general consensus was to have the Finance Committee discuss the report before 
further presenting any recommendations for action to City Council. 

• When the compensation study was requested, there was capacity held for it in the 
budget in anticipation of its outcome, therefore, Finance will be including many of the 
recommendations of the study when preparing the final budget. 
 

2.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS A PRESENTATION REGARDING THE ACCOUNTING AND BUDGETING 
CHANGES FOR THE TECHNOLOGY FUND AND TECHNOLOGY OPERATIONS, AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: In order to improve the presentation and understanding of the budgeting 
and accounting for technology operations, maintenance and replacement, City staff is 
proposing to change the fund and account structure regarding technology.  Currently, the 
majority of technology related expenses are budgeted and recorded in the Technology Fund 
(Fund No. 603) with a few miscellaneous items funded throughout the other departments.   
 
The preliminary FY2016 Budget for technology, based on the current fund and account 
structure, is included in the agenda packet.  The highlighted operational costs are proposed to 
be moved to the General Fund, as the Technology Department.  Those line items not 
highlighted will remain in the Technology Fund for tracking of the maintenance and 
replacement of computer software, hardware and other technology related equipment.   
 
Currently there are transfers from the General Fund, Water/Wastewater Fund and Civic Center 
Fund, which provide all the funding/revenues for the Technology Fund.  The large transfer from 
the General Fund will no longer be necessary since the technology operational costs will be 
moved to the General Fund and the Water/Wastewater Fund will contribute its portion through 



Page 3 of 4 * Special Workshop City Council Meeting * June 30, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

the administrative transfer to the General Fund which already exists.  Additionally, the 
maintenance and replacement costs which will remain in the Technology Fund will be 
budgeted in each individual department based on their individual calculated proration of the 
Technology Fund expense.  Therefore, each department will have an Information Services Fees 
line item, similar to the Fleet Replacement line item, and there will no longer be a large lump 
sum transfer from the General Fund to the Technology Fund.  The schedules capturing the 
proration allocation are also included as supporting documentation for your review. 
 
These changes will better reflect the actual expenses of each department and remove a large 
lump sum transfer that did not include the proper detailed accounting for technology services.  
Additionally, the line item account names and numbers in the Technology Fund will change to 
more accurately describe the related expenses.  The dollar amounts presented are preliminary 
and are being used for presentation purposes only and will change prior to the release of the 
Proposed FY2016 Budget document. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Joyce Vasut read the Executive Summary and clarified that we are not 
increasing the technology budget, only reclassifying accounts with the goal of having the 
technology fund look more like a technology report. James Lewis, Information Services 
Manager, presented the proposed changes to the accounting structure in order to more 
accurately reflect the breakdown by department. Joyce explained that the desired outcomes 
are to create a technology department within the general fund, with greater transparency in 
contributions by department, and better allocation of costs to the respective departments 
which should be incurring the costs. 
 

3.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS FY2016 BUDGET PRIORITIES, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT 
STAFF. 
Executive Summary: On June 23, 2015, City Council discussed the listing of fifty-three (53) 
budget requests as prioritized by staff.  A draft minute excerpt from this meeting was not yet 
available to include with this item. City Council requested more time to review the items and 
submit their prioritized rankings of the twenty-five (25) items from the list that they felt were the 
highest priority.  City Council will submit their list to City staff prior to the meeting.  
 
A list of the twenty-five highest ranked items as prioritized by City Council will be presented at 
the meeting for consideration by City Council.  On July 07, 2015, the list will be presented as a 
Resolution for City Council consideration and if approved, City staff will incorporate the highest 
ranked items in the FY2016 Proposed Budget. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Joyce Vasut read the Executive Summary and presented the updated 
priority list for FY2016 budget requests. She explained that it makes things easier when the 
proposed budget is more closely aligned to the adopted budget, so we would like to reflect 
what Council prefers to begin with. Some Council Members expressed their desire to ensure 
that technology investments will be utilized for many years to come. Councilor Benton 
requested to see the formula that the finance department used in re-ordering Council’s 
priorities of the budget requests, which Ms. Vasut agreed to accommodate at a later date of 
his convenience. 
 

4.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS REPUBLIC SERVICES PROPOSED SOLID WASTE AND CURBSIDE RECYCLING 
RATES FOR FY2016, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: Beginning in the third year of the Contract with Republic Services, and 
each subsequent year thereafter, the Contract states that the rates for solid waste/recycling 
services “shall be adjusted upward or downward to reflect changes in the cost of operations” 
per Section 10.02: Modification to Rates.  This rate change calculation is based on the 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers as well as changes in 
fuel costs.  Republic Services initially submitted a service rate increase of 1.8%.  However, staff 
review of the CPI calculations confirmed an error in Republic’s calculations. 
 
Due to the large percent change in the price of fuel from April of 2012 and April of 2015, the 
rate for FY2016 will decrease by 1.9%.This rate decrease only pertains to the rates charged to 



Page 4 of 4 * Special Workshop City Council Meeting * June 30, 2015 * DRAFT* 
 

the City by Republic; it does not reflect the fees charged to residents by the City for 
garbage/recycling service.  Staff has verified the calculations and determined that the rate 
charged to the City should decrease 1.9% per the terms of the Contract. 
 
A representative from Republic will be present to answer questions.  Staff will return at a later 
date to discuss this rate decrease’s impact on the fees charged to Rosenberg residents. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Jeff Trinker, Executive Director of Support Services, read the Executive 
Summary and introduced Frank Gracely, Municipal Manager of Republic Services. Mr. Gracely 
petitioned Council to forego the rate decrease and keep the current rates in effect, since the 
contracted CPI rate modification formula is not representative of actual annual operational 
costs. The variance is specifically due to the formula’s use of gasoline prices, as opposed to the 
compressed natural gas and diesel fuel that is actually used by the fleet. The general 
consensus of Council was in agreement with Mr. Gracely’s proposal. No further action will be 
required as a result of not changing the rate. 
 

5.  ADJOURNMENT. 
There being no further business, Mayor McConathy adjourned the meeting at 8:25 p.m. 

 
 
 
 

___________________________________________ 
 Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  

 
 
 



Page 1 of 11 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * July 7, 2015 * DRAFT * 

CITY OF ROSEBERG 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

***DRAFT*** 
 

On this the 7th day of July, 2015, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, 

met in a Regular Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 4th Street, 

Rosenberg, Texas. 

 

PRESENT 

Cynthia McConathy  Mayor 

William Benton   Councilor at Large, Position 1 

Amanda Barta  Councilor at Large, Position 2 

Jimmie Pena   Councilor, District 1  

Susan Euton   Councilor, District 2 

Lisa Wallingford  Councilor, District 3 

Lynn Moses   Councilor, District 4 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Robert Gracia   City Manager 

Scott M. Tschirhart  City Attorney 

Linda Cernosek  City Secretary 

John Maresh    Assistant City Manager of Public Services 

Jeff Trinker   Executive Director of Support Services 

Joyce Vasut   Executive Director of Administrative Services 

Travis Tanner   Executive Director of Community Development 

Charles Kalkomey  City Engineer 

Tonya Palmer   Building Official 

Valente Martinez  Fleet Manager 

Lisa Olmeda   Human Resources Director 

Dallis Warren   Police Chief 

Wade Goates   Fire Chief 

Angela Fritz   Executive Director of Information Services 

Darren McCarthy  Parks and Recreation Director 

Lydia Acosta   Recreation Program Coordinator 

Randall Malik   Economic Development Director 

James Lewis   Information Services Manager 

Fernando DeLeGarza  Information Technology Specialist 

Steven Trevino   Information Technology Specialist 

Cynthia Sullivan  Information Services – Sec II 

Luis Garza   Accounting Supervisor 

Kaye Supak   Executive Assistant 

 

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this 

meeting to discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas 

Government Code. 

 

CALL TO ORDER. 

Mayor McConathy called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.  

Reverend Daniel Haas, St. John’s United Church of Christ, Rosenberg, gave the invocation and led the 

pledge of allegiance to the flag. 

 

PRESENTATION OF THE NATIONAL LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS MEMORIAL FUND OFFICER OF THE MONTH 

AWARD.  

Dallis Warren, Police Chief, and DPS Sergeant Eric Gray, representative from National Law Enforcement 

Officers Memorial Fund (NLEOMF), presented the NLEOMF Officer of the Month Award to Sergeant 

Anthony Schnacky and Officer Matthew Curry for their quick thinking and heroic action in extracting a 



Page 2 of 11 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * July 7, 2015 * DRAFT * 

citizen from a burning vehicle. 

 

PRESENTATION OF TEXAS ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENT INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY MANAGERS 

RISING STAR AWARD.   

Angela Fritz, Executive Director Information Services, and Chris Piker, representative from the Texas 

Association of Government Information Technology Managers (TAGITM), presented the TAGITM Rising 

Star Award to James Lewis, Information Services Manager. 

 

PRESENTATION OF ROSENBERG IMAGE COMMITTEE BEAUTIFICATION AND RENOVATION AWARDS.  

William Benton, Councilor, presented Rosenberg Image Committee Beautification and Renovation 

Awards to: 

 

 Wayne and Kay Pomikal 3602 Avenue R 

 Monte and Josefina Silhavy 4308 Juan Carlos Court 

 Our Lady of Guadalupe Catholic Church 1600 Avenue D 

  
 

PRESENTATION OF PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING THE MONTH OF JULY 2015 AS PARKS AND RECREATION 

MONTH IN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG.  

Cynthia McConathy, Mayor, presented a Proclamation Recognizing the Month of July 2015 as Parks 

and Recreation Month in the City of Rosenberg. 

 

GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at 

this time.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings 

Act, the City Council is restricted from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It is 

our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential address 

when making comments. 

 

COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or 

Regular Agenda will be received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) 

minutes.  Comments or discussion by the City Council Members will only be made at the time the 

agenda item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by 

providing their name and residential address when making comments. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

       1. 

  

REVIEW OF CONSENT AGENDA. 

All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be 

enacted by one (1) motion.  There will be no separate discussion of Consent Agenda items 

unless a City Council Member has requested that the item be discussed, in which case the 

item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on the 

Regular Agenda. 

 

 A.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES FOR JUNE 22, 2015, 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES FOR JUNE 23, 2015, AND WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES FOR 

JUNE 23, 2015.  

 

 B.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FINAL PLAT OF STONECREEK ESTATES SECTION 

ONE, A SUBDIVISION OF 76.47 ACRES OF LAND OUT OF THE WILEY MARTIN SURVEY, A-56 

FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS; 185 LOTS, 8 RESERVES, 9 BLOCKS.   

Executive Summary: The Final Plat of Stonecreek Estates Section One adjoins the Berdett 

Road right-of-way immediately south of Dry Creek.  The subdivision is located in Fort Bend 

County Municipal Utility District No. 184, for which the Development and Utility Agreements 

were approved by City Council on August 26, 2014.  The Planning Commission 

recommended approval of the Development Agreement and Land Plan on August 20.  The 

Plat is located in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) with the exception of a portion of the City 

Limits abutting Dry Creek. 

 



Page 3 of 11 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * July 7, 2015 * DRAFT * 

The Plat consists of 76.47 acres and 185 single-family residential lots.  Additionally, the Plat 

contains several acres in landscape reserves and an approximately 5.18-acre recreation 

center site that will receive credit toward meeting parkland dedication requirements.  All 

proposed lots are a minimum of sixty feet (60’) in width with some lots being substantially 

larger.  The Plat complies with current City ordinances related to lot size and parkland 

dedication. 

 

The Preliminary Plat of this subdivision was approved by the Planning Commission on 

September 17, 2014.  Due to the expiration provisions in the ordinance, the Preliminary 

Plat approval was extended by the Planning Commission on April 15, 2015.  The 

Commission approved the Final Plat on May 20, 2015.  The proposed Final Plat is in 

conformance with the approved Land Plan, Preliminary Plat, and with applicable City 

ordinances.  Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of Stonecreek Estates Section 

One. 

 

 C.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1989, A RESOLUTION 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, AN 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN FORT BEND COUNTY AND THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 

TEXAS, FOR RADIO SYSTEM USE WITHIN FORT BEND COUNTY’S 800 MEGAHERTZ PUBLIC 

SAFETY RADIO SYSTEM FOR THE TERM ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2015.  

Executive Summary: City Council approval is requested for Resolution No. R-1989 which 

authorizes the approval of a new Interlocal Agreement with Fort Bend County for the 

operation of an 800 megahertz public safety radio system.  The Agreement remains 

consistent with past years’ Agreements and includes an increase of the monthly fees.  

This new Agreement, if approved, will take effect immediately and expire on September 

30, 2015.  The Agreement will automatically renew thereafter with said fee increase 

effective October 01, 2015. 

 

The Interlocal Agreement has been included as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1989.  

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1989 as presented. 

 

 D.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1990, A RESOLUTION 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, AN INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT FOR HELICOPTER USE BY AND BETWEEN FORT BEND COUNTY AND THE CITY OF 

ROSENBERG, TEXAS. 

Executive Summary: The Fort Bend County Sheriff’s office recently accepted the 

donation of two (2) OH58A Helicopters and have assigned them to the Patrol Division to 

implement a flight operations unit.  Spotters/Observers have been selected from Fort 

Bend County Sheriff’s Office and from the Police Departments of Missouri City, Rosenberg 

and Sugar Land. These Departments have agreed to a commitment of resources and 

agreed to train personnel as Tactical Flight Officers in support of this program. 

 

Resolution No. R-1990 formalizes this Interlocal Agreement (Agreement) and outlines the 

responsibilities of each entity.  The helicopters will be used to combat criminal activity 

and increase officer safety during patrol, tactical, investigative operations, and incident 

command operations.  As part of this Agreement, the City will reimburse Fort Bend 

County $7,500 per year for the fuel and operations cost of the helicopters. The 

Agreement will be implemented upon approval and expires on September 30, 2016, and 

will then automatically renew for one-year terms each October 1.  Funds are currently 

allocated to cover the cost of this Agreement from seized assets and in future years will 

be included in the regular Budget.  

 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1990 as presented. 

 

 Action:  Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Moses, to approve Consent 

Agenda Items A, B, C, and D. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

 

  



Page 4 of 11 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * July 7, 2015 * DRAFT * 

REGULAR AGENDA 

 

2a. This item was formerly item 14 on the Agenda. 

CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1994, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 

THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A CONTRACT EXTENSION, 

BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND PATTILLO, BROWN AND HILL, LLP, FOR THE PROVISION OF 

PROFESSIONAL AUDIT SERVICES FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2015, AND 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016.   

Executive Summary: On July 03, 2012, City Council awarded the Professional Audit Services 

Contract (Contract) to Pattillo, Brown and Hill, L.L.P., under Resolution No. R-1518, for a three 

(3) year term, for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2012, and the following two (2) 

subsequent fiscal years ending September 30, 2013, and September 30, 2014, with a possible 

two-year extension not to exceed a total of five (5) years.   

   

The City and Pattillo, Brown and Hill, L.L.P., have had a good working relationship for the past 

three (3) years and staff recommends extending the Contract for two (2) additional years to 

include fiscal years ending September 30, 2015, and September 30, 2016. 

 

The Contract Extension is attached as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1994. Staff recommends 

approval of Resolution No. R-1994 as presented. 

 

Key Discussion Points: Joyce Vasut read the Executive Summary and introduced Nicole 

Brown from Pattillo, Brown and Hill, L.L.P. 

 

Action:  Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton, to approve 

Resolution No. R-1994, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, for and on 

behalf of the City, a Contract Extension, by and between the City and Pattillo, Brown and Hill, 

LLP, for the provision of professional audit services for fiscal years ending September 30, 2015, 

and September 30, 2016. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

2.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM FOR A ONE-YEAR 

TERM.  

Executive Summary: Historically, the Mayor and City Council have appointed a Mayor Pro 

Tem to serve a one-year term.   Included in the agenda packet is a history list of those who 

have served as the Mayor Pro Tem in the past.  This item is being presented by the City 

Secretary for City Council consideration for appointment of a Mayor Pro Tem for a one-year 

term. 

 

Key Discussion Points: Linda Cernosek, City Secretary, read the Executive Summary. 

 

Action:  Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Pena, to appoint Councilor 

Pena as Mayor Pro Tem for a one-year term.  

 

The motion failed by a vote of 2 to 5 as follows:  Yeses:  Councilors Pena and Euton. Noes:  

Mayor McConathy, Councilors Benton, Barta, Wallingford, and Moses. 

 

Action:  Councilor Moses made a motion, seconded by Councilor Benton, to approve 

appoint Councilor Barta as Mayor Pro Tem for a one-year term.  

 

The motion carried by a vote of 5 to 2 as follows:  Yeses:  Mayor McConathy, Councilors 

Benton, Barta, Wallingford, and Moses. Noes:  Councilors Pena and Euton. 

 

3.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON APPOINTMENTS TO CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEES: 

a) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS COMMITTEE (THREE POSITIONS); 

b) FINANCE/AUDIT COMMITTEE (THREE POSITIONS); 

c) HOUSTON-GALVESTON AREA COUNCIL (H-GAC)(REPRESENTATIVE AND ALTERNATE); 

d) IMAGE COMMITTEE (ONE VOTING COUNCIL MEMBER); 

e) MAIN STREET ADVISORY BOARD (ONE COUNCIL MEMBER EX-OFFICIO); 

f) PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD (ONE VOTING COUNCIL MEMBER); 



Page 5 of 11 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * July 7, 2015 * DRAFT * 

g) PLANNING COMMISSION (ONE COUNCIL MEMBER EX-OFFICIO); 

h) PROFESSIONAL SERVICES/ENGINEERING PROJECT REVIEW COMMITTEE (THREE 

POSITIONS); AND, 

i) ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (THREE COUNCIL 

REPRESENTATIVES/DIRECTORS). 

Executive Summary: Each year the City Council appoints and reappoints members to the 

City’s Boards, Committees, and Commissions (Committees) that are to be appointed or 

reappointed for that particular year. The City Council Committees requiring City Council 

Members to be appointed are Employee Benefits Committee (three positions); Finance/Audit 

Committee (three positions); Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC)(Representative and 

Alternate); Image Committee (one voting Council Member); Main Street Advisory Board (one 

Council Member ex-officio); Parks and Recreation Board (one voting Council Member); 

Planning Commission (one Council Member ex-officio); Professional Services/Engineering 

Project Review Committee (three positions); and Rosenberg Development Corporation (three 

Council Representatives/Directors). Included in the agenda packet is a copy of the above 

Committees and the Council Members that previously served. 

 

Key Discussion Points: Linda Cernosek read the Executive Summary. 

 

Employee Benefits Committee (three positions) 

Action: Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Barta, to appoint the 

following members to the Employee Benefits Committee: Councilors Pena, Wallingford, and 

Moses. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

Finance/Audit Committee (three positions) 

Action: Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Barta, to reappoint the 

following members to the Finance/Audit Committee: Mayor McConathy, Councilor Benton, 

and Councilor Euton. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC)(Representative and Alternate) 

Action: Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Moses, to reappoint Mayor 

McConathy as the Representative to the Houston-Galveston Area Council (HGAC). The 

motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

Action: Mayor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Benton, to appoint 

Councilor Pena as the Alternate to the Houston-Galveston Area Council (HGAC). The motion 

carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

Image Committee (one voting Council Member) 

Action: Mayor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton, to reappoint 

Councilor Benton to the Image Committee as the voting Council Member. The motion 

carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

Main Street Advisory Board (one Council Member ex-officio) 

Action: Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Barta, to reappoint 

Councilor Pena to the Main Street Advisory Board as the Council Member ex-officio. The 

motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

Parks and Recreation Board (one voting Council Member) 

Action: Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Wallingford, to reappoint 

Councilor Barta to the Parks and Recreation Board as the voting Council Member. The 

motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

Planning Commission (one Council Member ex-officio) 

Action: Mayor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Moses, to appoint 

Councilor Euton to the Planning Commission as the Council Member ex-officio. The motion 

carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

 



Page 6 of 11 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * July 7, 2015 * DRAFT * 

Professional Services/Engineering Project Review Committee (three positions) 

Action: Councilor Pena made a motion, seconded by Councilor Benton, to reappoint 

Councilors Benton and Pena, and to appoint Councilor Euton to the Professional 

Services/Engineering Project Review Committee. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

Rosenberg Development Corporation (three Council Representatives/Directors) 

Action: Mayor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Benton, to appoint the 

following City Council Representatives to the Rosenberg Development Corporation: 

Councilors Barta, Pena, and Moses. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

4.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1991, A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE 

FILING OF A PETITION BY LAND OWNER FOR ANNEXATION OF 3.483 ACRES OF LAND IN THE 

EUGENE WHEAT SURVEY, A-396, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS.   

Executive Summary: City staff has received a petition from Lennar Homes, property owner of 

Walnut Creek (Fort Bend County MUD No. 152) for the voluntary annexation of 3.483 acres 

and disannexation of 8.709 acres as seen in the documents and vicinity map included in the 

agenda packet.  The main purpose of the request is to not have developable properties that 

are in multiple jurisdictions.  This could be beneficial not only to the developer, but also to the 

City by avoiding confusion as to what entity (City or County) is responsible for maintenance, 

emergency response, and other issues.  Further, despite being smaller in size than the 

proposed disannexation tract (3.483 acres versus 8.709), the proposed annexation tract had 

a higher taxable value for 2014 ($242,170) than the disannexation tract (est. $3,136), so this 

would result in a net fiscal gain to the City. 

 

However, before taking any action on the annexation or disannexation, a Resolution must first 

be passed accepting the filing of the petition for annexation.  Resolution No. R-1991 is 

regarding the acceptance of the petition for annexation only and does not provide for the 

disannexation request; annexation and disannexation have different requirements per the 

City Charter.  If passed, separate ordinances for annexation and disannexation of the 

proposed property will be placed on the July 21, 2015 City Council Agenda.  Staff 

recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1991. 

 

Key Discussion Points: Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development, gave an 

overview of the item. 

 

Action:  Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor Wallingford, to approve 

Resolution No. R-1991, a Resolution accepting the filing of a petition by land owner for 

annexation of 3.483 acres of land in the Eugene Wheat Survey, A-396, Fort Bend County, 

Texas. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

5.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1984, A RESOLUTION AWARDING BID 

NO. 2015-09, FOR CONSTRUCTION OF 16-INCH WATER LINE EXTENSION – BRYAN ROAD TO 

FUTURE ELEVATED STORAGE TANK; AND, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND 

EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS AND/OR AGREEMENTS 

REGARDING SAME.  

Executive Summary: Bids were received on Wednesday, June 10, 2015, for Bid No. 2015-09 for 

construction of the FM 2977 16-inch Water Line Extension – Bryan Road to Future Elevated 

Storage Tank (Project). A total of eight (8) bids were opened and tabulated as indicated on 

the bid summary form.  

 

Staff recommends Bid No. 2015-09 be awarded to Gonzalez Construction Enterprise, Inc., for 

the base bid and alternate “A” in the total amount of $597,984.73 for construction of the 

Project that will be constructed behind Fire Station No. 3, which is located at the corner of 

August Green Drive and FM 2977 (Minonite Road). The correspondence from Charles 

Kalkomey, Project Engineer, included in the agenda packet recommends same. Should the 

bid be awarded as recommended, the proposal from Gonzalez Construction Enterprise, Inc., 

will be attached and serve as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1984. The contract time is 75 

calendar days.  

 



Page 7 of 11 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * July 7, 2015 * DRAFT * 

This Project is included in the FY2015 Capital Improvement Plan approved by City Council on 

June 17, 2014. The Project is also a part of the City’s approved Groundwater Reduction Plan 

and will be an essential element necessary to transport the alternative surface water source 

into the distribution system. This Project will also loop with a dead-end 12-inch water line 

located on Rohan Road at FM 2977 to create an additional feed for this area of the City/ETJ 

and help maintain water pressure and capacity necessary to comply with the Texas 

Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) water system design criteria. 

  

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1984 which will award Bid No. 2015-09 and 

provide authorization for the City Manager to negotiate and execute all required documents 

necessary to facilitate the Agreement. 

 

Key Discussion Points: John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services, read the 

Executive Summary. Mr. Maresh advised Council that this company has done good work and 

has stayed on schedule on the Bamore Road, Phase 3 project for the City; however, there 

are liquidated damage clauses in the contract in the event of delays. Construction should 

begin fairly quickly upon completing the contract documents. 

 

Action:  Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Moses, to approve 

Resolution No. R-1984, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2015-09 to Gonzalez Construction 

Enterprise, Inc., for construction of 16-inch Water Line Extension – Bryan Road to Future 

Elevated Storage Tank; and, authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for and 

on behalf of the City, appropriate documents and/or agreements regarding same. The 

motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

6.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-2000, A RESOLUTION AWARDING A 

BID FOR THE PURCHASE OF A MOTOR GRADER, AND DECLARING CERTAIN EQUIPMENT AS 

SURPLUS AND APPROVING A TRADE-IN VALUE; AND, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS 

NECESSARY TO FACILITATE SAID PURCHASE AND TRADE-IN.  

Executive Summary: At the Special Meeting on June 22, 2015, the City Council approved 

Budget Amendment 15-11 through Resolution No. R-1988.  Three (3) pieces of essential 

equipment were included in that Resolution for the Public Works Department:  a motor 

grader, a bucket truck, and an asphalt patch truck. Staff has received a bid for the purchase 

of a 2015 year model Noram 65E compact motor grader from Mustang Caterpillar in the 

amount of $139,000.00 utilizing the BuyBoard Cooperative Purchasing Program. Mustang 

Caterpillar has also offered a Trade-In value in the amount of $19,000.00 for the 1999 year 

model Fiat FG65C currently in the City Public Works equipment fleet. The net cost with the 

trade-in is $120,000.00. Both the Fleet Supervisor and the Public Works Director believe the 

trade-in value is very fair and the City should accept it.       

 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2000, awarding a bid for the purchase of a 

motor grader and declaring the 1999 year model Fiat FG65C motor grader as surplus 

equipment; and authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute appropriate 

documents necessary to facilitate said purchase and trade-in in the net amount of 

$120,000.00. Should City Council approve the Resolution, the proposal will be attached to 

serve as Exhibit “A”. 

 

Key Discussion Points: John Maresh read the Executive Summary. 

 

Action:  Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Barta, to approve 

Resolution No. R-2000, a Resolution awarding a bid for the purchase of a motor grader to 

Mustang Caterpillar and declaring certain equipment as surplus and approving a trade-in 

value; and, authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the 

City, appropriate documents necessary to facilitate said purchase and trade-in. The motion 

carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

7.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-2001, A RESOLUTION AWARDING A 

BID FOR THE PURCHASE OF AN ASPHALT PATCH TRUCK; AND, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 



Page 8 of 11 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * July 7, 2015 * DRAFT * 

TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS 

AND/OR AGREEMENTS REGARDING SAME.  

Executive Summary: At the Special Meeting on June 22, 2015, the City Council approved 

Budget Amendment 15-11 through Resolution No. R-1988.  Three (3) pieces of essential 

equipment were included in that Resolution for the Public Works Department:  a motor 

grader, a bucket truck, and an asphalt patch truck. The total funding allocation for these 

pieces of equipment is $368,000. Staff has received a bid for the purchase of a 2016 year 

model Freightliner chassis with a Pro-Patch Asphalt Pothole Patcher. The asphalt patch truck 

would be purchased from Freightliner of Austin, utilizing the BuyBoard Cooperative Purchasing 

Program. The total cost, including BuyBoard Administrative Fee is $144,782.70. Staff would also 

note the allocation for the asphalt patch truck was initially estimated at $119,000. However, 

favorable bids were obtained for both the motor grader (including trade-in value) and 

bucket truck resulting in a total expenditure amount of $357,982.70, or $10,017.30 below the 

budgeted amount for all three pieces of equipment.   

 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2001, awarding a bid for the purchase of an 

asphalt patch truck in the amount of $144,782.70 from Freightliner of Austin, utilizing the 

BuyBoard Cooperative Purchasing Program. Should City Council approve the Resolution, the 

proposal will be attached to serve as Exhibit “A”. 

 

Key Discussion Points: John Maresh read the Executive Summary. 

 

Action:  Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton, to approve 

Resolution No. R-2001, a Resolution awarding a bid for the purchase of an asphalt patch 

truck to Freightliner of Austin; and, authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, 

for and on behalf of the City, appropriate documents and/or agreements regarding same. 

The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

8.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-2002, A RESOLUTION AWARDING A 

BID FOR THE PURCHASE OF A BUCKET TRUCK; AND, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS 

AND/OR AGREEMENTS REGARDING SAME.   

Executive Summary: At the Special Meeting on June 22, 2015, the City Council approved 

Budget Amendment 15-11 through Resolution No. R-1988.  Three (3) pieces of essential 

equipment were included in that Resolution for the Public Works Department:  a motor 

grader, a bucket truck, and an asphalt patch truck. Staff has received a bid for the purchase 

of a 2015 year model Ford F550 chassis with a Versalift telescopic aerial platform lift capable 

of a 45-foot working height. The bucket truck would be purchased from Caldwell Country 

utilizing the BuyBoard Cooperative Purchasing Program. The total cost, including BuyBoard 

Administrative Fee is $93,200.00.   

 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2002, awarding a bid for the purchase of a 

bucket truck in the amount of $93,200.00 from Caldwell Country utilizing the BuyBoard 

Cooperative Purchasing Program.  Should City Council approve the Resolution, the proposal 

will be attached to serve as Exhibit “A”. 

 

Key Discussion Points: John Maresh read the Executive Summary. 

 

Action:  Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor Wallingford, to approve 

Resolution No. R-2002, a Resolution awarding a bid for the purchase of a bucket truck to 

Caldwell Country; and, authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for and on 

behalf of the City, appropriate documents and/or agreements regarding same. The motion 

carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

9.  This item was pulled from the agenda. 

CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1995, A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR 

ACCEPTANCE OF A CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION PLAN.  

Executive Summary: On June 30, 2015, City Council reviewed and discussed a Final Report 

regarding job classifications and compensation for City employees as presented by 



Page 9 of 11 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * July 7, 2015 * DRAFT * 

Gallagher Benefits Services, Inc. The Final Report contained measurable criteria necessary to 

establish market comparisons to the current level of compensation paid for all City job 

classifications which make up the City’s Classification and Compensation Plan (Plan).  

 

Implementation cost options were also presented and discussed.  Ultimately, City Council 

agreed to defer the discussions regarding the Final Report, Plan, and implementation cost 

options to the City’s Finance Committee (Committee).  Said Committee meeting was set in 

order to take place prior to the July 7th City Council Meeting. 

 

Staff has prepared a draft of Resolution No. R-1995.  The Resolution will provide for the 

acceptance of the Classification and Compensation Plan. Resolution No. R-1995 will also 

provide an opportunity for City Council to select one of the three recommended cost 

implementation options, or an alternative form of the options presented. 

 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1995 predicated upon final consideration by 

City Council, and will be completed with the insertion of Implementation Cost Option 1, 

Option 2, or Option 3, and the establishment of an effective date. 

 

10.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1993, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 

THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, BUDGET AMENDMENT 15-

12 IN THE AMOUNT OF $98,325 FOR THE WATER LINE OVERSIZING FOR THE TEXAS STATE 

TECHNICAL COLLEGE PROJECT.  

Executive Summary: At the June 22, 2015 Special Meeting, City Council approved Resolution 

No. R-1992 which authorized funds in an amount not to exceed $100,000 for oversizing the 

water line to serve the Texas State Technical College (TSTC) in order to accommodate 

additional future development around the Fort Bend campus.  Budget Amendment 15-12 in 

the amount of $98,325 is for the delta between 12-inch and 16-inch upsize of the water line for 

the TSTC Project.  Staff recommends allocating the necessary funds from the Subsidence 

Fund, Retained Earnings.  

 

Budget Amendment 15-12 is included in the agenda packet as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. 

R-1993.  Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1993 as presented. 

 

Key Discussion Points: Joyce Vasut read the Executive Summary. 

 

Action: Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor Moses, to approve 

Resolution No. R-1993, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, for and on 

behalf of the City, Budget Amendment 15-12 in the amount of $98,325 for the water line 

oversizing for the Texas State Technical College Project. The motion carried by a unanimous 

vote. 

 

11.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1996, A RESOLUTION APPROVING 

FY2016 BUDGET PRIORITIES. 

Executive Summary: As part of the FY2016 Budget process, each Department was asked to 

submit their needs, not including operational expenses, for FY2016. The needs were submitted 

as either a (1) capital request (over $100,000), (2) a supplemental request (under $100,000), or 

(3) a personnel request.  The majority of the items requested were identified during the 

strategic planning process.  Once the requests were compiled, City management 

(Department Directors) met and prioritized the requests.   

 

A listing of requests, as prioritized by management, was presented to City Council at the June 

23, 2015 City Council Workshop for discussion.  Based on the discussion, City Council prioritized 

the requests from one (1) to twenty-five (25).  The top 25 requests, as prioritized by City 

Council, were presented at the June 30, 2015 Special City Council Workshop.   

 

Resolution No. R-1996 includes the 25 highest prioritized requests and, should City Council 

approve, allows City staff to determine the number of items that may be funded and 

included in the proposed FY2016 Budget.  Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-

1996. 



Page 10 of 11 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * July 7, 2015 * DRAFT * 

 

Key Discussion Points: Joyce Vasut read the Executive Summary and explained that passing 

this Resolution does not mean that all of the projects will be funded; rather, it gives staff a 

priority list for guidance when trying to fund as many of the projects as possible. Ms. Vasut 

requested clarification from Council regarding their wishes with the Firewall, which Council 

stated is a priority to fund prior to a technology audit, along with ticket writers, if possible. 

 

Action:  Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Moses, to approve 

Resolution No. R-1996, a Resolution approving FY2016 Budget Priorities. The motion carried by 

a unanimous vote. 

 

12.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1997, A RESOLUTION APPROVING 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN PRIORITIES FOR FY2016.  

Executive Summary: During the FY2016 Budget process, staff reviewed the current Capital 

Improvement Plan (CIP) and is recommending that a total of twenty-three (23) projects be 

addressed in FY2016. Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1997 lists the twenty-three (23) individual 

projects. The Planning Commission met on May 20, 2015, and also recommended approval of 

the projects proposed for the FY2016 CIP.  These projects were also presented to City Council 

at the June 23, 2015 City Council Workshop. 

 

Existing funding is available for eleven (11) of the Capital Projects.  Three (3) projects can be 

funded using General Fund Balance which will require a budget adjustment at a future 

meeting. The Railroad Quiet Zones Project is awaiting additional costing information before 

funding can be determined.   

 

There are several remaining Capital Projects which are not completely funded.  Funding for 

these projects may include the issuance of Certificates of Obligation, as follows: 

 

 Issue Certificates of Obligation – November 2015 - $4,915,200  

             (to be paid with Subsidence Fees) 

o Chloramine Conversion System (GRP) - $376,200 

o Water Plant No. 8 (GRP) - $4,539,000 

 

 Issue Certificates of Obligation – November 2015 - $5,000,000 

             (to be paid with Water/Wastewater fees) 

o WWTP 1A Collection System (Phase Two) - $5,000,000 

 

 Issue Certificates of Obligation - March 2016 - $5,612,000  

o Bryan Road – $2,300,000 

o Spacek Road Improvements - Phase II – $312,000 

o Old Richmond Road/Jennetta Street and Avenue F Drainage - $3,000,000 

 

 Issue Certificates of Obligation – March 2016 - $4,317,000 

             (to be paid with Water/Wastewater fees) 

o Spacek Road Sewer Lift Station - $2,617,000 

o Spacek Road Sewer Line - $1,700,000 

 

The actual details regarding the issuance of Certificates of Obligation, including the dollar 

amounts and timing of the issues, will be analyzed and strategized during the first quarter of 

FY2016 to determine the best options for the City.   

 

Approval of Resolution No. R-1997 will establish the City’s FY2016 Capital Improvements Plan 

and allow for the projects to be properly included in the proposed FY2016 Budget.  Staff 

recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1997. 

 

Key Discussion Points: Joyce Vasut read the Executive Summary. 

 

Action:  Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Barta, to approve 

Resolution No. R-1997, a Resolution approving Capital Improvement Plan priorities for FY2016. 



Page 11 of 11 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * July 7, 2015 * DRAFT * 

 

 

____________________________________________ 

       Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  

The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

13.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1998, A RESOLUTION APPROVING 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN PRIORITIES FOR FY2017 THROUGH FY2020.  

Executive Summary: Pursuant to the City Charter which requires a five-year Capital 

Improvement Plan (CIP), staff has prepared a proposed schedule for Capital Projects in 

FY2017, FY2018, FY2019 and FY2020.  The development of the CIP for FY2017 to FY2020 is based 

on several factors, including but not limited to: 

 

 Unfunded Mandates (Fort Bend Subsidence District, TCEQ) 

 Liability/Risk Management including noncompliance violations which subject the City 

to monetary fines, penalties and/or enforcement actions 

 Protect the health, safety and welfare of the citizens and the environment 

 Opportunities to leverage City funds with Fort Bend County Mobility Bond Funds or 

grant funds 

 Quality of life/growth including City parks and City facilities 

   

The proposed FY2017-FY2020 CIP is attached to Resolution No. R-1998 as Exhibit “A”.  Staff 

recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1998. 

 

Key Discussion Points: Joyce Vasut read the Executive Summary. This list is a fluid document 

as serves as a general outline of future needs. 

 

Action:  Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor Moses, to approve 

Resolution No. R-1998, a Resolution approving Capital Improvement Plan priorities for FY2017 

to FY2020. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 

14.  This item was considered at the beginning of the Agenda as item 2a. 

CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1994, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 

THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A CONTRACT EXTENSION, 

BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND PATTILLO, BROWN AND HILL, LLP, FOR THE PROVISION OF 

PROFESSIONAL AUDIT SERVICES FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2015, AND 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016.   

 

15.  HOLD EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DELIBERATE THE EMPLOYMENT, EVALUATION, OR DUTIES OF THE 

CITY MANAGER PURSUANT TO SECTION 551.074 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE.  

Action:  Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor Wallingford, to adjourn to 

Executive Session. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 

 

An Executive Session was held to deliberate the employment, evaluation, or duties of the City 

Manager pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code. 

 

16.  ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION, RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION, AND TAKE ACTION AS 

NECESSARY AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION. 

Mayor McConathy adjourned the Executive Session and reconvened into Regular Session at 

9:25 p.m.  

 

17.  ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

 Effective July 21, Announcements will be moved to the beginning of the Agenda. 

 Rosenberg Police Explorers are conducting a competition on July 18, 2015 at Terry 

High School, and are need of volunteers. 

 

18.  ADJOURNMENT. 

There being no further business, Mayor McConathy adjourned the meeting at 9:28 p.m. 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

July 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

B Ordinance No. 2015-21 – No Parking on Ward Street 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-21, an Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances 
by adding a portion of Ward Street to Section 28-116 of Article III of Division 2 of Chapter 28 thereof, as a 
portion of a street within the City upon which it is unlawful to park a vehicle; and repealing Ordinance No. 
2013-11 in its entirety; providing for the installation of “No Parking” signs indicating the boundaries of the 
no parking zone along Ward Street; providing a penalty in an amount of not less than $1.00 nor more than 
$200.00 for each violation of any provision hereof; providing for a cumulative and conflicts clause; 
providing for severability; and providing for an effective date. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[X] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Ordinance No. 2015-21 
2. Location Map 
3. Ordinance No. 2013-11 – 02-19-13 
4. City Council Regular Meeting Minute Excerpt – 02-19-13 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

John Maresh 
 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services   
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl 
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Police Chief DW/rl 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This Ordinance is being presented to City Council for the consideration of the installation of a revised “no 
parking” zone on a portion of Ward Street at the intersection of FM 1640 (Avenue I). The City approved 
Ordinance No. 2013-11 on February 19, 2013, to address traffic issues and safety concerns resulting from 
vehicles that are parked along Ward Street, obstructing vision at the intersection, and constricting the street 
width. The “no parking” zone presently extends from the south right-of-way line of FM 1640 (Avenue I), seventy 
(70) feet south along both the east and west sides of Ward Street. The business establishments located on both 
sides of Ward Street at Avenue I appear to be generating the on-street parking. 
 
An unresolved parking issue on the east side of Ward Street, near this intersection, was recently brought to 
staff’s attention. According to information provided, vehicles routinely park in the area immediately south of the 
“no parking” zone which contains two (2) driveways with a minimal amount of separation distance between 
them. As a result, one of the driveways will always be partially blocked, creating a safety issue for anyone that 
needs to use the driveway.  If approved, the “no parking” zone would be extended an additional five (5) feet 
south, along the west side of Ward Street and thirty (30) feet south, along the east side of Ward Street to 
encompass the area between the two (2) driveways. A location map of the proposed “no parking” zone is 
included in the packet. Ordinance No. 2015-21 would repeal Ordinance No. 2013-11 and establish revised 
boundaries for this “no parking” zone.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2015-21 as presented to address the remaining safety issue.   
 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-21 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY ADDING A PORTION OF WARD 
STREET TO SECTION 28-116 OF ARTICLE III OF DIVISION 2 OF 
CHAPTER 28 THEREOF, AS A PORTION OF A STREET WITHIN THE 
CITY UPON WHICH IT IS UNLAWFUL TO PARK A VEHICLE; AND 
REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 2013-11 IN ITS ENTIRETY; 
PROVIDING FOR THE INSTALLATION OF “NO PARKING” SIGNS 
INDICATING THE BOUNDARIES OF THE NO PARKING ZONE ALONG 
WARD STREET; PROVIDING A PENALTY IN AN AMOUNT OF NOT 
LESS THAN $1.00 NOR MORE THAN $200.00 FOR EACH VIOLATION 
OF ANY PROVISION HEREOF; PROVIDING FOR A CUMULATIVE 
AND CONFLICTS CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, adopted Ordinance 

No. 2013-11 on February 19, 2013, amending the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Rosenberg, Texas, by adding the portion of Ward Street, from the south right-of-way line 
of FM 1640 (Avenue I),seventy (70) feet south along the east and west sides of Ward 
Street, to Section 28-116 of Article III of Division 2 of Chapter 28 thereof, as a portion of 
a street within the City upon which it is unlawful to park a vehicle; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, finds that said 

Ordinance No. 2013-11 does not adequately address the unlawful parking of a vehicle 
along said portion of Ward Street; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, finds that it is 

necessary to amend the portion of Ward Street upon which it is unlawful to park a 
vehicle to protect the health, safety and welfare of the public by repealing said 
Ordinance No. 2013-11; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, finds that it is 

necessary to adopt a new ordinance establishing the correct portion of Ward Street upon 
which it is unlawful to park a vehicle; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG:  

Section 1.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 

hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings 

of fact.  

 



 

2 

Section 2.  The Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg is hereby amended 

by adding a portion of Ward Street to Section 28-116 of Article III of Division 2 of 

Chapter 28 thereof to read as follows: 

“Sec. 28-116.  - Prohibited at any time.  

There shall be no parking of any vehicle at any time on any of the 
following streets or portions of streets: 

* * * 

Ward Street, from the south right-of-way line of FM 1640 (Avenue I), 
one-hundred (100) feet south along the east side of Ward Street and 
seventy-five (75) feet south along the west side of Ward Street.” 

 
Section 3.  Ordinance No. 2013-11 amending the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of Rosenberg, Texas, by adding the portion of Ward Street, from the south right-of-way 

line of FM 1640 (Avenue I), seventy (70) feet south along the east and west sides of 

Ward Street to Section 28-116 of Article III of Division 2 of Chapter 28 thereof, as a 

portion of a street within the City upon which it is unlawful to park a vehicle is hereby 

repealed in its entirety. 

Section 4. When any person is charged with having parked or left standing a 

vehicle in a "No Parking” zone designated in Section 2 hereof, proof that the vehicle 

was, at the date and time of the offense alleged, owned by the person charged with the 

offense shall constitute prima facie evidence that the vehicle was parked or left standing 

at the place by the owner, but the owner shall have the right to introduce evidence to 

show that such vehicle was not parked by him or her as charged in the complaint. 

Section 5.   The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to cause the 

placement of official traffic control devices giving notice of the "No Parking” zone as 

described in Section 2 above. 

Section 6.  Any person who shall fail to observe and comply with a duly posted 

traffic control device erected pursuant to this Ordinance, or who shall in any manner 



 

3 

violate any provision of this Ordinance, shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, 

upon conviction thereof, shall be fined in an amount of not less than $1.00 nor more 

than $200.00. 

Section 7.  This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of ordinances of 

the City of Rosenberg, Texas, except where the provisions of the Ordinance are in direct 

conflict with the provisions of such ordinances, in which event the conflicting provisions 

of such ordinances are hereby repealed. Any and all previous versions of this Ordinance 

to the extent that they are in conflict herewith are repealed. 

Section 8.  In the event any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, 

provision, sentence, or part of this Ordinance or the application of the same to any 

person or circumstance shall for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional 

by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance 

as a whole or any part of provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or 

unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, declares that it 

would have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of 

any such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, whether there be one or 

more parts. 

Section 9.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage, 

approval and publication as provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of ______ “ayes” in favor and _______ 

“noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the ______ day of 

_________________ 2015. 

 



 

4 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
             
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      
Scott M. Tschirhart, CITY ATTORNEY 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 
 
 



FM 1640 (AVE I)

WARD ST

Approx. 70'

Å
N

S
EW

Proposed No Parking Zone

Created by: City of Rosenberg GIS - Paul M. Jones
Date Created: February 04, 2013
Original Size: 8.5" x 11"
K:\GIS\0_MAPS\Utilities\Projects\2013\WardSt_AveI_NoParking.mxd

Proposed No Parking Zone on Ward St at FM 1640 (Ave I)
City of Rosenberg, Texas

This product is for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable 
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of geographic features.

1:600
1 inch = 50 feet

Scale:
or

0 50 100
Feet

johnm
Rectangle

johnm
Callout
Additional 5 feet on west side of Ward Street and additional 30 feet on east side of Ward Street









reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
July 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

C Ordinance No. 2015-22 – MUD No. 152 Voluntary Annexation  

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-22, an Ordinance providing for the extension of the 
City Limits of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, by voluntary annexation of 3.483 acres of land in the Eugene 
Wheat Survey, A-396, Fort Bend County, Texas; granting to said tract of land and to all current and future 
inhabitants of said tract of land the rights and privileges of other citizens and binding said current and 
future inhabitants by all of the acts, ordinances, regulations and resolutions of said City, now in effect and 
to be hereafter adopted; adjusting the boundaries of Council District No. 4 to include the tract annexed 
hereby; providing a severability clause; providing for an effective date; providing for a savings clause and 
repealing conflicting ordinances or resolutions. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  152 (Walnut Creek) 

1. Ordinance No. 2015-22 
2. Resolution No. R-1991 – 07-07-15 
3. Vicinity Map 
4. Charter Excerpt – Part I, The Charter, Article I, Section 1.03(c) 
5. City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 07-07-15 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of 
Community Development 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/tt 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

City staff received a petition from Lennar Homes, property owner of Walnut Creek (Fort Bend County MUD 
No. 152), for the voluntary annexation of 3.483 acres and the disannexation of 8.709 acres as seen in the 
attached vicinity map.  The purpose the request is to not have developable properties that are in multiple 
jurisdictions.  This could be beneficial not only to the developer and to future homeowners in the 
subdivision, but also to the City by avoiding confusion as to what entity (City or County) is responsible for 
maintenance, emergency response, and other issues.  Despite being smaller in size than the proposed 
disannexation tract, the annexation tract had a higher taxable value in 2014, so this should result in a net 
fiscal gain to the City. 
 
On July 07, 2015, City Council passed Resolution No. R-1991 recognizing the petition for annexation.  As 
discussed on July 07, separate ordinances for annexation and disannexation of the proposed property are 
required and have been placed on this Agenda.  Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2015-22. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-22 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, PROVIDING 
FOR THE EXTENSION OF THE CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION OF 3.483 
ACRES OF LAND IN THE EUGENE WHEAT SURVEY, A-396, FORT 
BEND COUNTY, TEXAS; GRANTING TO SAID TRACT OF LAND AND 
TO ALL CURRENT AND FUTURE INHABITANTS OF SAID TRACT OF 
LAND THE RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES OF OTHER CITIZENS AND 
BINDING SAID CURRENT AND FUTURE INHABITANTS BY ALL OF 
THE ACTS, ORDINANCES, REGULATIONS AND RESOLUTIONS OF 
SAID CITY, NOW IN EFFECT AND TO BE HEREAFTER ADOPTED; 
ADJUSTING THE BOUNDARIES OF COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 4 TO 
INCLUDE THE TRACT ANNEXED HEREBY; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SAVINGS CLAUSE AND REPEALING 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES OR RESOLUTIONS. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, finds that it 

received a request for annexation from Lennar Homes of Texas Land and Construction, 
Ltd., attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes as Exhibit “A”, the 
owner of 3.483 acres of land in the Eugene Wheat Survey, A-396, Fort Bend County, 
Texas; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, finds the eligible 
property (the “Property”) is located in the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of 
Rosenberg and is contiguous to the City Limits, which is more particularly described in 
Exhibit “A”; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the procedures prescribed by the Texas Local Government Code 
and the Rosenberg City Charter have been duly followed with respect to the annexation 
of the herein described territory; and, 

 
WHEREAS, on July 07, 2015, City Council heard said petition and arguments for 

and against the same and granted said petition; now, therefore, 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, 
THAT: 
 

Section 1. All of the above premised are found to be true and correct and are 

incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 

 

Section 2. The land and territory lying outside of, but adjacent to and 

contiguous to the City of Rosenberg, Texas, more particularly described  in Exhibit “A” 

attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes, is hereby added and annexed 



 
Page 2 of 3 

 

to the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and said territory, as described, shall hereafter be 

included within the boundary limits of said City, and the present boundary limits of said 

City, at the various points contiguous to the area described in Exhibit “A”, are altered 

and amended so as to include said areas within the corporate limits of the City of 

Rosenberg, Texas.   

 

 Section 3. The land and territory more particularly described in Exhibit “A”, 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, shall be part of the City of 

Rosenberg, Texas, and inhabitants thereof shall be entitled to all the rights and 

privileges as citizens and shall be bound by the acts, ordinances, resolutions, and 

regulations of the City of Rosenberg, Texas.   

 

Section 4. The land and territory described in Exhibit “A”, shall be included in 

Council District No. 4 and said election district boundary shall be adjusted or 

reconfigured to include the annexed area. 

 

Section 5. All ordinances, parts of ordinances, or resolutions in conflict 

herewith are expressly repealed. 

 

Section 6. The City Secretary is hereby directed to file with the County Clerk 

of Fort Bend County, Texas, a certified copy of this ordinance. 

 

Section 7. If any section, subsection, sentence, paragraph, phrase, word, or 

provision be found to be illegal, invalid, unconstitutional or if any portion of said 

properties is incapable of being annexed by the City of Rosenberg, Texas, for any 

reason whatsoever, the adjudication shall not affect another section, sentence, phrase, 

word, paragraph or provision of this Ordinance or the application of any other section, 

sentence, phrase, word, paragraph or provision to any other person or portion of said 

properties, situation or circumstance, nor shall the adjudication affect any other section, 

sentence, phrase, word, paragraph or provision of any other ordinance of the City of 

Rosenberg, Texas. The City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid 

portions and applications of the Ordinance and would have annexed the valid properties 



 
Page 3 of 3 

 

without the invalid part and invalid properties and to this end the provisions of this 

Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

 

Section 8. This ordinance shall be effective from and after July 21, 2015.  

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of ______ “ayes” in favor and _______ 

“noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the ______ day of 

____________ 2015. 

 

________________________________ 

       Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

______________________________ 

Scott M. Tschirhart, CITY ATTORNEY 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 



Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2015-22 

Page 1 of 6

janete
Rectangle



Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2015-22 

Page 2 of 6



Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2015-22 

Page 3 of 6



Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2015-22 

Page 4 of 6



Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2015-22 

Page 5 of 6



Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2015-22 

Page 6 of 6



RESOLUTION NO. R -1991

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

ROSENBERG, TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE FILING OF A PETITION BY

LAND OWNER FOR ANNEXATION OF 3.483 ACRES OF LAND IN THE

EUGENE WHEAT SURVEY, A -396, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the City Charter, the City accepts the filing of the petition
for annexation ( attached hereto as Exhibit " A "); and, 

WHEREAS, the City shall, not less than five ( 5) and not more than thirty ( 30) 
days after the filing of said petition, hear said petition and grant or refuse said petition; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the land described in said petition is contiguous and adjacent to the

City of Rosenberg; now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. City Council has determined that said petition for annexation has

been filed and said petition for annexation shall be heard on July 7, 2015, with notice to

be sent to petitioner. City Council will listen to arguments for and against the petition

and take action at that time. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this rl&day of 2015. 

ATTEST: 

Linda Cernosek, City Secretary

OF ROS

o c 
P • 
F

2eFR...... PS

APPROVED: 

A'i
Cynthia McConathy, 



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R -1991

PETITION FOR ADDITION OF LAND TO AND REMOVAL OF LAND FROM
THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS

THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF FORT BEND

Lennar Homes of Texas Land and Construction, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership
Petitioner "), the owner of the land hereinafter described, acting pursuant to the provisions of

Chapter 43, Texas Local Government Code, particularly Section 43. 028 together with all
amendments and additions thereto, petition this Honorable City Council to annex the land
described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" attached hereto " Annexation Tract" to the City
and to deannex the land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit B̀" attached hereto

Deannexation Tract ") from the City. In support of this Petition, the Petitioners represent, 
covenant, and agree as follows: 

I. 

The Petitioner holds fee simple title to and full ownership of both the Annexation Tract
and the Deannexation Tract and Petitioner hereby certifies that there are presently no lienholders
on the Annexation Tract or the Deannexation Tract. 

11. 

Petitioner desires that the Deannexation Tract be disannexed in accordance with Section

43. 146 of the Texas Local Government Code and not for failure to provide services as set forth
in Section 43. 141, Texas Local Government Code. 

III. 

Petitioner acknowledges that the amount of property taxes and fees collected by the City
during the time the Deannexation Tract has been located within the City is less than or equal to
the amount of money that the City has spent for the direct benefit of the Deannexation Tract
during the same period. Petitioner waives any remedies or rights as set forth in law or equity
pertaining to recovery of property taxes and fees collected by the City relative to the
Deannexation Tract. 

IV. 

The Annexation Tract and the Deannexation Tract lie entirely within Fort Bend County, 
Texas and are accurately described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and Exhibit "B ", 
attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

93152. 002 257973v1



V. 

The Annexation Tract and the Deannexation Tract are located within the boundaries of
extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City as defined by 42.001, Texas Local Government Code. 

VI. 

The Annexation Tract and the Deannexation Tract are without residents. 

VII. 

The Annexation Tract is contiguous to the City. 

VIII. 

This Petition shall constitute an election on the part of the Petitioner, its successors and
assigns, for the Annexation Tract and any improvements that are now or may hereafter be
constructed thereon, to become liable for all present and future debts of the City in the same
manner and to the same extent as other lands and improvements in the City are liable for the
City' s debts. The Petitioner hereby agrees that the Annexation Tract, and all improvements
thereon presently existing or to be constructed hereby assumes its share of liability for the
payment of any and all bonds or other obligations to the City that are currently outstanding or
hereafter issued and that are currently or hereafter voted by unissued. Petitioner also agrees that
the annexation tract, and all improvements thereon presently existing or to be constructed shall
be taxes equally with all other property in the City. Petitioner acknowledges, consents to, and
affirmatively requests the assumption by the Annexation Tract of a pro rata share of all
obligations of the City, and of the taxes levied or hereafter to be levied by the City. 

IX. 

The execution and submission of this Petition shall not constitute an election by
Petitioners to change the tax status of the Annexation Tract or the Deannexation Tract and shall
not constitute a waiver by the Petitioner of rights, powers, and privileges under the Texas
Constitution and statutes regarding the tax status of the Annexation Tract or the Deannexation
Tract. 

WHEREFORE, the Petitioner prays that this Petition be granted, that the Annexation

Tract be added to and become part of the City, that the Deannexation Tract be disannexed, 
discontinued and removed from the City, and that this Petition, if granted by filed for record and
be recorded in the Official Records of Fort Bend County, Texas. 

93152 -002 257973vl



LENNAR HOMES OF TEXAS LAND AND

CONSTRUCTION, LTD., a Texas limited partnership, 
d /b /a/ Friendswood Development Company

By: LENNAR TEXAS HOLDING COMPANY, a Texas
corporation, its General Partner

I: 

Title: 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF FORT BEND § 

John W. Hammond

Vice President

It

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _ 11_ day of

2015, by the Qazjja of Lennar Texas Holding Company, a Texas

corporation, the General Partner of Lennar Homes of Texas Land and Construction, Ltd., a Texas limited

partnership, d /b /a/ Friendswood Development Company, on behalf of said corporation, company and

limited partnership. 

w

rty Commission Expires
t ~? t l February 23, 2016

AFTER RECORDING, RETURN TO: 
SMITH, MURDAUGH, LITTLE & BONHAM, L.L.P. 

2727 Alien Parkway, Suite 1100
Houston, Texas 77019

93152 -002 257973v1

Notary Public, St t of 1



i

J

crY
s

0
t

f`+ 

CP- 

F, G, SpuG

ii

F94Q Fra6 Vy

Nz P  sE atO } spa

t t' tt 

4yE.£ 
tia

F 

R4SekltVEN SECi74M 2

11
f+ EE CODE « F ; l1CStlt ?; t 6 C Y R. 

i

J

crY
s

0
t

f`+ 

CP- 

F, G, SpuG

ii

F94Q Fra6 Vy

Nz P  sE atO } spa

t t' tt 

4yE.£ 
tia

F 

R4SekltVEN SECi74M 2 tr

f+ EE CODE « F ; l1CStlt ?; t 6 C Y R. 

04 ty

fe o, th
51

1) 

r
It

it

L

li

tTQ. aQ 1b
Gl

11

t Il f11 / l / 1 Orin u

s

1

f

T

M ® *
l tti

it

r  

FT 1

It
ao5fnavEk 5EC7tON S

REF: AT N4. t 7

Pit fKK[ Ra 200" 64. FACalf. 

14
t

u s

ti

c

s s 

0. 

t ) 

r
I'D

1?, O, 

IDS 4

3211 Ync £ rr..), 

sly I< Trao

Engneering Group r«,c T € aat - ?rre

EXHIBIT

3.483 ACRES
EUGENE WHEAT SURVEY, A -396

FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS
xQ?E. E BEAR" COnli



EXH

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION

OF 3. 483 ACRES OF LAND

IN THE EUGENE WHEAT SURVEY, A -396

FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS

All that certain 3. 483 acres of land, being a portion of the 127. 00 acre tract described in the
deed from Mary Pochyla, et al. to Lennar Homes of Texas Land and Construction, Ltd., 
recorded under File No. 2004033837, in the Official Public Records of Real Property of Fort

Bend County, Texas, in the Eugene Wheat Survey, A -396, Fort Bend County, Texas, and more
particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: ( All bearings based on the Texas

Coordinate System of 1983, South Central Zone) 

BEGINNING at a 3/ 4 iron rod found for the north corner of Restricted Reserve " A ", of

ROSEHAVEN SECTION ONE REPLAT NO. ONE, according to the plat thereof recorded under

File No. 20060266, in the Map Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, common to the northeast
corner of the herein described tract, in the southwest line of Irby Cobb Boulevard ( 70' 
R. O. W. ); 

THENCE South 49' 11' 42 " West — 16. 06 feet, along a northeast line of said ROSEHAVEN
SECTION ONE REPLAT NO. ONE, to a 3/ 4 iron rod found for an angle corner, common to an

angle corner of the herein described tract; 

THENCE North 87' 12' 18" West — 13. 76 feet, continuing along said northeast line, to a 3/ 4
iron rod found for an angle corner, common to an angle corner of the herein described tract; 

THENCE South 46' 16' 20" West — 92. 22 feet, continuing along said northeast line, to a 3/ 4
iron rod found for an angle corner, common to an angle corner of the herein described tract; 

THENCE South 15' 09' 11" West — 20. 00 feet, continuing along said northeast line, to a 3/ 4
iron rod found for an angle corner, common to an angle corner of the herein described tract, 

and a point on a non - tangent curve to the left; 

THENCE along said curve to the left, continuing along said northeast line, in a southwesterly
direction, having a central angle of 117' 24' 45 ", a chord bearing and distance of
South 46° 26' 48" West — 85. 45 feet, a radius of 50.00 feet, and an arc distance of 102. 46

feet, to a 3/ 4 iron rod found for the end of curve; 

THENCE South 56' 15' 47" West — 101.95 feet, continuing along said northeast line, to a 3/ 4
iron rod found for an angle corner, common to an angle corner of the herein described tract; 

THENCE South 06' 19' 46" West — 12. 87 feet, continuing along said northeast line, to a 3/ 4
iron rod found for an angle corner, common to an angle corner of the herein described tract; 



Page 2 — 3. 483 Acre Tract

THENCE South 41° 49' 03" West — 119. 63 feet, continuing along said northeast line, to a 3/ 4
iron rod found for an angle corner, common to an angle corner of the herein described tract; 

THENCE South 30° 14' 43" West — 339. 13 feet, continuing along said northeast line, to a 3/ 4
iron rod found for an angle corner, common to an angle corner of the herein described tract; 

THENCE South 42° 07' 11" West — 62. 03 feet, continuing along said northeast line, to the
south corner of the herein described tract; 

THENCE North 02° 39' 54" East — 149. 34 feet to the Point of Curvature of a curve to the right; 

THENCE along said curve to the right, in a northerly direction, having a central
angle of 19° 47' 33 ", a chord bearing and distance of North 12° 33' 41" East — 204. 96 feet, a

radius of 596. 28 feet, and an arc distance of 205. 98 feet, to the end of curve; 

THENCE North 22' 27' 27" East — 537. 14 feet to a point on a non - tangent curve to the right, in

the southwest right -of -way line of said Irby Cobb Boulevard; 

THENCE along said curve to the right, along said southwest right -of -way line, in a

southeasterly direction, having a central angle of 28° 34' 54 ", a chord bearing and distance of
South 55° 05' 45" East — 343. 11 feet, a radius of 695. 00 feet, and an arc distance of 346. 70

feet, to the POINT OF BEGINNING of the herein described tract and containing 3. 483 acres of
land. 

Prepared by: 
IDS Engineering Group
Job No. 371 - 135 -00 -560 F T

G S T phP, 

December 12, 2008
zuRr ERDOUGLAS

r : 3988

y ss { 

S
Douglas W r er

Registered Prof ssional Land Surveyor

Texas Registrati n Number 3988



!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

MI
NO

NI
TE

@A2977

IRBY COBB

BLOOMMI ST

SAB
LE 

GLE
N

ASC
OT

DE
WMOS

SY 
PO

INT

KNOLL
OAK

BLOSSO
M

BREEZE

BLUFF HOLLOW

RICEFIELD

RAMBLING MANOR

BE
NT

ON

A MEYERSMA
RB

LE
STO

NE

HAVEN FOREST

LANTERNHILL
SANDER

S
HOLLO

W

COBBLE

MEAD

OW

Å

Û

N

S

EW

Interstate
US Highway
State Highway
Farm-to-Market
Public Road

Proposed for Annexation
Proposed for Disannexation
FBCAD 2014 3rd Quarter Parcels
MUD No. 152
Rosenberg City Limits
Rosenberg ETJ

Created by: City of Rosenberg GIS - Paul M. Jones
Date Created: November 20, 2014
Original Size: 8.5" x 11"
K:\GIS\MAPS\Planning\2014\WalnutCreek.mxd

Walnut Creek Proposed Annexation & Disannexation
City of Rosenberg, Texas

This product is for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable 
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of geographic features.

1:10,500
1 inch = 875 feet

Scale:
or

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000
Feet



  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 1 

Sec. 1.03. Extension of boundaries. 

The boundaries of the City of Rosenberg may be enlarged and extended by the annexation of 
additional territory, irrespective of size and configuration, in any of the methods hereinafter designated:  

(a) Extending limits in accordance with Article 974 of the Revised Civil Statutes [V.T.C.A., Local 
Government Code § 43.021]. Where such additional territory adjoins the corporate limits of the 
city and contains three or more inhabitants qualified to vote for members of the state legislature, 
such adjacent territory may be annexed to the city in the manner and in conformity with the 
procedure set forth in Article 974 of the Revised Statutes of the State of Texas of 1925, as now 
or hereafter amended [V.T.C.A., Local Government Code § 43.021].  

(b) Extension of limits by election. The city council shall have the power to order an election or 
elections for the purpose of annexing territory lying adjacent to the City of Rosenberg. Such 
order shall include the survey notes of the area sought to be annexed. The city council shall 
give notice of the date and place of balloting at such election by publication of the order in a 
newspaper of general circulation published in the City of Rosenberg at least thirty days prior to 
the date on which such election is ordered. The residents of the City of Rosenberg and the 
territory sought to be annexed, who are qualified to vote for members of the state legislature, 
shall be qualified to vote at such election. The city council shall, at its next meeting, canvass the 
return of such election and if a majority of the votes cast at such election by the residents of 
Rosenberg, and if a majority of the votes cast at such election by the residents of said territory 
being considered for annexation, favor such annexation, the council shall declare the said 
territory annexed to the City of Rosenberg, and the boundary limits of the City of Rosenberg 
shall thereafter be extended and fixed so as to include such territory.  

(c) Annexation of unoccupied lands on petition of owners. The owner or owners of any land which 
is without residents, contiguous and adjacent to the city may, by petition in writing to the city 
council, request the annexation of such contiguous and adjacent land, describing it by metes 
and bounds. The city council shall thereafter, and not less than five and not more than thirty 
days after the filing of such petition, hear such petition and the arguments for and against the 
same, and grant or refuse such petition as the city council may see fit. If the city council grants 
such petition, it may by proper ordinance receive and annex such territory as a part of the city.  

(d) Annexation by amendments to charter. The boundary limits of the city may be fixed and 
additional territory added or annexed thereto by amendment to the Charter of the city.  

(e) Extending limits by action of the city council. The city council shall have power by ordinance to 
fix the boundary limits of the City of Rosenberg and to provide for the extension of said 
boundary limits and the annexation of additional territory lying adjacent to said city, with or 
without the consent of the residents or the owners of land within the territory annexed. Upon the 
introduction of such an ordinance in the city council it may be passed on the first reading, and 
thereafter shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation published in the City of 
Rosenberg one time, and shall not thereafter be finally acted upon until at least thirty days have 
elapsed after the publication thereof. Any citizen of the City of Rosenberg, or resident or owner 
of land within the territory to be annexed shall have the right to contest said annexation by filing 
with the city council a written petition setting out his reasons for said contest and after such 
citizen, resident or owner of land within the territory shall have been given an opportunity to be 
heard, said ordinance, in original or amended form, as said city council in its judgment may 
determine, shall be finally acted upon and any territory so annexed shall be a part of the City of 
Rosenberg.  

(f) Annexation by any other method provided by law. Additional territory may also be annexed to 
the city in any manner and by any procedure that may now be provided by law or that may be 
hereafter provided by law. Same shall be in addition to the methods hereinabove provided.  

(g) Annexed territory to become part of the city. Upon completion of any one of the procedures 
hereinabove provided, the territory so annexed shall become a part of the city, and said land 

reneel
Rectangle

reneel
Text Box
Code of Ordinances ExcerptPart I - The CharterArticle I. - Form of Government and Boundaries



  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 2 

and its residents and future residents shall be entitled to all the rights and privileges of other 
citizens of the city and shall be bound by the acts, ordinances, resolutions and regulations of the 
city.  

State law reference— Voter approval required under certain circumstances, V.T.C.A., Local 
Government Code § 43.022; annexation of sparsely occupied areas, V.T.C.A., Local 
Government Code § 43.028.  



Page 6 of 11 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * July 7, 2015 * DRAFT * 

Professional Services/Engineering Project Review Committee (three positions) 
Action: Councilor Pena made a motion, seconded by Councilor Benton, to reappoint 
Councilors Benton and Pena, and to appoint Councilor Euton to the Professional 
Services/Engineering Project Review Committee. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 
Rosenberg Development Corporation (three Council Representatives/Directors) 
Action: Mayor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Benton, to appoint the 
following City Council Representatives to the Rosenberg Development Corporation: 
Councilors Barta, Pena, and Moses. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

4.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1991, A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE 
FILING OF A PETITION BY LAND OWNER FOR ANNEXATION OF 3.483 ACRES OF LAND IN THE 
EUGENE WHEAT SURVEY, A-396, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS.   
Executive Summary: City staff has received a petition from Lennar Homes, property owner of 
Walnut Creek (Fort Bend County MUD No. 152) for the voluntary annexation of 3.483 acres 
and disannexation of 8.709 acres as seen in the documents and vicinity map included in the 
agenda packet.  The main purpose of the request is to not have developable properties that 
are in multiple jurisdictions.  This could be beneficial not only to the developer, but also to the 
City by avoiding confusion as to what entity (City or County) is responsible for maintenance, 
emergency response, and other issues.  Further, despite being smaller in size than the 
proposed disannexation tract (3.483 acres versus 8.709), the proposed annexation tract had 
a higher taxable value for 2014 ($242,170) than the disannexation tract (est. $3,136), so this 
would result in a net fiscal gain to the City. 
 
However, before taking any action on the annexation or disannexation, a Resolution must first 
be passed accepting the filing of the petition for annexation.  Resolution No. R-1991 is 
regarding the acceptance of the petition for annexation only and does not provide for the 
disannexation request; annexation and disannexation have different requirements per the 
City Charter.  If passed, separate ordinances for annexation and disannexation of the 
proposed property will be placed on the July 21, 2015 City Council Agenda.  Staff 
recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1991. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development, gave an 
overview of the item. 
 
Action:  Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor Wallingford, to approve 
Resolution No. R-1991, a Resolution accepting the filing of a petition by land owner for 
annexation of 3.483 acres of land in the Eugene Wheat Survey, A-396, Fort Bend County, 
Texas. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

5.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1984, A RESOLUTION AWARDING BID 
NO. 2015-09, FOR CONSTRUCTION OF 16-INCH WATER LINE EXTENSION – BRYAN ROAD TO 
FUTURE ELEVATED STORAGE TANK; AND, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS AND/OR AGREEMENTS 
REGARDING SAME.  
Executive Summary: Bids were received on Wednesday, June 10, 2015, for Bid No. 2015-09 for 
construction of the FM 2977 16-inch Water Line Extension – Bryan Road to Future Elevated 
Storage Tank (Project). A total of eight (8) bids were opened and tabulated as indicated on 
the bid summary form.  
 
Staff recommends Bid No. 2015-09 be awarded to Gonzalez Construction Enterprise, Inc., for 
the base bid and alternate “A” in the total amount of $597,984.73 for construction of the 
Project that will be constructed behind Fire Station No. 3, which is located at the corner of 
August Green Drive and FM 2977 (Minonite Road). The correspondence from Charles 
Kalkomey, Project Engineer, included in the agenda packet recommends same. Should the 
bid be awarded as recommended, the proposal from Gonzalez Construction Enterprise, Inc., 
will be attached and serve as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1984. The contract time is 75 
calendar days.  
 

reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
July 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

D Ordinance No. 2015-23 – MUD No. 152 Disannexation  

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-23, an Ordinance providing for the disannexation from 
the corporate boundaries of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, of 8.709 acres of land in the Wiley Martin League, 
A-56, Fort Bend County, Texas, pursuant to the petition for disannexation; adjusting the boundaries of 
Council District No. 4 to exclude the tract disannexed hereby; containing certain findings; providing for non-
severability; and establishing an effective date. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  152 (Walnut Creek) 

1. Ordinance No. 2015-23 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of 
Community Development 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

As discussed in the previous Agenda item, City staff received a petition from Lennar Homes, property owner 
of Walnut Creek (Fort Bend County MUD No. 152), for the voluntary annexation of 3.483 acres and the 
disannexation of 8.709 acres.  The purpose the request is to not have developable properties that are in 
multiple jurisdictions.  This could be beneficial not only to the developer and to future homeowners in the 
subdivision, but also to the City by avoiding confusion as to what entity (City or County) is responsible for 
maintenance, emergency response, and other issues.  Despite being larger in size than the proposed 
annexation tract, the disannexation tract had a lower taxable value in 2014, so this should result in a net 
fiscal gain to the City. 
 
On July 07, 2015, City Council passed Resolution No. R-1991 recognizing the petition for annexation.  As 
discussed on July 07, separate ordinances for annexation and disannexation of the proposed property are 
required and have been placed on this Agenda.  Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2015-23, 
thereby disannexing 8.709 acres of land in MUD No. 152 pursuant to the petition. 

 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-23 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, PROVIDING 
FOR THE DISANNEXATION FROM THE CORPORATE BOUNDARIES OF 
THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, OF 8.709 ACRES OF LAND IN THE 
WILEY MARTIN LEAGUE, A-56, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, 
PURSUANT TO THE PETITION FOR DISANNEXATION; ADJUSTING 
THE BOUNDARIES OF COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 4 TO EXCLUDE THE 
TRACT DISANNEXED HEREBY; CONTAINING CERTAIN FINDINGS; 
PROVIDING FOR NON-SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Texas Local Government Code Section 43.142 provides that a home-
rule municipality may dis-annex an area in the municipality according to rules as may be 
provided by the charter of the municipality and not inconsistent with the procedural rules 
prescribed by Chapter 43; and, 
  
 WHEREAS; Section 1.04 of the City Charter provides that the City may dis-annex 
territory by ordinance; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, has received a 
Petition for Disannexation (the “Petition”) regarding 8.709 acres of land in the Wiley Martin 
League, A-56, Fort Bend County, Texas, from the owner of such tract; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds and determines that all requisites for dis-
annexation pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Texas Local Government Code and 
the Home Rule Charter of the City have been followed; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, the petitioner acknowledges, and City Council finds, that the amount 
of property taxes and fees collected by the City during the time the land was located 
within the City is less than or equal to the amount of money that the City has spent for 
the direct benefit of the land during the that period; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, the petitioner acknowledges, and City Council finds, that the petition 
waives any remedies or rights in law or equity pertaining to recovery of property taxes 
and fees collected by the City; and, therefore, the City shall not be required to refund 
any taxes or fees to the petitioner; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the petitioner acknowledges, and City Council finds, that the petition 
does not allege that the City Council failed or refused to provide services or to cause 
services to be provided within the territory with a period required by statute or specified 
in a service plan prepared for the territory; and, therefore, the dis-annexation does not 
fall under the purview of Texas Local Government Code Section 43.141; and, 
  

WHEREAS, the petitioner acknowledges, and City Council finds, that the territory 
to be dis-annexed does not include the dis-annexation of a road or highway; and, 
  



Page 2 of 3 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council hereby further finds and determines that the dis-
annexation of the 8.709 acres is necessary and appropriate and in the best interests of the 
City; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

  Section 1.  The above findings are hereby incorporated for all purposes as if 
each word was set out herein; the petition for dis-annexation is attached hereto as Exhibit 
“A” and is hereby incorporated for all purposes as if it were set out fully herein. 

 
 Section 2.  As of the effective date of this Ordinance, the land and territory 
shown on Exhibit “B” is hereby dis-annexed from the corporate limits of the City of 
Rosenberg, Texas, and said territory as described shall hereafter be removed from the 
boundary limits of said City, and the present boundary limits of said City are altered and 
amended so as to remove the territory from the corporate limits of the City of 
Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
 Section 3. The City Council hereby finds and determines that the property herein 
dis-annexed should be excluded from Council District No. 4 and, in this regard, hereby 
approves the exclusion of such tract and parcel of property from Council District No. 4, and 
directs that the City’s official map depicting the boundaries of the City’s four (4) single-
member district be modified, amended, and redrawn to reflect such exclusion. 
 
 Section 4. As of the effective date of this Ordinance, the land and territory so 
described and so amended shall no longer be part of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and 
the land and territory shall no longer bear any of the taxes levied by the City of 
Rosenberg, Texas, and the future inhabitants thereof shall no longer be entitled to any 
rights or privileges as citizens; nor shall they be bound by the acts, ordinances, 
resolutions, and regulations of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, as such shall be limited in 
application to the citizens and corporate limits of said City. 
 
 Section 5. The City Secretary be, and she is hereby, authorized and directed to 
forthwith cause a certified copy of this Ordinance to be delivered to the County Clerk of 
Fort Bend County, Texas, as required by § 41.0015, TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE. 
 
 Section 6. This Ordinance is not severable. 
 
 Section 7. This Ordinance shall be effective immediately from and after passage. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of ______ “ayes” in favor and _______ 

“noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the ______ day of 

____________ 2015. 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
             
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      
Scott M. Tschirhart, City Attorney 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 

 



janete
Rectangle

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2015-23Page 1 of 3



reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2015-23Page 2 of 3



reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2015-23Page 3 of 3



reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "B" to Ordinance No. 2015-23Page 1 of 5



reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "B" to Ordinance No. 2015-23Page 2 of 5



reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "B" to Ordinance No. 2015-23Page 3 of 5



reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "B" to Ordinance No. 2015-23Page 4 of 5



reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "B" to Ordinance No. 2015-23Page 5 of 5



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

July 21, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

2 Proposed Eagle Scout Project for Brazos Park – Edible Arbor Trail 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Review and discuss a presentation regarding a proposed Eagle Scout Project by Matthew Banse of Troop 
1656 to build an Edible Arbor Trail in Brazos Park, and take action as necessary. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[X] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Presentation – Edible Arbor Trail for Brazos Park 
2. Parks and Recreation Board Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 06-25-15 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

Darren McCarthy 
Parks and Recreation 
Director 

Reviewed by:  
  
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services   
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Support Services  
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On June 25, 2015, at the regularly scheduled Parks and Recreation Board (Board) meeting, Matthew 
Banse, Troop 1656, presented a proposal to build an Edible Arbor Trail (Project) in Brazos Park. The trail 
would include fifteen (15) trees, three (3) of each type, along the path for visitors to enjoy and pick the 
fruits from. The five (5) different types of trees, the Pineapple Pear, Meyer’s Lemon, Satsuma Orange, 
Brown Turkey Fig, and Santa Rosa Plum, were all chosen for their ability to withstand the Texas climate. 
Matthew will build a drip irrigation system for each tree that will allow rain water to be collected. This 
irrigation system would also be covered by netting to prevent debris from entering the system. Matthew’s 
father and uncle will be donating some of the trees and he will be contacting vendors for donations and 
fundraising to complete the Project. Matthew also plans to build signs for visitors to learn about each type 
of tree planted along the trail. The Project is budgeted to be about $870.00. Friends of North Rosenberg 
have endorsed the Project and have offered to assist with the upkeep of the trail. After reviewing the 
presentation, the Board unanimously recommended the Project plan for approval. 
 
Staff and the Parks and Recreation Board recommend approval of the proposed Eagle Scout Project for 
an Edible Arbor Trail at Brazos Park. 
 



Edible Arbor Trail for 
Brazos Park 

By Matthew Banse- Troop 1656 



My Proposal 

• Five varieties of fruit trees along the Brazos Trail  
• Lemon 
• Pear 
• Plum 
• Fig 
• Orange 
 

• 12-15 Trees, or 3 of each kind 
 

• Planning with Mr. Rick Adams, CPCTMN  



Purpose  

• Families can enjoy the fruits in nature 
 

• Attracts more people to the park 
 

• Trees add beauty to the park 
 

• Promotes nature to families  



Pear Tree (Pineapple)  

• Hardy and tough 
 
• Grows up to 25 feet 
 

• Harvest - late summer. 



Lemon Tree (Meyer’s) 

• Citrus fruit 
 
• Native to China 
 
• Lemon / Mandarin orange  
 
• 6 to 10 feet 
 

• Hardy in warm climates 
  
• Harvest - January to February 



Fig Tree (Brown Turkey) 

• 10 to 20 feet tall 
 
• Heat tolerant 
 
• Survives freezing 
temperatures down to 
10 degrees 
 
• Harvest - late June 



Orange Tree (Satsuma)  

• Hardy trees 
 

• Survives down to 30 degrees 
 

• 20 to 35 feet tall 
 

• Harvest - February to March  



Plum Tree (Santa Rosa) 

• Harvest - mid July 
 
• 18 to 20 feet tall 
 
• Heat tolerant 
 

• Only needs rain water 



Possible source for trees 

• Help from family: 
• Grandfather offered to try and graft some trees 
• Uncle offered to supply some orange trees 
 

• Aiming for low costs: 
• Checking the local nurseries for donations 
• 5 gallon size trees are $20-$25 dollars each 



Satellite image of Brazos Park 
(courtesy of google maps) 



Drip irrigation 

• Watering/irrigation system for each tree 
• Five gallon bucket 
• Two layers of three bricks 
• Gravity draws water out 
 

• Hose access to the tree 
• Slow release for continual hydration 
 

• Similar  system in Seabourne Creek 
Nature Park. 



Informational Signs 

• Informational sign for each variety of tree  
 

• Sign for the front entrance of the park 
• Logo of Rosenberg  
• Welcome to Brazos Park Edible Arbor Trail 
• Completed by 
 

• Sign materials: 
• 10x14 040 aluminum. 
• Concrete 
• Pole  

  



Sign example  

• Missouri City 
Edible Arbor 
Trail sign 
 

• Sign design will 
be similar 



Sign Concept 

Proposed sign design: 
 
• L shaped angle iron or steel tubing 
 

• 10X14 in size  
 

• 0.40 aluminum 
 

• 3 to 4 feet above ground 



Time line 

JUNE/JULY 
• Begin fundraising 
• Acquire trees from vendors 

and relatives  
 
SEPTEMBER 
• Pre planting maintenance on 

trees 
• Gather supplies 

 

OCTOBER 
• Continue tree maintenance 
• Sign construction 
• Irrigation bucket building 

 
 

NOVEMBER 
• Work days to plant trees 
• Contact 811 before any 

digging is done 



Work Days 

• Working hours: 9:30am - 3:30pm, with a lunch break. 
 

• Project breakdown: 
• Day 1: Build signs 
• Day 2: Build irrigation buckets 
• Day 3: Plant trees 
 

• Any delay may cause another day of work. 



SAFETY!!!!! 

• Safety procedures with the workers 
 

• Demonstrations on how to use the tools  
 

• Tools will be given to the appropriate scouts 
 

• Small tractor may be used with a post hole digger attachment 
• Operated by my father 



Estimated Budget 

Materials:   
   Trees  $     300.00  
   Mulch, T-posts, Buckets, Hoses, Fasteners  $     150.00  
Supplies:     
   Snacks, Water, First Aid Kit, Garbage Bags  $       50.00  
Tools:     
   To plant the trees  $              -    
Other:   
   Signs and Concrete  $     370.00  
      

TOTAL   $     870.00 



Overview 

• I propose to plant fruit trees of multiple varieties, 
including Lemon, Pear, Plum, Fig, Orange. 

• My purpose for this project is so that families can come 
out and pick the fruits while enjoying the park. 

• My sources for the trees will be either my grandfather, 
my uncle, Caldwell Nursery, or a mix of all. 

• There will be a drip irrigation system for the trees. 
• I would like to put up informational signs for the trees. 





CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
July 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

3 
Appointments to City of Rosenberg Boards, Committees and 
Commissions 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on appointments to the following Boards, Committees and Commissions: 
a) Planning Commission; 
b) Animal Control Shelter Advisory Board; 
c) Building and Standards Board; 
d) Image Committee; and, 
e) Parks and Recreation Board. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ]  Recurring 
[X]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Advertisement - City of Rosenberg Calling for Volunteers – May 31, June 7, and June 14, 2015 
2. List of Current Committee Members and Applicants - 07-10-15 
3. 2015 Committee Applications and Committee List (Previously provided under separate cover) 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:  

 
Linda Cernosek 
City Secretary 

Reviewed by:  
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:  
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Each year the City Council appoints and reappoints members to the City’s Boards, Committees, and 
Commissions (Committees) that are to be appointed or reappointed for that particular year.  Attached is a 
list of current Committee members and applicants, the advertisement published in the Fort Bend Herald 
newspaper on May 31, June 7 and June 14, 2015, and on the City’s webpage.  The deadline for 
applications was Friday, June 19, 2015. The 2015 Committee Applications were previously sent to City 
Council under separate cover and included a cover sheet with a brief description of each of the 
Committees that are being appointed/reappointed.  The applications were received from current and new 
applicants for the specific Committee(s) they are interested in serving. 
 
Included is the current City of Rosenberg Committee List for those Committee positions that are to be 
appointed/reappointed at this time. 
 





2015 Committee Appointments 
and 

New Applications 
 
 

Animal Control Shelter Advisory Board 
(Per Texas Health and Safety Code, Section 823.005, membership is comprised of at least one licensed 

verterinarian, one county or municipal official, one person whose daily duties include the daily operation of 
an animal shelter and one representative from an animal welfare organization.) 

 
Current Members:  Staff: Jackie Jurasek, Renee McAnally, and David Mirelez; Dr. William Hester, DVM; Joni 
Huff; and Carolyn Seiler. 
 
Resignations: Joni Poche (deceased) 
 
New Applicants: 
• Laura M. Knizner 
• Tammy Nelson 

 
 

Building and Standards Board 
(Members serve two-year terms/no staggered terms) 

Meetings held as needed, at Rosenberg Civic Center 
Staff: Building Official 

 
Current Members: Robert Duran (Contractor); Devin Koeppen (Utility Representative); Walter Urbish 
(Master Electrician). 
 
Resignations: Howard Stinnett (Citizen At Large); Tim Sweat (Mechanical Rep HVAC); and Charlie Wenzel 
(Master Plumber). 
 
New Applicants: 
• Cowboy Bill (Citizen At Large) 
• Cathi Cross (Citizen At Large) 
• Phillip Grudziecki (Master Plumber) 
• Shawn Schulze (Mechanical Rep HVAC) 

 
 

Image Committee 
(Established in 1994) (One year term) 

Meetings held third Monday of month, at 6:00 p.m., Rosenberg Civic Center 
Council Representative:  Councilor Benton (voting member, effective 9/2/2014) 

Staff: Executive Director of Support Services, and Citizen Relations Coordinator (staff support) 
 

Current Members:  Joyce Bartos; Linda Carroll; Rufus Guebara III; Stanley Kucherka; Rose Pickens; Sergio 
Villagomez; and Lisa Wallingford 
 
Resignations/No response:  Cowboy Bill (resigned); Lisa McGarity, Chamber (no response); Austin 
Hernandez/Student Advisory (graduated); Howard Stinnett (resigned); Lila Villagomez (applied for another 
board) 
 
New Applicants: 
• Cathi Cross 
• Eric Ramirez 
 
 
 Attendance Schedule of Members 

 



Parks and Recreation Board 
(Established December 1962, then by Ordinance (19)84-30 called for 7-13 members; recommendation is to 

have no more than 9 members for quorum purposes. 
Members serve a one-year term)  

Meetings held fourth Thursday of month at 6:00 p.m. at the Rosenberg Civic Center 
(Merged Special Event Members into Parks Board 2/18/2014) 

Council Representative:  Councilor Barta (voting member effective 09-02-2014) 
Staff:  Executive Director of Support Services, Parks and Recreation Director, 

Recreation Program Coordinator 
 
 

Current Members:  William Allen; Teresa Bailey; Melissa Dixon; Rudy Guerrero; Bertha Nell Kelm; Stanley 
Kucherka; Raymond Kueck; Eric Ramirez; Julia Worley and George Zepeda 
 
Resignations/No response:  Eric Juarez (no response) 
 
New Applicants: 
• Celerina “Lila” Villagomez 
 
 
 Attendance Schedule of Members 

 
 

Planning Commission 
(Established by Charter – Members serve two-year terms – Appointed in odd numbered years, after Council 

election) Commissioners may not serve on any other City committees 
Meetings held on fourth Wednesday of month, at 4:00 p.m., in City Hall Council Chamber. 

Council Ex-Officio: Councilor McConathy   Staff:  Executive Director of Community Development 
 

Current Members:  Alicia Casias; Michael Parsons; Pete Pavlovsky; Lester Phipps, Jr.; Wayne Poldrack; James 
Urbish 
 
Resignations/No response:  None. 
 
New Applicants: 
• Charlotte Davis 
• Joe Hernandez 
• Steven Monk 
• Marcus Morales 
• Lisa Wallingford 
• George Zepeda 
 
 
 Attendance Schedule of Members 

 
 

*Note that Lisa Wallingford applied for committees prior to being elected to the City Council. 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
July 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

4 
Resolution No. R-2003 – Designating West Fort Bend Management 
District Director 

 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2003, a Resolution designating a Director to the West 
Fort Bend Management District Board of Directors for a four-year term, beginning June 01, 2015, and 
ending June 01, 2019. 
 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ]  Recurring 
[X]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #: N/A 

 
1. Resolution No. R-2003 
2. Bronsell Correspondence – 06-29-15 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by: 
 
 
Cynthia A. McConathy/rl 
 
Cynthia A. McConathy 
Mayor 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services   
[   ] City Attorney  
[   ]City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   
 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The West Fort Bend Management District (the “District”) has requested that the City appoint an applicant to 
serve as a Board Director for a four-year term to run from June 01, 2015, to June 01, 2019.  Anthony Sulak 
currently serves as Rosenberg’s representative on the District’s Board of Directors. Per the attached 
correspondence from Mandi Bronsell, Executive Director of the District, the legislation creating the District, Texas 
Special District Local Laws Code Section 3835.052, provides that the City will appoint the District’s Directors 
from persons recommended by the District’s Board of Directors. 
 
Two (2) applications were received by the District for the new term:  Anthony Sulak and Ronald E. Ewer. The 
proposed Resolution No. R-2003 will allow City Council to designate the Rosenberg representative to serve on 
the District Board of Directors for a four-year term.  The applications for Mr. Sulak and Mr. Ewer are attached to 
the correspondence from Ms. Bronsell for City Council’s review and consideration.   
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2003 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, DESIGNATING A DIRECTOR TO THE WEST 
FORT BEND MANAGEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR 
A FOUR-YEAR TERM, BEGINNING JUNE 01, 2015, AND ENDING 
JUNE 01, 2019. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. That ______________________ is hereby designated as the City’s 

Director to the West Fort Bend Management District Board of Directors for a four-year 

term, to commence June 01, 2015, and end June 01, 2019. 

Section 2. That the Executive Director of the West Fort Bend Management 

District shall notify the herein above named Director. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 

 

              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary   Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor 
 













CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
July 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

5 FY2016 Budget Presentation and Discussion 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss presentation regarding the City’s FY2016 Budget/Rosenberg Development 
Corporation’s FY2016 Budget, and take action as necessary. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Proposed City and RDC Budget documents to be provided at the City Council Meeting 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   
 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 
 

 
Joyce Vasut 
Executive Director of 
Administrative Services 
 

Reviewed by: 
   
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This Agenda item allows the City Manager to submit the FY2016 Proposed Budget for the City of 
Rosenberg and the Rosenberg Development Corporation (RDC) to the City Council.  The Executive 
Director of Administrative Services will present the highlights of the FY2016 Proposed Budgets.  City 
Council will be given the opportunity to review and discuss the Proposed Budgets during the presentations 
prepared for future meetings, workshops and public hearings. 
 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

July 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

6 
Resolution No. R-2005 – Sanitary Sewer Pipe Bursting Project 
Engineering Services Contract  

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2005, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Contract for Engineering Services for Phase II – Sanitary Sewer 
Pipe Bursting Project for engineering and surveying services for the Sanitary Sewer Pipe Bursting Project, 
by and between the City and Kelly R. Kaluza and Associates, Inc., in the amount of $446,500.00. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [X] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:  

423-0000-550-7032 (CP1514) 

[X] District 1 
[X] District 2 
[X] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Resolution No. R-2005 
2. Project Location Map – Phase II 
3. Wastewater Treatment Plant 1-A Service Area Map 
4. Wastewater Treatment Plant 1-A Collection Line Rehab Cost Estimate 
5. Resolution No. R-1997 – 07-07-15 
6. City Council Meeting Minute Draft Excerpt – 07-07-15 
7. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 01-28-14 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:  

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
  
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

During the January 28, 2014, City Council Workshop, staff provided information regarding the overall 
condition of the sanitary sewer collection system within the Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 1A service 
area. Cost estimates to replace the remainder of the sewer collection system lines, certain lift stations, and 
replacement of the chemical disinfection system at the wastewater treatment plant were also provided. 
The overall objective is to complete the rehabilitation work in this service area within the next three (3) to 
four (4) year period. This Project is included in the FY2016 Capital Improvement Plan approved by City 
Council as Resolution No. R-1997 on July 07, 2015.  
 
The proposed Sanitary Sewer Pipe Bursting Project (Project) – Phase II is the next phase of the sewer 
collection system line replacement. This Project will continue replacement of collection system lines south 
of Avenue F. This Project is necessary to maintain compliance with Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality (TCEQ) regulations regarding sanitary sewer overflows and increased inflow/infiltration flows 
experienced during rain events. The 2014 Certificates of Obligation Phase I Capital Project balance has 
sufficient funding for the engineering services. Upon completion of the engineering design and bidding 
process, the construction bid award would be placed on a future Agenda for City Council consideration 
and approval. The preliminary construction cost estimate for this phase of the Project is approximately 3.3 



million dollars. The construction will be funded with proceeds from proposed Certificates of Obligation, 
which will also be presented at a future City Council Meeting prior to December 31, 2015. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2005, authorizing the City Manager to execute a Contract 
for Engineering Services for Sanitary Sewer Pipe Bursting Project – Phase II with Kelly R. Kaluza & 
Associates, Inc., for the engineering and surveying services for the Sanitary Sewer Pipe Bursting Project, 
in the amount of $446,500.00.  
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2005 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, A CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR PHASE II 
- SANITARY SEWER PIPE BURSTING PROJECT FOR ENGINEERING 
AND SURVEYING SERVICES FOR THE SANITARY SEWER PIPE 
BURSTING PROJECT, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND KELLY R. KALUZA AND ASSOCIATES, 
INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF $446,500.00. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rosenberg hereby authorizes the 

City Manager to execute a Contract for Engineering Services for Phase II - Sanitary 

Sewer Pipe Bursting Project (Contract) for the engineering and surveying services for 

the Sanitary Sewer Pipe Bursting Project, by and between the City of Rosenberg, 

Texas, and Kelly R. Kaluza & Associates, Inc., in the amount of $446,500.00. 

 Section 2. A copy of said Contract is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made 

a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Cynthia A. McConathy, MAYOR 
 
 



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2005 

Page 1 of 14



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2005 

Page 2 of 14



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2005 

Page 3 of 14



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2005 

Page 4 of 14



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2005 

Page 5 of 14



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2005 

Page 6 of 14



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2005 

Page 7 of 14



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2005 

Page 8 of 14



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2005 

Page 9 of 14



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2005 

Page 10 of 14



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2005 

Page 11 of 14



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2005 

Page 12 of 14



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2005 

Page 13 of 14



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2005 

Page 14 of 14





!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!
! !

!

!!!!!
!!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
! ! ! ! ! ! !

!!
!

!

!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !! !
!

!
!

!
!!

!
!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!!

!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!!
!!!!
!

!
!

!
!

!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!! !

!!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!

! ! !

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!

$1
$1

$1

$1
$1

$1

$1

$1

$1
$1

$1
$1

$1

$1

$1

$1 $1 $1

$1

$1 $1 $1

$1

$1
$1

$1

$1

$1 $1 $1

$1

$1
$1

$1
$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1 $1 $1
$1 $1$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1 $1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1 $1

$1

$1

$1

$1
$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1 $1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1 $1

$1

$1

$1$1

$1

$1

$1

$1
$1

$1

$1

$1
$1

$1 $1

$1$1

$1 $1

$1

$1$1

$1 $1
$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1
$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1$1

$1

$1

$1
$1

$1

$1

$1$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1
$1 $1 $1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

WWTP #1

LS #4

LS #9

LS #6

LS #5

LS #2

LS #3

LS #15

LS #10

2

8

21

6

12

4

24

10

30

1815

6

10

8

6

12

6

8

6

6

15

8

6

12

6

8

8

8

8

6

8

8

6

8

8

24

15

12

6

8

8

6

10

12

10

8

8

8

8

6

6

8

6

8

12

6

12

6

8

6

8

8

10

8

6

12

8

6

10

8

6

8

4

12

8

8

8

10

12

8

8

8

6

12

8

12

8

10

8

12

6

8

15

8

6

10

8

8

6

10

12

6

8

15

8

12

6

8

8

21

8

15

8

8

12

88

6

10

8

6

8

8

8

6

8

8

6

8

18

8

8

8

8

8
6

12

18

8

6

6

8

8

8

10

10

6

8

12

8

8

8

6

6

18

18

8

6

6

12

8

2

4

12

8

6

8

12

8

6

12

6

8

8

8

6

86

8

8

8

8

10

8

6

6

6

8

8
8

12

6

24

8

6

8

10

8

10

6

10

12

10

8

6

8

12

8

8

6

6

6

6

8

8

8

8

6

12

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

10

8

6

8

8

6

8

8

10

8

6

8

8

8

6

6

8

8

8

6

8

8

6

8

8

8

6

8

88

8

6

15

6

10

8

6

8

6

8

6

8

15

8

15

8
8

8

8

10

12

15

8

8

8

6

6

8

12

8

8

8

8

8

10

8

8

8

8

8

12

8

8

6
10

8

6

8

8

12

8

6

8

12

8

12

8

6

8

8

15

8

10

6

8

10

21

8

8

6

8

8

8

6

8

21

6

8

8

8

8

8

6

8

8

6

15

6

8

8

8

8

8

12

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

24

8

10

12

12

8

8

8

8

8

8

12

8

6

8

8

6

6

30

8

10

8

8

8

18

8

12

6

15

6

12

24

12

8

8

8

8

10

21

6

12

8

6

10

6

12

8

8

8

8

8

6

8

12

8

6

12

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

6

15

8

10

6

8

8

6

12

8

6

6

6

8

8

6

10

6

6

8

12

106

8

12

8

6

15

8

8

6

12

8

15

10

10

88

12
6

12

30

8

8

6

8

8

6

15 15

12

12

18

6

15

6

4

8

8

8

10

6

8

8

8

8

10

8

8

6

10

8

10

8

10

6

10

12

8

12

6

8

18

6

15

8

8

12

8

8

6

12

6

8

6

6

6

12

8

8

8

6

6

6

8

8

8

10

8

8

8

12

6

6

10

8

8

8

6

15

15

6

8

10

6

12

6

8

10

8

8

8

8

8

6

8
8

8

8

6

6

8

8

6

12

8

6

8

12

8

8

10

12

8

8

6

8

8

6

6

10

8

6

8

12

8

12

8

10

12

10

12

10

12

8

8

8

8

8

18

12

8

8

6

10

6

8

6

6

6

8

6

6

8

8 10

12

8

12

12

8

21

12
24

8

10

8

15

12

8

8

12

8

8

12

8

8

8

6

6

8

12

8

8

6

6

6

12

12

8

8

10

8

12

8

12

6

6

8

10

12

8

12

6

10

12

6

8

8

8

12

8

8

12

24

8

8

6

6

12

8

6

6

6

6

8

8

6

8

12

6

6

8

8

8

8

8

8

12

15

8

6

15

6

8

8

12

8

8

8

8

21

6

8

8

12

8

10

10

12

15

18

6

8

8

8

15

8

10

8

12

12

6

15

8

8

10

12

8

8

6

6

10

15

12

8

8

8

15

12

18

10

8

8

8

6

8

8

8

8

12

8

8

8

8

12

6

6

10

8

10

15

8

8

6

12

8

12

10

8

8

6

12

6

12

6

8
8

8

8

10

10

8

6

12

8

6

10

18

12
12

8

8

8

12

8

8

6

6

6

6

8

6

6

8

8

6

8

6

6

21

6

8

8

6

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

10

8

12

12

6

6

10

6

12

8

8

8

6

6

8

8

8

8

6

10

6

8

6

6

12

8

10

10

8

15

6

8

8

6

8

8

8

8

12

6

12

6

8

6

8
10

8

6

8

8

6

8

12

6

8

6

8

8

10

8

10

6

8

8

8

8

12

8

8

10

8

8

8

8

8

6

8

8

8

8

10

8

12

6

6

8

8

12

8

12

12

30

8

10

8

6

6

12

8

6

8

15

8

8

6

8

8

6

8

8

8

12

24

8

10

8

8

6

8

6

8

8

6

6

6

8

8

12

24

8

10

6

8

6

12

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

6

6

6

8

12

8

6

8

6

8

8

8

10

15

8

8

6

6

6

8

8

8

10

8

12

12

12

6

12

6

10

15

8

8

8

8

10

21

6

8

12

6

6

15

8

8

6

24

8

15

8

12

6

8

8

8

10

6

8

8

6

8

18

6

6

6

6

8

8

8

68

8

12

12

8

15

8

6

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

10

6

8

8

8

8

6

6

8
8

8

6

15

6

6

8

8

8

10

6

8

24

8

6

6

8

8

10

12

8

8

8

8

10

10

8

8

8

10

8

8

8

6

8

8

8

8

8

8

10

10

8

2

6

6

10

8

6

8

8

8

15

8

8

10

10

10

12

6

8

10

10

8

8

6

18

8

6

8

10

8

6

8

6

12

6

10

6

8

8

8

12

10

6

15

6

6

8

6

8

18

8

8

10

6

6

8

12

8

6

8

6

15

8

8

6

6

12

8

6

12

8

8

8

8

8

12

10

6

8

8

8

6

8

8

6

8

6

6

12

6

12

8

6

12

8

12

15

12

10

8

8

8

10

8

8

8

15

8

6

18

8

8

6

10

8

10

15

8

12

8

8

8

10

8

15

8

12 12

15

8

6

10

8

6

6

15

6

15

8

8

12

8

12

12 12

8

6

6

15

8

8

12

8

6

15

8

15

12

8

8

12

10

8

4

10

8

8

6

8

12

8

8

12

6

10

15

8

8

6

6

6

10

21

6

6

8

8

10

10

8

8 6

6

8

8

8

15

10

8

6

6

8

8

8

8

10

10

10

12

8

10

10

6

8

8

8

15

8

6

8

6

8

8

6

6

8

8

10

8

8

12

12

8

6

8
8

10

8

12

8

8

8

8

10

12

8

6

8

8

8
8

21

8

10

8

6

8

8

8

12

8

6

8

6

12

8

6

6

8

6

6

12

8

8

8

8

15

8

8

8

8

15

12

10

8

12

8

8

8

6

8

8

8

8

6

8

6

8

12

8

8

15

8

6

8

12

8

8

12

10

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

10

8

6

6

8

6

12

6

8

12

8

6

8

8

8

8

6

8

10

8

8

6

8

8

15

8

12

8

8

6

6

15

8

12

8

8

12

6

6

6
6

6

8

8

8

8

8

8

6

8

8

6

8

6

8

6

8

8

2

8

10

6

6

8

8

15

10

15

10

10

6

6

10

8

12

8

6

6

8

6

6

12

8

8

6

8

6

8

6

6

6

6

8

8

8

12

8

6

12

12
6

12

12

8

12

12

6

10

6

12

15

8

8

12

8

8

8

8

8

6

8

12

6

8

12

8

8

18

6

8

15

8

6

8 6

6

12

8

8

10

12

8

4

8

8

8

8

8

8

12

8

8

8

6

12

8
6

8

8

6

8

12

10

AVE I

AVE H

4TH

AVE N

FM
 723

8TH

6TH

LA
N

E

7TH

5TH

AVE D

B
A

M
O

R
E

AIRPORT

B
LU

M
E

AVE G

LO
U

IS
E

B 
F 

TE
RR

Y

MONS

W
EST

B
A

K
ER

W
A

R
D

US 59

OLD
 R

IC
HMOND

READING

LA
M

A
R

R
A

D
IO

R
IV

ER
W

O
O

D

2N
D

AVE J

SH 36

AVE F

AVE K

MUSTANG

WALNUT

MAIN

TOWN CENTER

US 90A

1ST

JO
N

ES

JA
CK

SO
N

11TH

DALLAS

AVE R

FR
O

ST

DYER

9TH

WALGER

BROOKS

FORT

AVE O

AVE M

AVE P

3R
D

TEXAS

C
R

IS

LO
N

G

CAY

SPUR 529

SALLY ANN

KLAUKE

AVE A

G
EO

R
G

E

PRESTON

C
O

LE

L W CUMINGS

JUNKER

SOUTHWEST

D
A

M
O

N

M
ILLIE

SOUTHGATE

LINDSEY

C
U

M
IN

G
S

PARROTT

FRANCES

U
N

IO
N

THO
M

PSO
NS

A
LLEN

AVE E

TH
IR

D

FM 1640

FM
 22

18

WILSON

MORTON

AVE C

PERRY

KLARE

TO
B

O
LA

EASY

W
INSTO

N
TIMBERLANE

BERNIE

LEAMAN

10TH CALHOUN

SEC
O

N
D

R
IVER

 R
O

A
D

HOMESTEAD

R
U

STIC

A
U

R
ELIA

TRAVIS

LA
ZY

G
R

A
EB

ER

DI
VI

N

M
A

H
LM

A
N

RYCHLIK

LAUREL

C
O

LLIN
S

WALENTA

LAW
R

EN
C

E

LAUREL OAKS

HERNDO
N

WALID

QUEBEC

D
AV

ID

LO
R

Y

BERNARD

DAVIS

SPRUCE

G
EO

R
G

IA
N

A

PARMA

A
U

STIN

MAGNOLIA

WILBURN

M
EB

A
N

E

JA
M

ES

HE
M

PL
E

WOODWAY

ELIZABETH

COTTER

SA
N

 C
A

R
LO

S

C
H

U
PIK

H
ILL

C
ED

A
R

HOUSTON

HAMBLEN

ELM

HA
W

TH
O

RN

JEN
N

ETTA M
ILES

RI
CH

AR
D

A
LA

M
O

MEHRENS

TE
R

ES
A

LIVE OAK

AL
LW

RI
G

HT

PECAN

REINHARD

TA
LA

SEK

CHESTNUT

MADISON

M
A

N
O

R

C
YPR

ESS

MONROE

C
R

ESTW
O

O
D

SEQ
U

O
IA

WILLOW

M
U

LC
A

H
Y

12TH

COLUMBARY

CANDLER

CITY HALL

PEC
A

N
 PA

R
K

H
EATH

ER
W

AY

SA
N

 JA
C

IN
TO

VICTO
RIA

W
IN

NIP
EG

GRILLO

SIDNEY

B
R

A
ZO

S

B
ES

TW
AY

R
U

B
Y

LIBERTY

MARILY
N

VA
NCOUVER

C
O

U
R

TN
EY

MULBERRY

RAW
SO

M

AVE B

GLENMEADOW

LLO
YD

H
O

R
A

C
E M

A
N

N

SW FWY - US 59
BRUMBELO

W

C
A

R
LISLE

WESTWOOD

D
O

U
G

LA
S

MATAMOROS

M
C

 A
R

TH
U

R

H
A

B
IT

AT

DUDLEY

HILLCREST

TU
R

TL
E 

C
R

EE
K

O
A

K
 C

R
EE

K

FM 3155O
AK

S O
N THE BR

AZO
S

INWOOD

GRAND CANE

SIXTH

KE
NT

 V
AL

LE
Y

FR
EEW

AY M
A

N
O

R

BURNETT

M
A

H
LM

A
N

N

H
O

LLY

O
A

K

ARCHER RANCH

ED
IT

H
HUISACHE

FISHER BEND

TEAKWOOD

WOODROW

FOSTER

AVE L

DOW
LING

M
C

 K
IN

LEY

M
ELLO

N

H
A

M
ILTO

N

MIMOSA

C
IR

C
LE

AZALEA

DELTA

DAMASCUS

BRIDLE  P
ATH

RICHWOOD

G
R

A
N

T

C
O

R
PO

R
ATE

AVE S

N
EW

ELL

AVE Q

LEE

R
O

C
H

ELLE

GARDENIA

TR
U

M
A

N

TO
W

NS
HI

P

M
O

N
TE

R
R

EY

G
RA

YS
O

N 
RU

N

HI
CK

O
RY

HAPPY VALLEY

C
LA

R
K

CREOLE BAY

W
O

O
D

LA
N

D
 VILLA

G
E

JO
H

N
SO

N ORANGE BLOSSOM

FA
LLEN

 R
EED

C
A

N
TO

N

PLAZA WEST

M
IS

TL
ET

O
E

CAMBRIDGE

M
O

SS B
LU

FF

2N
D

AVE G

C
ED

A
R

AVE R

LIBERTY

M
A

G
N

O
LI

A

H
O

U
STO

N

KLA
UKE

AVE C

A
LL

EN

8TH

8TH

TO
B

O
LA

8TH

A
LA

M
O

UNIO
N

TH
IR

D

W
EST

10TH

MAIN

COLUMBARY

R
U

B
Y

AVE F

B
R

A
ZO

S

PECAN

W
EST

AVE N

AVE L

AVE E

2N
D

M
ILES

MAIN

BURNETT

ELIZABETH

BERNIE

AVE N

5TH

A
LLEN

AVE P

H
O

U
STO

N

AVE K

AVE B

C
R

IS

LO
U

ISE

ELM

AVE M

US 59

BROOKS

C
A

R
LISLE

AVE E

TRAVIS

5T
H

6TH

M
U

LC
A

H
Y

4TH

AVE A

4TH

SOUTHWEST

D
A

M
O

N

KLA
UKE

FR
O

ST

AUSTIN

1ST

A
U

STIN

D
U

D
LEY

M
ILLIE

W
IL

LO
W

READING

C
YPR

ESS

C
H

ESTN
U

T

L W CUMINGS

7TH

W
ES

T

K
LA

U
K

E

AVE L

4TH

LEAMAN

CYPRESS

7TH

9TH

W
A

R
D

3R
D

3R
D

AVE L

AVE K

JA
M

ES

SA
N

 JA
C

IN
TO

AVE O

AVE J

       LEGEND       
FBCAD Parcal

Rosenberg City Limits

WWTP 1A Service Area

!? Lift Station

Wastewater Treatment Plant

Sanitary Sewer Connection
Manhole

$1 Cleanout

Manhole (Previously Rehabed)

$1 Cleanout (Previously Rehabed)

Sanitary Sewer Line
To Be Rehabed

2008 Rehab

2009 Rehab

2010 Rehab

2011 Rehab

2013 Rehab

! ! ! Forcemain

VICINITY MAP
Scale: 1 inch equals 5 miles

P:
\P

R
O

JE
C

TS
\R

00
01

 - 
C

ity
 o

f R
os

en
be

rg
\0

14
0-

00
 - 

W
W

TP
 1

A
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
S

ys
te

m
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
\C

iv
il\

Ex
hi

bi
ts

\W
W

TP
1A

_R
eh

ab
_3

6x
48

.m
xd

   
   

   
 P

ro
je

ct
 N

um
be

r:
 R

00
01

-0
14

0-
00

This product is offered for informational purposes and may not have been
prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the
approximate relative location of property, governmental and/or political
boundaries or related facilities to said boundary.  No express warranties
are made by Jones & Carter, Inc. concerning the accuracy completeness,
reliability, or usability of the information included within this exhibit.

Coordinate System: NAD 83 TX S CENTRAL 4204 FEET                
Vertical Datum: NAVD 1988                           

Disclaimer:

1 inch equals  500 f ee t

CITY OF ROSENBERG
FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS

WWTP 1A
SANITARY SEWER

CONDITIONS

.



Total Rehabed To Be Rehabed Rehab Cost

Sanitary Sewer Lines (lf) 251,088 84,164 166,924 $9,030,000

Manholes 586 183 403 $430,000

Services 1,766  included in line costs

Total Construction $9,460,000

Contingencies (15%) $1,420,000

Engineering $1,630,000

Total $12,510,000

CITY OF ROSENBERG
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 1A SERVICE AREA

COLLECTION LINE REHAB

reneel
Text Box
Rehabbed

reneel
Text Box
To Be Rehabbed



RESOLUTION NO. R -1997

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

ROSENBERG, TEXAS, APPROVING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

PRIORITIES FOR FY2016. 

WHEREAS, the City staff of the City of Rosenberg has identified its priorities for

Capital Improvement Projects; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has recommended twenty -three ( 23) Capital

Improvement Projects to be addressed in FY2016; and, 

WHEREAS, the FY2016 Budget will include funding for the majority of the

recommended Capital Improvement Projects and recommendations for funding other

projects; now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. City Council hereby approves the FY2016 Capital Improvements

Plan for the City of Rosenberg which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and made a part

hereof for all purposes. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this

it
day of 2015. 

ATTEST: 

Lynda Cernosek, City Secretary

F. ....... Eti 

o

RG, 

APPROVED: 

Cynthia McConathy, Vayor



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R -1997

FY2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

GENERAL /STREETS AND DRAINAGE PROJECTS

1. Airport Avenue — Phase Two

2. Avenue C Connector from 8`h Street to River Road

3. Bamore Road Connector to 1 - 69

4. Bryan Road

5. Dry Creek Drainage Improvements

6. FM 2218 from 1 - 69 to State Highway 36 (TxDOT) 

7. Old Richmond Road /lennetta Street and Avenue F Drainage

8. Railroad Quiet Zones

9. Sidewalks — Replace / Removal of Existing

10. Spacek Road Improvements — Phase Two

11. State Highway 36 from 1 - 69 to FM2218 ( TxDOT) 

12. Traffic Signal at Reading Road and Town Center Boulevard

13. Traffic Signal for Reading Road at Spacek Road

14. US Highway 59/ 1 - 69 Expansion from FM 762 to Beasley (TxDOT) 

WATER AND WASTEWATER PROJECTS

Alternate Water Projects (GRP): 

15. A Meyer Road / Benton Road / Rohan Road Waterline Extensions /Oversizing ( GRP) 

16. Chloramine Conversion System ( GRP) 

17. FM 2977 Water Storage Tank (GRP) 

18. Water Plant No. 8 ( GRP) 

Other Water and Wastewater Projects: 

19. North Side Water Improvements — Phase Three

20. Spacek Road Sewer Lift Station

21. Spacek Road Sewer Line

22. Utility Adjustments for 1 - 69 Improvement Project (TxDOT) 

23. WWTP 1A Collection System — Phase Two



Page 10 of 11 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * July 7, 2015 * DRAFT * 

 
Key Discussion Points: Joyce Vasut read the Executive Summary and explained that passing 
this Resolution does not mean that all of the projects will be funded; rather, it gives staff a 
priority list for guidance when trying to fund as many of the projects as possible. Ms. Vasut 
requested clarification from Council regarding their wishes with the Firewall, which Council 
stated is a priority to fund prior to a technology audit, along with ticket writers, if possible. 
 
Action:  Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Moses, to approve 
Resolution No. R-1996, a Resolution approving FY2016 Budget Priorities. The motion carried by 
a unanimous vote. 
 

12.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1997, A RESOLUTION APPROVING 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN PRIORITIES FOR FY2016.  
Executive Summary: During the FY2016 Budget process, staff reviewed the current Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP) and is recommending that a total of twenty-three (23) projects be 
addressed in FY2016. Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1997 lists the twenty-three (23) individual 
projects. The Planning Commission met on May 20, 2015, and also recommended approval of 
the projects proposed for the FY2016 CIP.  These projects were also presented to City Council 
at the June 23, 2015 City Council Workshop. 
 
Existing funding is available for eleven (11) of the Capital Projects.  Three (3) projects can be 
funded using General Fund Balance which will require a budget adjustment at a future 
meeting. The Railroad Quiet Zones Project is awaiting additional costing information before 
funding can be determined.   
 
There are several remaining Capital Projects which are not completely funded.  Funding for 
these projects may include the issuance of Certificates of Obligation, as follows: 
 

� Issue Certificates of Obligation – November 2015 - $4,915,200  
             (to be paid with Subsidence Fees) 

o Chloramine Conversion System (GRP) - $376,200 
o Water Plant No. 8 (GRP) - $4,539,000 

 
� Issue Certificates of Obligation – November 2015 - $5,000,000 

             (to be paid with Water/Wastewater fees) 
o WWTP 1A Collection System (Phase Two) - $5,000,000 

 
� Issue Certificates of Obligation - March 2016 - $5,612,000  

o Bryan Road – $2,300,000 
o Spacek Road Improvements - Phase II – $312,000 
o Old Richmond Road/Jennetta Street and Avenue F Drainage - $3,000,000 

 
� Issue Certificates of Obligation – March 2016 - $4,317,000 

             (to be paid with Water/Wastewater fees) 
o Spacek Road Sewer Lift Station - $2,617,000 
o Spacek Road Sewer Line - $1,700,000 

 
The actual details regarding the issuance of Certificates of Obligation, including the dollar 
amounts and timing of the issues, will be analyzed and strategized during the first quarter of 
FY2016 to determine the best options for the City.   
 
Approval of Resolution No. R-1997 will establish the City’s FY2016 Capital Improvements Plan 
and allow for the projects to be properly included in the proposed FY2016 Budget.  Staff 
recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1997. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Joyce Vasut read the Executive Summary. 
 
Action:  Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Barta, to approve 
Resolution No. R-1997, a Resolution approving Capital Improvement Plan priorities for FY2016. 

reneel
Rectangle



Page 11 of 11 * Regular City Council Meeting Minutes * July 7, 2015 * DRAFT * 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
       Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  

The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

13.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1998, A RESOLUTION APPROVING 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN PRIORITIES FOR FY2017 THROUGH FY2020.  
Executive Summary: Pursuant to the City Charter which requires a five-year Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP), staff has prepared a proposed schedule for Capital Projects in 
FY2017, FY2018, FY2019 and FY2020.  The development of the CIP for FY2017 to FY2020 is based 
on several factors, including but not limited to: 
 

� Unfunded Mandates (Fort Bend Subsidence District, TCEQ) 
� Liability/Risk Management including noncompliance violations which subject the City 

to monetary fines, penalties and/or enforcement actions 
� Protect the health, safety and welfare of the citizens and the environment 
� Opportunities to leverage City funds with Fort Bend County Mobility Bond Funds or 

grant funds 
� Quality of life/growth including City parks and City facilities 

   
The proposed FY2017-FY2020 CIP is attached to Resolution No. R-1998 as Exhibit “A”.  Staff 
recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1998. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Joyce Vasut read the Executive Summary. This list is a fluid document 
as serves as a general outline of future needs. 
 
Action:  Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor Moses, to approve 
Resolution No. R-1998, a Resolution approving Capital Improvement Plan priorities for FY2017 
to FY2020. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

14.  This item was considered at the beginning of the Agenda as item 2a. 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1994, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A CONTRACT EXTENSION, 
BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND PATTILLO, BROWN AND HILL, LLP, FOR THE PROVISION OF 
PROFESSIONAL AUDIT SERVICES FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2015, AND 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016.   
 

15.  HOLD EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DELIBERATE THE EMPLOYMENT, EVALUATION, OR DUTIES OF THE 
CITY MANAGER PURSUANT TO SECTION 551.074 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE.  
Action:  Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor Wallingford, to adjourn to 
Executive Session. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 
An Executive Session was held to deliberate the employment, evaluation, or duties of the City 
Manager pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

16.  ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION, RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION, AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
Mayor McConathy adjourned the Executive Session and reconvened into Regular Session at 
9:25 p.m.  
 

17.  ANNOUNCEMENTS. 
� Effective July 21, Announcements will be moved to the beginning of the Agenda. 
� Rosenberg Police Explorers are conducting a competition on July 18, 2015 at Terry 

High School, and are need of volunteers. 
 

18.  ADJOURNMENT. 
There being no further business, Mayor McConathy adjourned the meeting at 9:28 p.m. 

reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

July 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

 7 
Resolution No. R-2006 – Lift Station No. 2 Replacement Engineering 
Services Proposal 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2006, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Proposal for Engineering and Surveying Services for Lift Station 
No. 2 Replacement, by and between the City and Jones and Carter, Inc., in the amount of $290,000.00. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [  ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:   
 
423-0000-550-7031 (CP1515) 

[X] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Resolution No. R-2006 
2. Project Location Map 
3. Resolution No. R-1997 – 07-07-15 – Please refer to previous Agenda item 
4. City Council Meeting Draft Meeting Minute Excerpt – 07-07-15 – Please refer to previous Agenda item 
5. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 01-28-14 – Please refer to previous Agenda item 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

John Maresh 
 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:  
 

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl   
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other)

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
  
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

During the January 28, 2014, City Council Workshop, staff provided information regarding the replacement 
of specific lift stations as a part of the overall discussion regarding the condition of the sanitary sewer 
collection system within the Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 1A service area. The overall objective is to 
complete all of the sewer line rehabilitation work and lift station replacements within the next three (3) to 
four (4) year period.  
 
The replacement of Lift Station No. 2 is now ranked as the highest priority amongst the twenty-seven (27) 
lift stations owned by the City. This particular lift station was originally constructed in the early 1950’s, 
approximately sixty (60) years ago. Some rehabilitation work was performed twenty-nine (29) years ago in 
1986 and that has now exceeded its useful life cycle. Much of the equipment is antiquated and 
repair/replacement parts are becoming increasingly difficult to obtain. This lift station regularly experiences 
operational problems and is not reliable. This is a major lift station and proactive measures should be 
taken in order to prevent a catastrophic failure. Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 
equipment will also be installed at this lift station as a part of this Project.  The SCADA equipment will 
allow for remote system monitoring and control, further improving reliability. This Project is included in the 
FY2016 Capital Improvement Plan approved by City Council as Resolution No. R-1997 on July 07, 2015. 
 
The 2014 Certificates of Obligation Phase I Capital Project balance has sufficient funding for the 
engineering services. Upon completion of the engineering design and bidding process, the construction 
bid award would be placed on a future Agenda for City Council consideration and approval. The 
preliminary construction cost estimate for this phase of the Project is approximately 2.66 million dollars. 



The construction will be funded with proceeds from proposed Certificates of Obligation, which will also be 
presented at a future City Council Meeting prior to December 31, 2015. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2006, authorizing the City Manager to execute a Proposal 
with Jones and Carter, Inc., for the engineering and surveying services for the Lift Station No. 2 
Replacement, including SCADA equipment, in the amount of $290,000.00.  
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2006 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, A PROPOSAL FOR ENGINEERING AND SURVEYING 
SERVICES FOR LIFT STATION NO. 2 REPLACEMENT, BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND JONES AND 
CARTER, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF $290,000.00. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rosenberg hereby authorizes the 

City Manager to execute a Proposal for the Engineering and Surveying Services for the 

Lift Station No. 2 Replacement (Proposal), including SCADA equipment installation, by 

and between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and Jones and Carter, Inc., in the amount 

of $290,000.00. 

 Section 2. A copy of said Proposal is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made 

a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Cynthia A. McConathy, MAYOR 
 
 



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2006 

Page 1 of 7



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2006 

Page 2 of 7



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2006 

Page 3 of 7



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2006 

Page 4 of 7



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2006 

Page 5 of 7



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2006 

Page 6 of 7



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2006 

Page 7 of 7



johnm
Callout
Old Richmond Road

johnm
Callout
US90A / Avenue H

johnm
Callout
Jeannetta Street

johnm
Callout
Lift Station No. 2

johnm
Callout
Fiesta



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
July 21, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

8 Resolution No. R-2007 - Fort Bend County Cooperation Agreement 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2007, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute, for 
and on behalf of the City, a Cooperation Agreement, by and between the City and Fort Bend County 
regarding Urban County Qualification for cooperative participation in the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), HOME Investment Partnership, 
and/or Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) programs. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Resolution No. R-2007 
2. Kindell Correspondence – 07-08-15 
3. Cooperation Agreement – 06-14-94 
4. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 06-07-94 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   
 

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney    DNRBHZ/rl 
[X] Police Chief 
[X] Project Director 
   
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The City of Rosenberg and Fort Bend County (County) entered into a Cooperation Agreement (Agreement) 
on June 14, 1994, which qualified the City to participate with the County in federal Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) programs.  The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) is requesting an updated Cooperation Agreement between the City and Fort Bend County to reflect 
changes to program policies and regulations relating to community development and housing rehabilitation 
assistance programs. 
 
Resolution No. R-2007 would authorize the Mayor to execute a new Agreement with the County, attached 
as Exhibit “A” to said Resolution, for cooperative participation in these HUD grant programs.  Staff 
recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2007 as presented. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2007 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, 
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, A 
COOPERATION AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND FORT BEND COUNTY REGARDING 
URBAN COUNTY QUALIFICATION FOR COOPERATIVE 
PARTICIPATION IN THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 
GRANT (CDBG), HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIP, AND/OR 
EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS GRANT (ESG) PROGRAMS. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 07, 1994, the City of Rosenberg entered into a Cooperation 
Agreement for Fort Bend County for participation in the implementation of the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has 
requested a new Cooperative Agreement to include updates due to changes in policies 
and regulations for said grant programs as part of HUD’s Urban County Qualification 
process; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest for the 
citizens of Rosenberg to enter into an updated Cooperative Agreement with Fort Bend 
County for future participation in HUD grant programs; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rosenberg hereby authorizes the 

Mayor to execute a Cooperation Agreement (Agreement) by and between the City of 

Rosenberg and Fort Bend County, Texas, regarding urban county qualification for 

cooperative participation in the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

grant programs to include CDBG, HOME Investment Partnership, and Emergency 

Solutions Grant (ESG) programs. 

 Section 2. A copy of said Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 

made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
 



2 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Cynthia A. McConathy, MAYOR 
 
 



reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2007





































reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
July 21, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

9 
Resolution No. R-2008 – Authorizing Disannexation Survey for Spacek 
Tracts  

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2008, a Resolution determining a public purpose and 
authorizing funding in an amount not to exceed $3,500 for survey costs related to a proposed 
disannexation petition by the residents of the Spacek Tracts; and, authorizing the City Manager to 
negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, necessary documents and/or agreements to facilitate 
same. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [X] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:    

N/A 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Resolution No. R-2008 
2. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 03-24-15  

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

Scott M. Tschirhart/rl 
 
Scott M. Tschirhart 
City Attorney 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Community Development  

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item has been included on the Agenda to offer City Council an opportunity to consider determining a public 
purpose and authorization of funding, in an amount not to exceed $3,500, for survey costs associated with 
a proposed disannexation petition by some of the residents of a specified part of the real property that was 
annexed by the City on or about November 22, 2011, commonly known as the “Spacek Tracts.”  This 
survey would be a necessary prerequisite for giving public notice and circulating a petition among the 
qualified voters in the affected area pursuant to the City Charter Section 1.04 and Chapter 43 of the Texas 
Local Government Code.  
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2008 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, DETERMINING A PUBLIC PURPOSE AND 
AUTHORIZING FUNDING IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $3,500 
FOR SURVEY COSTS RELATED TO A PROPOSED DISANNEXATION 
PETITION BY RESIDENTS OF THE SPACEK TRACTS; AND, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, 
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, 
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS AND/OR AGREEMENTS TO FACILITATE 
SAME. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Rosenberg lawfully annexed the properties known as the 
Spacek Tracts on or about November 22, 2011, and as set forth in Ordinance No. 2011-
27 attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has received communications from some of the residents of 
the subject properties who wish to be disannexed from the corporate limits of the City of 
Rosenberg; and, 
 
  WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that, due to the specific and 
unusual circumstances presented by this particular annexation, there is a public 
purpose to be served by using public funds to pay for a survey of the portion of the 
Spacek Tracts proposed to be disannexed; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The Rosenberg City Council hereby authorizes funding in an 

amount not to exceed $3,500 for survey costs related to a proposed disannexation 

petition by residents of that portion of the Spacek Tracts that is proposed to be 

disannexed. 

 Section 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute 

any and/or all documentation necessary to facilitate said survey.  

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary   Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor 
 
 



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2008 

Page 1 of 9



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2008 

Page 2 of 9



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2008 

Page 3 of 9



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2008 

Page 4 of 9



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2008 

Page 5 of 9



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2008 

Page 6 of 9



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2008 

Page 7 of 9



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2008 

Page 8 of 9



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2008 

Page 9 of 9









CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
July 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

10 
Resolution No. R-2004 – Interlocal Agreement for Fire Code and 
Investigations  

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2004, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute, for 
and on behalf of the City, an Interlocal Agreement for Fire Code and Investigations by and between the 
City and Fort Bend County, for Fire Code and investigations for Fort Bend County owned or leased 
buildings located within the City Limits of Rosenberg.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Resolution No. R-2004 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Wade Goates 
Fire Chief 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services   
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/wag  
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Resolution No. R-2004 provides the opportunity for City Council to consider an Interlocal Agreement 
(Agreement) with Fort Bend County, by and through the Fort Bend County Fire Marshal, for Fire Code 
enforcement and investigations for Fort Bend County owned or leased buildings in the City of Rosenberg.  
The term of the Agreement, attached to Resolution No. R-2004 as Exhibit “A”, is from the date of 
execution by the last party through midnight on September 30, 2015, and will continue thereafter under the 
same terms and conditions each October 1st unless specifically terminated by either party.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2004, providing authorization for the Mayor to execute an 
Interlocal Agreement by and between the City and Fort Bend County for Fire Code enforcement and 
investigations for Fort Bend County owned or leased buildings in the City of Rosenberg. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2004 
 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON 
BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AN INTERLOCAL 
AGREEMENT FOR FIRE CODE AND INVESTIGATIONS, BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR FIRE CODE AND INVESTIGATIONS IN FORT 
BEND COUNTY OWNED OR LEASED BUILDINGS LOCATED WITHIN THE 
CITY LIMITS OF ROSENBERG. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute, for and on behalf of the 

City of Rosenberg, Texas, an Interlocal Agreement for Fire Code and Investigations 

Between the City of Rosenberg and Fort Bend County (Agreement) for Fire Code and 

Investigations in all Fort Bend County owned or leased buildings within the City Limits of 

Rosenberg. A copy of such Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part 

hereof for all purposes.  

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor 
 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 4 
 

 

 

STATE OF TEXAS  §   

  §  KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

COUNTY OF FORT BEND  §   

 

 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE CODE AND INVESTIGATIONS 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG AND FORT BEND COUNTY 

 

This  Interlocal Agreement  is made by and between Fort Bend County  (“COUNTY”), a political 
subdivision of the State of Texas, acting by and through the Commissioners Court of Fort Bend 
County,  and  the  City  of  Rosenberg  ("LOCAL GOVERNMENT")  a  county, municipality,  special 
district,  or  other  political  subdivision  (including  a  corporate  or  political  Local  Government 
organized under State law), acting by and through its City Council. 

 

WHEREAS,  the  Interlocal  Cooperation  Act,  Chapter  791  of  the  Texas  Government  Code 
authorizes units of local government to contract with one or more units of local government to 
perform government functions and services; 

 

WHEREAS,  this Agreement  is entered  into pursuant  to  the authority, under  the provisions of, 
and  in accordance with, Chapter 791 of  the Texas Government Code,  for  the performance of 
governmental  functions  and  services;  specifically,  fire  code  inspections  and  reviews  which 
promote the shared goal of fire protection in Fort Bend County; 

 

WHEREAS,  County,  by  and  through  the  Fort  Bend  County  Fire Marshal,  provides  fire  code 
inspections and reviews for buildings  located  in the unincorporated areas of Fort Bend County 
and has the capacity to provide these services for certain buildings located within the city limits 
of Local Government; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the  Parties  deem  it  to  be  in  the  best  interest  of  both  entities  to  enter  into  this 
Interlocal Agreement. 

 

In consideration of the foregoing and further consideration of the mutual promises, covenants 
and conditions herein, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

I. Services to be Performed 
 

A. The County, by and through the Fort Bend County Fire Marshal, agrees to provide 
fire  code  inspections  and  reviews  for  all  County  owned  or  leased  buildings 
located within  the  city  limits of  Local Government, which shall  include with all 
incidental acts, procedures, and methods necessary to accomplish the ends of such 
service. 

B. The  Parties  agree  that  the  County  shall  use  the  current  fire  code  adopted  by 
County as the standard for compliance. 

C. County will report all fire code non‐compliance to Local Government, by and 
through, the  Fire Department.  County will  also provide  an annual  report  for 
inspections  and reviews to Local Government no later than October 15 of each 
year. 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2004 

Page 1 of 4



                                                                                                                            
  

 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 

D. Local Government will continue to primary first responder for fire calls. 
 

II. Duration of Agreement 
 

Unless mutually  initiated, cancelled, or terminated earlier with thirty (30) days written notice, 
the term of this Interlocal Agreement will be from the date of execution by the last party until 
midnight  on  September  30,  2015,  and  continuing  thereafter  under  the  same  terms  and 
conditions for additional one year periods beginning each October 1. 

 

III. Compensation 
 

A. County shall retain any fees for fire code inspections and plan reviews performed 
per  this  Agreement  that  would  have  otherwise  been  remitted  to  Local 
Government. 

B. The  Parties  agree  that  the  retained  fees  are  fair  compensation  to  County  for 
the  services  or  functions performed under  the  contract  for  the  services  to be 
provided. 

 
IV. Relationship of Parties 

 

The Parties  intend that County, in performing services specified  in this agreement, shall act as 
an  independent  contractor  and  shall have  control  of  its work  and  the manner  in which  it  is 
performed.  Neither  County,  its  agents,  employees,  volunteer  help  or  any  other  person 
operating  under  this  Agreement,  shall  be  considered  an  agent  or  employee  of  Local 
Government and shall not be entitled to participate in any pension or other benefits that Local 
Government provides its employees. 

 

V. Notice to Parties 
 

A. Any notice given hereunder by either party to the other shall be  in writing and 
sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

B. Notice to County shall be sent to: 
Fort Bend County 
Attn: County Judge 
401 Jackson 
Richmond, Texas 77469 

C. Notice to Local Government: 
City of Rosenberg 
Attn: Mayor 
2110 4th Street 
P.O. Box 32 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 

D. Each  party may  change  the  address  for  notice  to  it  by  giving  notice  of  such 
change  in accordance with the provisions of this paragraph. 

 
 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2004 

Page 2 of 4



                                                                                                                            
  

 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 

 
VI. Miscellaneous Provisions 

 

A. This  Agreement  contains  the  entire  Agreement  between  the  parties  relating 
to  the  rights  herein  granted  and  the  obligations  herein  assumed.  Any  oral 
representations or modifications  concerning this  instrument  shall  be of  no force 
or effect except in a subsequent modification in writing signed by both parties. 

B. This Agreement  shall be governed by and  constructed  in accordance with  the 
laws of the State of Texas. 

C. No  assignment  of  this Agreement or of  any  right  accrued  hereunder  shall be 
made,  in whole or  in part, by either party without the prior written consent of 
the other party. Venue shall be in Fort Bend County, Texas. 

D. The  undersigned  officer  and/or  agents of  the  parties  hereto  are  the  properly 
authorized officials of the party presented and have the necessary authority to 
execute  this Agreement on behalf of the parties hereto and each party hereby 
certifies to the other that any necessary approvals have been duly passed and 
approved and are now  in full force and effect. 

 

FORT BEND COUNTY: 
 

Reviewed: 
 
 
                         
Robert Hebert, Fort Bend County Judge     Fire Marshal 
 
Date:             
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
                       
Laura Richard, Fort Bend County Clerk 
 
 
CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 
 
      Attest: 
Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor       
 
Date:                           

Linda Cernosek, City Secretary 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2004 

Page 3 of 4



Page 4 of 4 
 

 

 AUDITOR’S  CERTIFICATE  
 

I  hereby  certify  that  funds  are  available  from  current  revenues  legally  available  in  the  amount  of 
$__________________________  to accomplish and pay  the obligation of Fort Bend County under  this 
Interlocal Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             

Ed Sturdivant, Fort Bend County Auditor 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2004 

Page 4 of 4



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
July 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

11 
Resolution No. R-2009 – Reading Road Office Park Development 
Agreement Assignment and First Amendment 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2009, a Resolution authorizing the Assignment of the 
Development Agreement by and between the City and 16 Rose, Ltd., regarding the Reading Road Office 
Park, a subdivision of 8.928 acres, to Richwest Investors, LLC; and, authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, First Amendment to said Agreement. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[X] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Resolution No. R-2009 
2. 16 Rose, Ltd. Development Agreement Excerpt - Section 5.03(b) 
3. Reading Road Office Park Development Traffic Impact Analysis Excerpt – 04-05-10 
4. Resolution No. R-1214 – 09-21-10 
5. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 09-21-10 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   
 

 
 
Travis Tanner, AICP, 
Executive Director of 
Community Development 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[X] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl 
[X] City Engineer  
[X] Economic Development Director  
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On September 21, 2010, City Council passed Resolution No. R-1214 authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
Development Agreement with 16 Rose, Ltd., for the Reading Road Office Park.  The Resolution is attached for review.  
The subject property is located on the east side of Reading Road between FM 2218 and Town Center Boulevard.   
 
Among other things, the Agreement generally provided for the following: 

 The use of access easements instead of public streets for lots/reserves to front on 
 Fewer parking spaces than the number that would typically be required by City ordinance 
 Restrictions on land use and other standards above and beyond City ordinances 
 Based on a traffic study performed at the time (see attached study excerpt), a traffic signal is warranted at the 

intersection of Reading Road and Town Center Boulevard due to the intersection failing at peak traffic hours, 
particularly during the evening peak hour (level of service F).  The developer agreed to participate in one-half 
(1/2) of the cost of the signal per Section 5.03 (b) of the Agreement. 

 
It is important to note that the City’s portion of the signal cost is currently funded.  However, the developer has 
requested to defer payment of their portion of the signal cost until Phase II of the development is platted.  That is 
reflected in the attached proposed First Amendment to the Agreement.  Additionally, it is proposed that the City 
authorize the assignment of the Agreement with 16 Rose, Ltd., to Richwest Investors, LLC. 
 
Staff does not object to these changes based on the rate at which the property is developing and the impact of the 



specific development on the need for a signal.  Staff believes the signal can be deferred, but should be kept in the 
Agreement and in the FY2016 Capital Improvements Program (CIP) based on the traffic study and on the projected 
growth of the surrounding area.  Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2009. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2009 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE ASSIGNMENT OF THE 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND 16 ROSE, LTD., REGARDING THE 
READING ROAD OFFICE PARK, A SUBDIVISION OF 8.928 ACRES, 
TO RICHWEST INVESTORS, LLC; AND, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, FIRST AMENDMENT TO SAID AGREEMENT. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rosenberg hereby authorizes the 

Assignment of the Development Agreement (Assignment) by and between the City and 

16 Rose, Ltd., regarding the Reading Road Office Park, a subdivision of 8.928 acres, to 

Richwest Investors, LLC; and, authorizes the City Manager to execute First Amendment 

to said Agreement. 

 Section 2. A copy of said Assignment and First Amendment are attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Cynthia A. McConathy, MAYOR 
 
 



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2009 

Page 1 of 8



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2009 

Page 2 of 8



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2009 

Page 3 of 8



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2009 

Page 4 of 8



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2009 

Page 5 of 8



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2009 

Page 6 of 8



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2009 

Page 7 of 8



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2009 

Page 8 of 8



matters arising either prior to, or subsequent to, its actual period of ownership of the Tract, or a portion
thereof, acquired through foreclosure (or deed in lieu of foreclosure).

ARTICLE V
PROVISIONS FOR DEVELOPER

Section 5.01 Waiver of Actions Under Private Real Property Rights Preservation Act. The
Developer hereby waives its right, if any, to assert any causes of action against the City accruing under
the Private Real Property Rights Preservation Act, Chapter 2007, Texas Government Code (the Act), that
the City's execution or performance of this Agreement or any authorized amendment or supplements
thereto may constitute, either now or in the future, a "Taking" of Developer's, Developer's grantee's, or a
grantee's successor's "Private Real Property," as such terms are defined in the Act. Provided, however,
that this waiver does not apply to, and the Developer and Developer's grantees and successors do not
waive their rights under the Act to assert a claim under the Act for any action taken by the City beyond the
scope of this Agreement which otherwise may give rise to a cause of action under the Act.

Section 5.02 Developer's Right to Continue Development. The City and the Developer
hereby acknowledge and agree that, subject to Section 7.04 of this Agreement, the Developer may sell all
or a portion of the Tract to one or more Persons who shall be bound by this Agreement and perform the
obligations of Developer hereunder. If there is more than one Person acting as a Developer hereunder,
the acts or omissions of one Developer which result in that Developer's default shall not be deemed the
acts or omissions of any other Developer, and a performing Developer shall not be held liable for the
nonperformance of another Developer. In the case of nonperformance by one or more Developers, the
City may pursue all remedies against such nonperforming Developer as set forth in Section 6.05 hereof,
but shall not impede the planned or ongoing development activities nor pursue remedies against the
performing Developer.

Section 5.03 Covenants of Developer

(a) Lake Amenity. Developer agrees to construct the lake amenity as shown in the
Development Plan and maintain the lake amenity with sufficient water levels to make it
aesthetically attractive (and not for any other use, such as fishing or boating or any other
recreational purpose) in the reasonable opinion of the Developer.

(b) Traffic Signal Construction. Developer agrees to contribute to the City one-half of the
engineering and construction costs for the construction of a traffic signal (as required by the
City) at the intersection of Town Center Boulevard and Reading Road, Developer agrees to
pay the City said amount before the first certificate of occupancy is issued within the tract.
City shall construct the traffic signal within one hundred eighty (180) days of receiving said
payment.

ARTICLE VI
MATERIAL BREACH, NOTICE AND REMEDIES

Section 6.01 Material Breach of Agreement. It is the intention of the parties to this
Agreement that the Tract be developed in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and the
Development Plan.

(a) The parties acknowledge and agree that any major deviation from the Development Plan
and the concepts of development contained therein and any substantial deviation by Developer from the
material terms of this Agreement would frustrate the intent of this Agreement, and therefore, would be a
material breach of this Agreement. A material breach of this Agreement by Developer shall be deemed to
have occurred in any of the following instances:

Page 6

16 Rose -Office Park - City DevelopmenlAgreemenl cak 081710 CLEAN 10-04-11

janete
Rectangle



Traffic Impact Study 

Reading Road Office Park 
Development 

Rosenberg, Texas 

Submitted to: 
The City of Rosenberg 

Pro pared for: 
TTL Corp 

TBPt:.111RM REGlSTIlATION NO. F·~ 

Prepared by: 

PROGRBSSIVB 
CONSULTING 

9111 KatyFreewaY, Suite310 
Houston, Texas 77024 

Aprll5, 2010 
O\O~ L 0 ~d~ 

Q'3J\,ra:::>:!RI 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This study examined site traffic impacts of the proposed Reading Road Office Park 
development on the intersections of Reading Road and Town Center Boulevard, a 4-way 
stop control, and Reading Road and B F Terry (FM 22l8), a signalized intersection, 
Rosenberg, Texas. The study analyzed traffic impacts based on existing morning and 
evening peak period traffic conditions. The study also conducted a traffic signal warrant 
analysis at the intersection of Reading Road and Town Center Boulevard. 

KEy FINDINGS 

In conducting the analyses, the following findings and conclusions were made: 

48 The vehicular trip generation for the project was derived based on the trip generation 
rates from the ITE Trip Generation Manual, 7th Edition. lbe trip generation rates for 
Office Building (IrE Code 710) were used to estimate the number of inbound and 
outbound trips during the peak hours. 

• The project was estimated to generate 181 trips during the morning peak hour (159 
inbound and 22 outbound) and 174 trips during the PM peak hour (30 inbound and 
144 outbound trips). 

.. Based on the findings of this report, it can be concluded that the intersection of 
Reading Road and B F Terry (FM 2218), currently signalized intersection, will 
remain operating at acceptable level of service C for both the morning and evening 
peak hours after the proposed development is in place and the proposed roadway 
improvements on B F Terry Blvd (FM 2218) and Reading Road are done by the State 
Department of Transportation. 

• It is concluded that a traffic signal is warranted at the intersection of Reading Road 
and Town Center Blvd. (All-way stop control intersection) based on the existing 2010 
traffic volumes, No Build Scenario. 

'" It is also concluded that the intersection of Reading Road and Town Center Blvd. is 
expected to operate at levels of service D (30.3 sec/veb) and F (100.6 sec/veh) at 
2011 No Build Scenario for both the morning and evening peak hours respectively. 
Without the additional projected traffic of this development, the intersection is 
already experiencing a significant delay with Level of service F in the evening peak 
hour. The proposed development resulted to change the levels of service at this 
intersection from D (30.3 seclveh) to E (42.1 sec/veh) and from F (100.6 sec/veh) to 
F (118.5 seclvehl for both the morning and evening peak hours at the 2011 Build 
Scenario. 

Reading Road Office Park Development 
Rosenberg, Texas 

Traffic Impact Analysis 
Page i 

reneel
Highlight

reneel
Highlight



41 To mitigate the above described near capacity situation for the morning peak hour 
and the intersection fail situation for the evening peak hour at the intersection of 
Reading Road and Town Center Blvd., the installation of a traffic signal seems to 
improve the levels of service significantly. Our analysis revealed that the intersection 
significantly improved to levels of service B (17.5 sec/veh) and C (20.8 sec/veh) in 
the morning and evening peak hours respective1y. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Following are the recommendations to mitigate the additional traffic generated by the 
proposed office park development: 

1) The installation of a traffic signal is warranted at the intersection of Reading Rd and 
Town Center Blvd. based on the existing and no build out traffic conditions. 
Therefore, the City of Rosenberg shall consider installing a fully actuated traffic 
signal system at this intersection with the proposed project to mitigate the traffic 
situation at this intersection. 

2) It is recommended to install left turn lanes on the southbound Reading Rd at the 
proposed driveway locations # 1 and #2 with minimum tum lane storage of 150' at 
each location. 

3) It is also recommended to include a left turn lane internally on the driveway location 
#2 for the exiting traffic onto Reading Road. 

The following recommendations are presented for the design and the traffic control at the 
intersections of proposed site access drives with Reading Road: 

4) Project Driveway-1: Provide a 35-ft radius for the proposed driveway-I, the 
northernmost driveway, and install the Stop sign Rl-l per Texas Manual on Unifonn 
Traffic Control Device. TMUTCD. 

5) Project Drivi!Way-2: Provide a 35-ft radius for the proposed driveway-2, a full 
access middle driveway. and install the Stop sign Rl-l, per TMUTCD. Make sure 
that this driveway is properly aligned with the existing church driveway across 
Reading Road. The project civil designer must review the spacing of the Reading 
Road median noses at this driveway location to make sure that it meets the standard 
city requirements or the standard engineering practice which ever are more stringent 
to provide safe turning movements for all inbound and outbound traffic. 

6) Project Driveway-3: Provide a 35-ft radius for the proposed driveway-3, a right-in 
and right-out southernmost driveway. Install the Stop sign Rl-l with "ONE WAY 
arrow" sign R6-2 under per the Texas Manual on Unifonn Traffic Control Devices 
(TMUTCD). 

Reading Road Office Park Development 
Rosenberg, Texas 

Traffic Impact Analysis 
Page Ii 

reneel
Highlight

reneel
Highlight

reneel
Highlight





















































































reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
July 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

12 Resolution No. R-2010 - Employee Benefits Trust Declaration of Trust 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2010, a Resolution authorizing amendments to the 
Employee Benefits Trust Declaration of Trust, a Trust created for the purpose of providing City officers, 
employees, and qualified retirees and their dependents, with life, dental, disability, sickness, accident, and 
other health benefits, either directly or through the purchase of insurance, and to perform operations in 
furtherance thereof. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ]  Recurring 
[X]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[  ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Declaration of Trust - Redlined 

2. Resolution No. R-2010 

3. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 08-19-14 

4. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 08-20-13 

5. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 03-01-11 

6. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 09-02-08 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   
 
 
 
Lisa Olmeda 
Human Resources Director 

Reviewed by:   
 

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services   
[   ] City Attorney   
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal to 
City Council:   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Staff worked with Burke Sunday to establish the Employee Benefits Trust (Trust) for the purpose of providing 
City personnel and retirees with specific benefits. City Council approved the Declaration of Trust document on 
September 02, 2008, thus creating the Trust. The City Council amended the Declaration of Trust on March 01, 
2011, August 20, 2013, and August 19, 2014, to revise Trustee membership and incorporate updated legislative 
requirements.  
 
On Wednesday, July 15, 2015, the Employee Benefits Trust Committee met to discuss the necessary changes 
to the Declaration of Trust, Section I to reflect the change in Trustees, and also to Schedule “A” to reflect the new 
plan year of 2015-2016. Therefore, the Declaration of Trust document would need to be amended to reflect 
these changes.  Please note that a draft minute excerpt was not yet available at print time for this Agenda 
packet. 
 
Attached please find a redlined copy of the recommended changes to same for City Council consideration. Mr. 
Sunday will be available at the City Council meeting to answer any questions.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2010, authorizing the amendment to the Employee Benefits 
Trust Declaration of Trust, attached as Exhibit “A” to said Resolution.  
 



 
DECLARATION OF TRUST 

 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 

I. 
 

 The City of Rosenberg (“City”), as Settlor, designates the members of the Employee Benefits 

Committee (Lynn Moses, Lisa Wallingford, Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor, Amanda Bolf and Jimmie Pena, 

Councilmembers, Robert Gracia, City Manager,  Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of Administrative Services, 

and Lisa Olmeda, Human Resources Director), to be Trustees to hold in trust funds which are the property of 

the City, and all substitutions and additions to such funds, for the purpose of providing life, disability, dental, 

sick, accident, and other health benefits to the City’s employees, qualified retirees and their dependents. 

II. 
PURPOSE 

 This is a nonprofit trust created for the purpose of providing City officers, employees, and qualified 

retirees and their dependents with life, disability, dental, sickness, accident, and other health benefits either 

directly or through the purchase of insurance and to perform operations in furtherance thereof.   

III. 
DURATION 

 The Trust shall continue until terminated by operation of law, by majority vote of the Trustees, or by 

the City Council of the City.   

IV. 
TRUSTEES:  APPOINTMENT, COMPENSATION, OFFICERS, AND MEETINGS 

 APPOINTMENT.  The Trustees are appointed by the City of Rosenberg City Council and each 

Trustee shall serve at the will and pleasure of the City Council. 

 COMPENSATION.  The Trustees shall be reimbursed for all reasonable and necessary expenses 

incurred by them in the performance of their duties and will otherwise receive no compensation for their 

service as Trustees.  Any approved reimbursement(s) will be made by the City of Rosenberg. 

 OFFICERS.  The Trustees shall elect a Chairman, Vice-Chairman, and Secretary.  The Chairman 

shall preside at meetings of the Trustees and shall have all such other powers as are conferred herein or by 

majority vote of the Trustees.  The Vice-Chairman shall preside at meetings of the Trustees whenever the 

Chairman is absent.  The Secretary will oversee the preparation of meeting agendas, giving notice of 

meetings to the Trustees, and the minutes of the meetings to the Trustees. 



 2 

 MEETINGS.  A meeting of the Trustees may be called by the Chairman or on written request to the 

Chairman by two Trustees.  Trustees shall have at least three days written notice of any meeting.  For 

purposes of this section, electronic mail notice is written notice. 

V. 
RIGHTS, POWERS, AND DUTIES OF TRUSTEES; QUORUM AND VOTING 

 RIGHTS, POWERS, AND DUTIES.  In addition to all other powers and duties conferred on them by 

this Trust document and imposed or authorized by law, the Trustees shall have the following powers and 

duties: 

1. The Trustees shall carry out all of the duties necessary for the proper operation and 

administration of the Trust on behalf of the covered persons and shall have all the powers 

necessary and desirable for the effective administration of the affairs of the Trust. 

2. The Trustees have the general power to make and enter into all contracts and agreements 

necessary or convenient to carry out any of the powers granted by this Trust document or by 

law or to effectuate the purpose of the Trust.  All such contracts and agreements or any other 

legal documents herein authorized shall be approved by the Trustees and signed by the 

Chairman on behalf of the Trust.  The Trustees may also designate another Trustee to sign 

such documents. 

3. The Trustees shall use the Trust’s funds to accomplish the purpose of the Trust, as described 

in Paragraph II herein, and to operate and administer the Trust solely in the interest of the 

City’s officers, employees, qualified retirees and dependents thereof and for the exclusive 

purpose of providing benefits to the City defraying the reasonable expenses of administration 

of the Trust.  To this end, the Trustees may purchase life, disability, dental or accident and 

health insurance to provide coverage for participating City officers, employees, qualified 

retirees, and their dependents.  The Trustees may also adopt a health benefits plan that 

covers eligible City officers, employees, qualified retirees, and their dependents. 

4. The Trustees may accept contributions to the Trust funds from any source including 

contributions from covered persons receiving benefits from the Trust. 

5. The Trustees shall be authorized to contract with any qualified organization to perform any of 

the functions necessary for providing life, disability, sick, accident, dental and other health 

benefits, including but not limited to excess loss insurance, stop loss insurance, claims 

administration, and administrative services.  When required by law or desired by the 



 3 

Trustees, the Trustees may seek sealed competitive bids or sealed competitive proposals 

with respect to contracts required to carry out the operations of the Trust and to affect the 

purpose of the Trust. 

6. The Trustees shall use the City’s depository for the Trust’s funds.  The Trustees shall 

designate signatories for the Trust’s depository accounts. 

7. The Trustees shall use the City’s internal and external accounting procedures to arrange for 

proper accounting and reporting procedures for the Trust’s funds and shall also provide for an 

annual audit of the Trust’s financial affairs by a certified public accountant.  

8. The City of Rosenberg may purchase insurance for the Trustees and any other fiduciaries 

appointed by the Trustees and for the City of Rosenberg to cover liability or losses occurring 

by reason of the act or omission of any one or more of the Trustees or any other fiduciary 

appointed by them.  Any insurance purchased by the City of Rosenberg must give the insurer 

recourse against the Trustees or other fiduciaries concerned for breach of any fiduciary 

obligation or fiduciary duty owed to the Trust. 

9. The Trustees may retain legal counsel to represent the Trust and the Trustees in all legal 

proceedings as well as to advise the Trust and the Trustees on all matters pertaining to the 

operation and administration of the Trust. 

10. The Trustees have the authority to terminate the Trust at any time. 

11. Upon termination of the Trust, the Trustees shall provide for the payment of Trust obligations, 

debts, losses, and other liabilities and shall provide for the disposition of the remaining Trust 

funds in accordance with Paragraph IX herein.  

12. The Trustees may contract with the City for the management and operations of the Trust.  

 QUORUM AND VOTING.  A majority of the Trustees shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of 

business at any meeting of the Trustees and the vote of a majority of the Trustees present shall be required 

for approval of any action at such meeting.  The vote of such majority of the Trustees at such meeting shall 

constitute action of the Trustees as a group.   

VI. 
BENEFICIARY 

 The beneficiary of the Trust is the City.  

 

 



 4 

VII. 
TRUST FUNDS 

 The Trust funds consist of the funds described in Schedule A hereto as provided by the Settlor to 

institute this Trust, future contributions by the Settlor, beneficiary contributions, investment income, and any 

other money or property which shall come into the hands of the Trustees in connection with the administration 

of the Trust.  The Trustees may use the Trust’s funds as follows: 

 

1. to pay all expenses which the Trustees consider necessary in establishing the Trust and in 

administering the Trust  and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Trustees in the 

performance of their duties as defined to be those allowed under Section 222.002(c)(5)(A) 

[Texas Insurance Code] and or permitted by the State Comptroller of the State of Texas in its 

role as the administrator of this legislation;  

2. to pay premiums on any insurance policies allowed under Section 222.002(c)(5)(A) ]Texas 

Insurance Code] purchased by the Trust; 

3.  to make authorized investments; 

4. to pay claims under any health benefits plan adopted by the Trustees;  

VIII. 
LIABILITY OF TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS 

 The Trustees shall use ordinary care and reasonable diligence in the exercise of their powers and the 

performance of their duties hereunder; and they shall not be liable for any mistake of judgment or other action 

made, taken or omitted by them in good faith, nor for any action taken or omitted by any agent, employee or 

independent contractor selected with reasonable care; nor for loss incurred through investment of the Trust funds 

or failure to invest.  No Trustee shall be liable for any action taken or omitted by any other Trustee.  No Trustee 

shall be required to give a bond or other security to guarantee the faithful performance of his or her duties 

hereunder.   To the fullest extent permitted by law:  (a) the City of Rosenberg shall indemnify each Trustee 

who was, is, or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending, or completed action, suit, or 

proceeding (“Proceeding”), any appeal therein, or any inquiry or investigation preliminary thereto, by reason of 

the fact that the Trustee is or was a Trustee; (b) the City of Rosenberg shall pay or reimburse a Trustee for 

expenses incurred (i) in advance of the final disposition of a Proceeding to which such Trustee was, is or is 

threatened to be made a party, and (ii) in connection with such Trustee’s appearance as a witness or other 

participation in any Proceeding. 



 5 

 
IX. 

AMENDMENT, REVOCATION AND TERMINATION 

 This Declaration of Trust and the Trust created herein shall terminate when and if required by operation 

of law.  The Trustees shall have the power to amend, modify, terminate or revoke, in whole or in part, this 

Declaration of Trust and the Trust created herein by majority vote at a duly called meeting at which a quorum is 

present.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustees shall have no power to amend Paragraph II of this 

Declaration of Trust.  The Beneficiary of the Trust shall have the right to amend or terminate this Declaration of 

Trust. Its approval shall be a condition or requirement for an authorized amendment by the Trustees. 

 Upon termination of the Trust, the Trustees shall pay all obligations, debts, losses, and other liabilities 

of the Trust.  Thereafter, the Trustees shall first use the remaining trust funds to pay covered claims of 

persons covered under the City’s health benefits plan that may be in effect at the time of termination of the 

Trust and, then, either apply any remaining balance of the funds for the benefit of those covered persons in 

such manner as the Trustees determine shall best carry out to purposes of this Trust or pay such balance 

over to such covered persons on a per capita basis.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustees, upon 

termination of the Trust and payment of all Trust obligations may, by vote of a majority of the Trustees, 

transfer the remaining funds or any portion thereof to the City for the purposes provided in Paragraph II herein 

or trustees of any trust or trusts established for a substantially similar purpose to be applied for uses 

substantially similar to those set forth in Paragraph II herein. 

X. 
GOVERNING LAW 

 This Declaration of Trust and the Trust created herein shall be construed and governed by the laws of 

the State of Texas in force from time to time. 

XI. 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 Whenever the context so admits and such treatment is necessary to interpret this Declaration of Trust in 

accordance with its apparent intent, the use herein of the singular shall include the plural, and vice versa, and the 

use of the feminine, masculine, or neuter gender shall be deemed to include the other genders. 

 The captions or headings above the various Paragraphs of this Declaration of Trust have been included 

only to facilitate the location of the subjects covered by each Paragraph but shall not be used in construing this 

Declaration of Trust. 



 6 

 If any clause or provision of this Declaration of Trust proves to be or is adjudged invalid or void for any 

reason, such invalid or void clause, provision, or portion shall not affect the whole, but the balance of the 

provisions hereof shall remain operative and shall be carried into effect insofar as is legally possible. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have executed this amended Declaration of Trust on 

the dates of their respective acknowledgments below.  By joining in the execution of this Declaration of Trust, the 

Trustees signify acceptance of the Trust created hereunder, and covenant that the Trust will be executed with all 

due fidelity.  This Trust is effective as of the last date of signature below. 

      CITY OF ROSENBERG, SETTLOR 
 
 

______________________________________ 
      Vincent M. Morales, Jr.Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor 

 
      TRUSTEES: 
 
 

______________________________________ 
      Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MayorLynn Moses, Trustee 

 
      ______________________________________ 
      Lisa Wallingford, Amanda Bolf, Trustee 
 

      ______________________________________ 
      Jimmie Pena, Trustee 
 

      ______________________________________ 
      Robert Gracia, Trustee 
      
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Joyce Vasut, Trustee 
      
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Lisa Olmeda, Trustee 
 



 7 

THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on _______________, 2015, by Cynthia A. 
McConathyVincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor of the City of Rosenberg, on behalf of Settlor. 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
      My Commission Expires: __________________ 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on _______________, 2015, by Lynn Moses Vincent M. 
Morales, Jr., Trustee. 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
      My Commission Expires: __________________ 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on _____________, 2015, by Lisa WallingfordAmanda 
Bolf, Trustee. 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
      My Commission Expires: __________________ 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________________, 2015, by Jimmie Pena, Trustee. 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
      My Commission Expires: __________________ 
 



 8 

(SEAL) 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ____________, 2015, by Robert Gracia, Trustee. 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
      My Commission Expires: __________________ 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ____________, 2015, by Joyce Vasut, Trustee. 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
      My Commission Expires: __________________ 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ____________, 2015, by Lisa Olmeda, Trustee. 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
      My Commission Expires: __________________ 
 
(SEAL) 
 

 
 

Amended:  08-20-1407-15-15



 9 

SCHEDULE A 
 

The following is a list of the assets initially transferred by the City of Rosenberg, Settlor, to the Trust: 
 
City of Rosenberg’s first month (October 20145) contributions for Employee, Dependent, and Retiree 
Medical/Pharmacy Benefits, Dental Benefits, Life Insurance Benefits, and Long Term Disability Benefits. 
 
City of Rosenberg Employee, Dependents, and Retirees  first month (October 20145) of Plan Year’s payroll 
deductions or contributions for Medical/Pharmacy Benefits, Dental Benefits, Life Insurance Benefits, and Long 
Term Disability Insurance Benefits. 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2010 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO THE 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TRUST DECLARATION OF TRUST, A TRUST 
CREATED FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING CITY OFFICERS, 
EMPLOYEES, AND QUALIFIED RETIREES AND THEIR 
DEPENDENTS, WITH LIFE, DENTAL, DISABILITY, SICKNESS, 
ACCIDENT, AND OTHER HEALTH BENEFITS, EITHER DIRECTLY OR 
THROUGH THE PURCHASE OF INSURANCE, AND TO PERFORM 
OPERATIONS IN FURTHERANCE THEREOF.   

 
*  *  *  *  * 

  
WHEREAS, the City Council has approved the establishment of an Employee 

Benefit Trust (“Trust”) for purpose of providing City officers, employees, and qualified 
retirees and their dependents, with life, dental, disability, sickness, accident, and other 
health benefits either directly or through the purchase of insurance; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has granted its approval to amend the Trust; and,  
  

WHEREAS, the Trust will endeavor to establish necessary operations for the 
benefit of the Trust and the City officers, employees, qualified retirees, and their 
dependents; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 

Section 1.   The City Council hereby authorizes an amendment to the Employee 

Benefits Trust Declaration of Trust, designating all members of the Employee Benefits 

Committee to be Trustees, and authorizing the Trust to purchase various forms of 

insurance for the benefit of City officers, employees, qualified retirees, and their 

dependents. 

Section 2. A copy of such amended Employee Benefits Trust Declaration of 

Trust is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor 
 



 
DECLARATION OF TRUST 

 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 

I. 
 

 The City of Rosenberg (“City”), as Settlor, designates the members of the Employee Benefits 

Committee (Lynn Moses, Lisa Wallingford, and Jimmie Pena, Councilmembers, Robert Gracia, City Manager,  

Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of Administrative Services, and Lisa Olmeda, Human Resources Director), to 

be Trustees to hold in trust funds which are the property of the City, and all substitutions and additions to such 

funds, for the purpose of providing life, disability, dental, sick, accident, and other health benefits to the City’s 

employees, qualified retirees and their dependents. 

II. 
PURPOSE 

 This is a nonprofit trust created for the purpose of providing City officers, employees, and qualified 

retirees and their dependents with life, disability, dental, sickness, accident, and other health benefits either 

directly or through the purchase of insurance and to perform operations in furtherance thereof.   

III. 
DURATION 

 The Trust shall continue until terminated by operation of law, by majority vote of the Trustees, or by 

the City Council of the City.   

IV. 
TRUSTEES:  APPOINTMENT, COMPENSATION, OFFICERS, AND MEETINGS 

 APPOINTMENT.  The Trustees are appointed by the City of Rosenberg City Council and each 

Trustee shall serve at the will and pleasure of the City Council. 

 COMPENSATION.  The Trustees shall be reimbursed for all reasonable and necessary expenses 

incurred by them in the performance of their duties and will otherwise receive no compensation for their 

service as Trustees.  Any approved reimbursement(s) will be made by the City of Rosenberg. 

 OFFICERS.  The Trustees shall elect a Chairman, Vice-Chairman, and Secretary.  The Chairman 

shall preside at meetings of the Trustees and shall have all such other powers as are conferred herein or by 

majority vote of the Trustees.  The Vice-Chairman shall preside at meetings of the Trustees whenever the 

Chairman is absent.  The Secretary will oversee the preparation of meeting agendas, giving notice of 

meetings to the Trustees, and the minutes of the meetings to the Trustees. 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2010 

Page 1 of 9



 2 

 MEETINGS.  A meeting of the Trustees may be called by the Chairman or on written request to the 

Chairman by two Trustees.  Trustees shall have at least three days written notice of any meeting.  For 

purposes of this section, electronic mail notice is written notice. 

V. 
RIGHTS, POWERS, AND DUTIES OF TRUSTEES; QUORUM AND VOTING 

 RIGHTS, POWERS, AND DUTIES.  In addition to all other powers and duties conferred on them by 

this Trust document and imposed or authorized by law, the Trustees shall have the following powers and 

duties: 

1. The Trustees shall carry out all of the duties necessary for the proper operation and 

administration of the Trust on behalf of the covered persons and shall have all the powers 

necessary and desirable for the effective administration of the affairs of the Trust. 

2. The Trustees have the general power to make and enter into all contracts and agreements 

necessary or convenient to carry out any of the powers granted by this Trust document or by 

law or to effectuate the purpose of the Trust.  All such contracts and agreements or any other 

legal documents herein authorized shall be approved by the Trustees and signed by the 

Chairman on behalf of the Trust.  The Trustees may also designate another Trustee to sign 

such documents. 

3. The Trustees shall use the Trust’s funds to accomplish the purpose of the Trust, as described 

in Paragraph II herein, and to operate and administer the Trust solely in the interest of the 

City’s officers, employees, qualified retirees and dependents thereof and for the exclusive 

purpose of providing benefits to the City defraying the reasonable expenses of administration 

of the Trust.  To this end, the Trustees may purchase life, disability, dental or accident and 

health insurance to provide coverage for participating City officers, employees, qualified 

retirees, and their dependents.  The Trustees may also adopt a health benefits plan that 

covers eligible City officers, employees, qualified retirees, and their dependents. 

4. The Trustees may accept contributions to the Trust funds from any source including 

contributions from covered persons receiving benefits from the Trust. 

5. The Trustees shall be authorized to contract with any qualified organization to perform any of 

the functions necessary for providing life, disability, sick, accident, dental and other health 

benefits, including but not limited to excess loss insurance, stop loss insurance, claims 

administration, and administrative services.  When required by law or desired by the 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2010 

Page 2 of 9



 3 

Trustees, the Trustees may seek sealed competitive bids or sealed competitive proposals 

with respect to contracts required to carry out the operations of the Trust and to affect the 

purpose of the Trust. 

6. The Trustees shall use the City’s depository for the Trust’s funds.  The Trustees shall 

designate signatories for the Trust’s depository accounts. 

7. The Trustees shall use the City’s internal and external accounting procedures to arrange for 

proper accounting and reporting procedures for the Trust’s funds and shall also provide for an 

annual audit of the Trust’s financial affairs by a certified public accountant.  

8. The City of Rosenberg may purchase insurance for the Trustees and any other fiduciaries 

appointed by the Trustees and for the City of Rosenberg to cover liability or losses occurring 

by reason of the act or omission of any one or more of the Trustees or any other fiduciary 

appointed by them.  Any insurance purchased by the City of Rosenberg must give the insurer 

recourse against the Trustees or other fiduciaries concerned for breach of any fiduciary 

obligation or fiduciary duty owed to the Trust. 

9. The Trustees may retain legal counsel to represent the Trust and the Trustees in all legal 

proceedings as well as to advise the Trust and the Trustees on all matters pertaining to the 

operation and administration of the Trust. 

10. The Trustees have the authority to terminate the Trust at any time. 

11. Upon termination of the Trust, the Trustees shall provide for the payment of Trust obligations, 

debts, losses, and other liabilities and shall provide for the disposition of the remaining Trust 

funds in accordance with Paragraph IX herein.  

12. The Trustees may contract with the City for the management and operations of the Trust.  

 QUORUM AND VOTING.  A majority of the Trustees shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of 

business at any meeting of the Trustees and the vote of a majority of the Trustees present shall be required 

for approval of any action at such meeting.  The vote of such majority of the Trustees at such meeting shall 

constitute action of the Trustees as a group.   

VI. 
BENEFICIARY 

 The beneficiary of the Trust is the City.  

 

 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2010 

Page 3 of 9



 4 

VII. 
TRUST FUNDS 

 The Trust funds consist of the funds described in Schedule A hereto as provided by the Settlor to 

institute this Trust, future contributions by the Settlor, beneficiary contributions, investment income, and any 

other money or property which shall come into the hands of the Trustees in connection with the administration 

of the Trust.  The Trustees may use the Trust’s funds as follows: 

 

1. to pay all expenses which the Trustees consider necessary in establishing the Trust and in 

administering the Trust  and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Trustees in the 

performance of their duties as defined to be those allowed under Section 222.002(c)(5)(A) 

[Texas Insurance Code] and or permitted by the State Comptroller of the State of Texas in its 

role as the administrator of this legislation;  

2. to pay premiums on any insurance policies allowed under Section 222.002(c)(5)(A) ]Texas 

Insurance Code] purchased by the Trust; 

3.  to make authorized investments; 

4. to pay claims under any health benefits plan adopted by the Trustees;  

VIII. 
LIABILITY OF TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS 

 The Trustees shall use ordinary care and reasonable diligence in the exercise of their powers and the 

performance of their duties hereunder; and they shall not be liable for any mistake of judgment or other action 

made, taken or omitted by them in good faith, nor for any action taken or omitted by any agent, employee or 

independent contractor selected with reasonable care; nor for loss incurred through investment of the Trust funds 

or failure to invest.  No Trustee shall be liable for any action taken or omitted by any other Trustee.  No Trustee 

shall be required to give a bond or other security to guarantee the faithful performance of his or her duties 

hereunder.   To the fullest extent permitted by law:  (a) the City of Rosenberg shall indemnify each Trustee 

who was, is, or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending, or completed action, suit, or 

proceeding (“Proceeding”), any appeal therein, or any inquiry or investigation preliminary thereto, by reason of 

the fact that the Trustee is or was a Trustee; (b) the City of Rosenberg shall pay or reimburse a Trustee for 

expenses incurred (i) in advance of the final disposition of a Proceeding to which such Trustee was, is or is 

threatened to be made a party, and (ii) in connection with such Trustee’s appearance as a witness or other 

participation in any Proceeding. 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2010 

Page 4 of 9



 5 

 
IX. 

AMENDMENT, REVOCATION AND TERMINATION 

 This Declaration of Trust and the Trust created herein shall terminate when and if required by operation 

of law.  The Trustees shall have the power to amend, modify, terminate or revoke, in whole or in part, this 

Declaration of Trust and the Trust created herein by majority vote at a duly called meeting at which a quorum is 

present.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustees shall have no power to amend Paragraph II of this 

Declaration of Trust.  The Beneficiary of the Trust shall have the right to amend or terminate this Declaration of 

Trust. Its approval shall be a condition or requirement for an authorized amendment by the Trustees. 

 Upon termination of the Trust, the Trustees shall pay all obligations, debts, losses, and other liabilities 

of the Trust.  Thereafter, the Trustees shall first use the remaining trust funds to pay covered claims of 

persons covered under the City’s health benefits plan that may be in effect at the time of termination of the 

Trust and, then, either apply any remaining balance of the funds for the benefit of those covered persons in 

such manner as the Trustees determine shall best carry out to purposes of this Trust or pay such balance 

over to such covered persons on a per capita basis.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustees, upon 

termination of the Trust and payment of all Trust obligations may, by vote of a majority of the Trustees, 

transfer the remaining funds or any portion thereof to the City for the purposes provided in Paragraph II herein 

or trustees of any trust or trusts established for a substantially similar purpose to be applied for uses 

substantially similar to those set forth in Paragraph II herein. 

X. 
GOVERNING LAW 

 This Declaration of Trust and the Trust created herein shall be construed and governed by the laws of 

the State of Texas in force from time to time. 

XI. 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 Whenever the context so admits and such treatment is necessary to interpret this Declaration of Trust in 

accordance with its apparent intent, the use herein of the singular shall include the plural, and vice versa, and the 

use of the feminine, masculine, or neuter gender shall be deemed to include the other genders. 

 The captions or headings above the various Paragraphs of this Declaration of Trust have been included 

only to facilitate the location of the subjects covered by each Paragraph but shall not be used in construing this 

Declaration of Trust. 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2010 

Page 5 of 9



 6 

 If any clause or provision of this Declaration of Trust proves to be or is adjudged invalid or void for any 

reason, such invalid or void clause, provision, or portion shall not affect the whole, but the balance of the 

provisions hereof shall remain operative and shall be carried into effect insofar as is legally possible. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have executed this amended Declaration of Trust on 

the dates of their respective acknowledgments below.  By joining in the execution of this Declaration of Trust, the 

Trustees signify acceptance of the Trust created hereunder, and covenant that the Trust will be executed with all 

due fidelity.  This Trust is effective as of the last date of signature below. 

      CITY OF ROSENBERG, SETTLOR 
 
 

______________________________________ 
      Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor 

 
      TRUSTEES: 
 
 

______________________________________ 
      Lynn Moses, Trustee 

 
      ______________________________________ 
      Lisa Wallingford, Trustee 
 

      ______________________________________ 
      Jimmie Pena, Trustee 
 

      ______________________________________ 
      Robert Gracia, Trustee 
      
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Joyce Vasut, Trustee 
      
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Lisa Olmeda, Trustee 
 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2010 

Page 6 of 9



 7 

THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on _______________, 2015, by Cynthia A. McConathy, 
Mayor of the City of Rosenberg, on behalf of Settlor. 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
      My Commission Expires: __________________ 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on _______________, 2015, by Lynn Moses, Trustee. 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
      My Commission Expires: __________________ 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on _____________, 2015, by Lisa Wallingford, Trustee. 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
      My Commission Expires: __________________ 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________________, 2015, by Jimmie Pena, Trustee. 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
      My Commission Expires: __________________ 
 
(SEAL) 
 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2010 

Page 7 of 9



 8 

 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ____________, 2015, by Robert Gracia, Trustee. 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
      My Commission Expires: __________________ 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ____________, 2015, by Joyce Vasut, Trustee. 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
      My Commission Expires: __________________ 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ____________, 2015, by Lisa Olmeda, Trustee. 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
      My Commission Expires: __________________ 
 
(SEAL) 
 

 
 

Amended:  07-15-15

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2010 

Page 8 of 9



 9 

SCHEDULE A 
 

The following is a list of the assets initially transferred by the City of Rosenberg, Settlor, to the Trust: 
 
City of Rosenberg’s first month (October 2015) contributions for Employee, Dependent, and Retiree 
Medical/Pharmacy Benefits, Dental Benefits, Life Insurance Benefits, and Long Term Disability Benefits. 
 
City of Rosenberg Employee, Dependents, and Retirees  first month (October 2015) of Plan Year’s payroll 
deductions or contributions for Medical/Pharmacy Benefits, Dental Benefits, Life Insurance Benefits, and Long 
Term Disability Insurance Benefits. 
 
 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2010 

Page 9 of 9



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



PAGE 6 of 9 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 01, 2011 
 
 

 

stated they are working with Customer Service to get some data together and it should be in the 
98% savings range for the meter accuracy. 

 Councilor Segura asked what the warranty stage period is.  Chad Nobles stated the project is 
currently in the warranty stage.  They have a one year warranty on a lot of the devices.  Lamps 
and ballasts have a three or five year warranty.  A lot of things are in the warranty period and as 
things fail they will replace those while in the warranty stage.  After warranty stage we still have 
the guarantee associated with the energy savings and meter accuracy over the term of the 
contract.  Items completed six months ago are six months into the warranty period. 

 Councilor Suter asked when all our savings are counted up do you consider what we would have 
paid to replace a ballast.  Chad Nobles stated if it is a failure on their side from a warranty 
standpoint it does not count as savings.  Are the operational and maintenance savings associated 
with the “big picture” of the project?  Yes, there were some taken into account early on. For 
example, on the lighting side there is some savings in the first couple of years where if you would 
have not done anything you would have cost associated with those maintenance items.   

 Councilor Euton asked if we put the rebate towards the debt service or does this go into 
operations?  Jack Hamlett stated we would put these savings toward the debt service because we 
had to borrow those funds from the state.  That would help reduce our payments there.

 
3. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1292, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 

AMENDMENTS TO THE EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TRUST DECLARATION OF TRUST, A TRUST 
CREATED FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING CITY OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND QUALIFIED 
RETIREES AND THEIR DEPENDENTS, WITH LIFE, DENTAL, DISABILITY, SICKNESS, ACCIDENT, 
AND OTHER HEALTH BENEFITS, EITHER DIRECTLY OR THROUGH THE PURCHASE OF 
INSURANCE, AND TO PERFORM OPERATIONS IN FURTHERANCE THEREOF.  
Executive Summary:  Staff worked with Burke Sunday of City-County Benefit Services to establish the 
Employee Benefits Trust (Trust) for the purpose of providing City personnel and retirees with specific benefits. 
City Council approved the Declaration of Trust document on September 02, 2008, thus creating the Trust.
 
The Trustees will be meeting on Tuesday, March 01, 2011, to review certain recommended changes necessary 
to revise the Declaration of Trust.  Attached please find a copy of the recommended changes to same for your 
consideration. Mr. Sunday will be available at the City Council meeting to answer any questions.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1292, authorizing the amended Employee Benefits Trust 
Declaration of Trust.  
 
Key discussion points: 

 Lisa Olmeda, Personnel Director, read the Executive Summary regarding Resolution No. R-1292. 
 
Action:  Councilor Suter made a motion seconded by Councilor Salazar to approve Resolution No. R-1292, a 
Resolution authorizing amendments to the Employee Benefits Trust Declaration of Trust, a Trust created for the 
purpose of providing City officers, employees, and qualified retirees and their dependents, with life, dental, 
disability, sickness, accident, and other health benefits, either directly or through the purchase of insurance, and 
to perform operations in furtherance thereof.  The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

4. REVIEW AND DISCUSS AN INDEPENDENT ANALYSIS REPORT OF CONTACT DATA COLLECTED BY 
THE POLICE DEPARTMENT FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2010, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary:  In accordance with Senate Bill 1074, more commonly known as the “Texas Racial 
Profiling Data Collection Law”, all state law enforcement agencies are required to submit a report to their 
governing body – whether a county or municipality.  The report must contain totals on racial profiling data, as 
well as analysis of the prevalence of racial profiling.  The report has been provided to City Council under 
separate cover and will be available for public review in the City Secretary’s office. 
 
Dr. Alex del Carmen will be present at the meeting to discuss his independent assessment of the data collected. 
 
Key discussion points: 

 Robert Gracia, Police Chief, introduced Dr. Alex del Carmen. 
 Dr. Alex del Carmen presented the annual report regarding racial profiling.  The Police 

Department is in the top 1% for being proactive. 

reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
July 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

13 
Resolution No. R-2011 - Administrative Services Agreement for the 
Rosenberg Employee Benefits Trust  

 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2011, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, an Administrative Services Agreement, by and between the City and 
the Rosenberg Employee Benefits Trust, for the provision of certain administrative services for a term of 
one (1) year. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[X] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[    ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Resolution No. R-2011 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

Lisa Olmeda 
Human Resources Director 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other)  

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This Administrative Services Agreement (Agreement) will accommodate certain administrative services that may 
be performed by the City of Rosenberg on behalf of the Rosenberg Employee Benefits Trust (Trust).   
 
The Trust met on Wednesday, July 15, 2015. The Trust recommended is recommending City Council approval 
of the Agreement.  Please note that a draft minute excerpt from this meeting was not yet available at print time 
for this Agenda packet. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2011, authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
Administrative Services Agreement, attached to Resolution No. R-2011 as Exhibit “A”, for the provision of certain 
administrative services for a term of one (1) year, commencing October 01, 2015.  
  
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2011 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, AN ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT, BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND THE 
ROSENBERG EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TRUST, FOR PROVISION OF 
CERTAIN ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES FOR A TERM OF ONE (1) 
YEAR.  

 
*  *  *  *  * 

  
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute an 

Administrative Services Agreement (Agreement), by and between the City of 

Rosenberg, Texas, and the Rosenberg Employee Benefits Trust, for the provision of 

certain administrative services. A copy of such Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit 

“A” and made a part hereof for all purposes.  

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor 
 
 



ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND § 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT is made, entered into, and executed by and between the 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS (the "City"), a municipal corporation of the State of 
Texas, and the City of Rosenberg Employee Benefits Trust (the “Trust”). 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the City represents that it is capable of providing and qualified to 
provide certain services to the Trust and the City desires to perform the same; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Trust and the City in consideration of the mutual 
covenants and agreements herein contained, do mutually agree as follows: 
 

1. 
 

SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 
 
 The City agrees to perform certain services as outlined and defined in Exhibit “A”, 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes, hereinafter sometimes referred 
to as “Scope of Work.” 
 

2. 
 

CHARACTER AND EXTENT OF SERVICES 
 
 The City shall do all things necessary to render the services and perform the 
Scope of Work in a workmanlike manner.  It is expressly understood and agreed that 
the City is an Independent Contractor in the performance of the services agreed to 
herein.  It is further understood and agreed that the City shall not have the authority to 
obligate or bind the Trust, or make representations or commitments on behalf of the 
Trust or its officers or employees, without the express prior approval of the Trust.  
Because the Trust was created and exists for the benefit of the City, its employees and 
retirees, no compensation shall be paid the City for its services to the Trust. 
 

3. 
 

TERM 
 
 The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of one (1) year commencing on 
October 1, 2015, and ending on September 30, 2016. 
 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2011 

Page 1 of 5



 2 

4. 
 

NONDISCRIMINATION 
 

The City and the Trust shall not discriminate in any way against any person on 
the basis of race, sex, color, age, religion, sexual orientation, disability, ethnicity or 
national origin, in connection with or related to the performance of this Agreement. 
 

5. 
 

ADDRESSES, NOTICES AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 All notices and communications under this Agreement shall be mailed by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, to the Trust at the following address: 
 
   Rosenberg Employee Benefits Trust 
   2110 4th Street 
   Rosenberg, Texas  77471 
 
 All notices and communications under this Agreement shall be mailed by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, to the City at the following address: 
 
   City of Rosenberg 
   2110 4th Street 
   Rosenberg, Texas  77471 
   Attn: City Manager 
 

6. 
 

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
 
 The Trust and the City bind themselves and their successors and assigns to the 
other party of this Agreement and to the successors and assigns of such other party, in 
respect to all covenants of this Agreement.  Neither the Trust nor the City shall assign or 
transfer its interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other.  Nothing 
herein shall be construed as creating any personal liability on the part of any officer, 
employee or agent of the Trust or the City. 
 

7. 
 

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION 
 
 Subject to the requirements of the Texas Public Information Act and any other 
applicable law, the City shall not release any material or information developed in the 
performance of its services hereunder without the permission, oral or written, of the 
Trust. 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2011 

Page 2 of 5



 3 

8. 
 

MODIFICATIONS 
 
 This instrument, including Exhibit “A”, contains the entire Agreement between the 
parties relating to the rights herein granted and the obligations herein assumed.  Any 
oral or written representations or modifications concerning this instrument shall be of no 
force and effect excepting a subsequent modification in writing signed by both parties 
hereto. 
 

9. 
 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 
 If authorized in writing by the Trust, the City shall furnish, or obtain from others, 
Additional Services that may be required because of significant changes in the scope, 
extent or character of the Scope of Work, as defined in Exhibit “A”. 

 
10. 

 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
A. Venue for any legal actions arising out of this Agreement shall lie exclusively 

in the federal and state courts of Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
B. This Agreement is for sole benefit of the Trust and the City, and no provision 

of this Agreement shall be interpreted to grant or convey to any other person any 
benefits or rights. 
 

C. The City shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, 
vouchers, cancelled checks, and other records evidencing or relating to charges for 
services, or expenditures and disbursements charged to the Trust, and all documents 
and records that demonstrate performance under this Agreement, for a minimum period 
of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from the date of termination 
or completion of this Agreement. 
 

D. The Trust and the City agree that a waiver by the other party of any breach 
or violation of any term or condition of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a 
waiver of any other term or condition contained herein or a waiver of any subsequent 
breach or violation of the same or any other term or condition. The acceptance by the 
Trust of the performance of any work or services by the City shall not be deemed to be 
a waiver of any term or condition of this Agreement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Rosenberg, Texas, has lawfully caused this 
Agreement to be executed by its City Manager; and the Rosenberg Employee Benefits 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2011 

Page 3 of 5



 4 

Trust, acting by its duly authorized Chairman of the Board of Trustees, does now sign, 
execute, and deliver this instrument. 
 
 EXECUTED on the _________ day of _____________________ 2015. 
 
 
ATTEST:      CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary   Robert Gracia, City Manager 
 
 
 
 ROSENBERG EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

TRUST 
 
 
       By:       
 
       Name:       

Title: Chairman 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2011 

Page 4 of 5



 5 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 
 

A. Scope of Work:  The City shall perform all work necessary to administer a 
health benefits program for its employees, qualified retirees, and their dependents (the 
“Beneficiaries”), including, but not limited to, the following: 
 

1) Coordinate with the health, life, disability, and any other insurance 
providers selected by the Trust (the “Providers”) to provide benefits to the 
Beneficiaries; 

2) Create and maintain all necessary records of coverage, eligibility, and any 
other necessary data required by the Providers for the Beneficiaries; 

3) Pay all premiums to the Providers in a timely manner; 
4) Report to the Trust on the status of the work done under this Agreement at 

such times as the Trust may require but at least annually; 
5) Maintain a separate fund on the books of the City to receive premium 

contributions from the City, its employees, and qualified retirees, and from 
which to pay premiums to Providers. 

6) Such additional services as the parties may agree. 
 

B. Time for Performance:  The City shall perform all services under this 
Agreement in a timely fashion in accordance with the requirements of the contracts 
between the Trust and the Providers, and the customary standards of the field.  

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-2011 

Page 5 of 5



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

July 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

14 
Resolution No. R-2012 – BlueCross BlueShield of Texas Healthcare Plan 
and Life Insurance Funding 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2012, a Resolution authorizing funding for a Contract 
with BlueCross BlueShield of Texas, for healthcare benefits for City employees, qualified retirees, and 
their dependents; and, for life insurance for City employees for one (1) year; and, authorizing the 
Rosenberg Employee Benefits Trust to negotiate and execute a Contract for same.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[X] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

Insurance Fund (601) 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Resolution No. R-2012 
2. BlueCross BlueShield FY2015-2016 Proposal  - Medical/Rx Plans Renewal Rates 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

Lisa Olmeda 
Human Resources Director 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal to 
City Council: 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Staff has worked with Burke Sunday with Gallagher Benefits Services, Inc., to obtain quotes for the City’s health 
benefit and life insurance. BlueCross BlueShield of Texas submitted a Best and Final 12.04% increase from the 
current rates; however, accepting the proposal for $25,000 life insurance per employee would reduce the 
increase to 10.98% instead of 12.04%.   
 
Funding for the Contract and proposed rates for FY2016 at $ 2,383,293.60 and for life insurance for employees 
at $23,072, would provide one (1) year of coverage with BlueCross BlueShield of Texas, beginning October 01, 
2015, through September 30, 2016. The health insurance plan covers active employees and retirees under the 
age of 65.  The life insurance covers active employees. 
 
In FY2014-2015, the annual premium was $2,024,326.80. The annualized increase to current annual 
proposed premium rates will be $358,966.80. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the funding for the proposed Contract with BlueCross BlueShield of Texas for the 
PPO Plan. The Employee Benefits Trust met on July 15, 2015, and has recommended approval to City Council.  
Please note a draft minute excerpt for this meeting was not yet available at print time for this Agenda packet. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2012, authorizing funding for a Contract with BlueCross 
BlueShield of Texas, for healthcare benefits for City of Rosenberg employees, qualified retirees, and their 
dependents; and, for life insurance for City employees for one (1) year; and, authorizing the Rosenberg 
Employee Benefits Trust to negotiate and execute a Contract for same. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2012 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING FUNDING FOR A CONTRACT 
WITH BLUECROSS BLUESHIELD OF TEXAS FOR HEALTHCARE 
BENEFITS FOR CITY OF ROSENBERG EMPLOYEES, QUALIFIED 
RETIREES, AND THEIR DEPENDENTS; AND, FOR LIFE INSURANCE 
FOR CITY OF ROSENBERG EMPLOYEES FOR ONE (1) YEAR; AND, 
AUTHORIZING THE ROSENBERG EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TRUST TO 
NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE A CONTRACT FOR SAME. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 

WHEREAS, it is the goal of City Council to provide employees, qualified retirees, 
and their dependents with appropriate healthcare benefits; and, 

 
WHEREAS, it is the goal of City Council to provide employees with life insurance 

benefits; and, 
 
WHEREAS, City Council and staff have made every effort to provide 

comprehensive yet affordable healthcare to said employees, qualified retirees, and their 
dependents; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Rosenberg Employee Benefits Trust has reviewed, approved, 

and been authorized to execute a Contract with BlueCross BlueShield of Texas, on 
behalf of said employees, qualified retirees, and their dependents; now, therefore, 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

 Section 1.  City Council hereby approves and authorizes funding to facilitate a 

Contract with BlueCross BlueShield of Texas for the provision of healthcare benefits to 

City of Rosenberg employees, qualified retirees, and their dependents. 

 Section 2. City Council hereby approves and authorizes funding to facilitate a 

Contract with BlueCross BlueShield of Texas, for the provision of life insurance benefits 

to City of Rosenberg employees. 

Section 3. The Rosenberg Employee Benefits Trust is hereby authorized to 

negotiate and execute a Contract for said benefits. 

 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor 



Medical/Rx Plans Renewal Rates 
 

Medical/Rx Plan Rate History 

2006 Plan Year through 2015‐2016 Plan Year 

Core Plan  2006  2007  2008  2008‐2009  2009‐2010  2010‐2011  2011‐2012  2012‐2013  2013‐2014 

   Plan Year  Plan Year  Plan Year¹  Plan Year  Plan Year  Plan Year  Plan Year  Plan Year  Plan Year 

Employee Only  $686.00  $689.00  $414.00  $488.75  $535.94  $488.64  $461.28  $471.89  $462.45 

Employee + Spouse  $829.00  $849.00  $865.40  $1,025.51  $1,125.47  $1,026.15  $968.67  $990.95  $971.13 

Employee + Children  $799.00  $814.00  $782.97  $927.83  $1,066.00  $928.42  $876.40  $896.56  $878.63 

Employee + Family  $874.00  $899.00  $1,277.49  $1,513.84  $1,739.28  $1,514.79  $1,429.93  $1,462.82  $1,433.56 

Annual Variance (EE)     0.44%  ‐39.91%  18.06%  9.66%  ‐8.83%  ‐5.60%  2.30%  ‐2.00% 

Cumulative Variance     0.44%  ‐39.65%  ‐28.75%  ‐21.87%  ‐28.77%  ‐32.76%  ‐31.21%  ‐32.59% 

Core Plan  2014‐2015  2015‐2016                      

   Plan Year  Plan Year                      

Employee Only  $446.28  $504.48 

Employee + Spouse  $937.19  $1,059.41 

Employee + Children  $847.93  $958.51 

Employee + Family  $1,383.47  $1,563.89 

Annual Variance (EE)  ‐3.50%  13.04%                      

Cumulative Variance  ‐34.94%  ‐26.46%                      

¹ January ‐September (Short Plan Year to reposition plan to coincide with City's 
Fiscal Year) 

 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

July 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

15 
Resolution No. R-2013 – Assurant Employee Benefits Dental Plan 
Funding 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2013, a Resolution authorizing funding for a Contract 
with Assurant Employee Benefits for dental care benefits for City employees, qualified retirees, and their 
dependents; and, authorizing the Rosenberg Employee Benefits Trust to negotiate and execute a Contract 
for same. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[X] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

Insurance Fund (601) 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Resolution No. R-2013 
2. Assurant Employee Benefits PPO and DHMO FY15-16 Proposed Rates 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
 
Lisa Olmeda 
Human Resources Director 

Reviewed by:   
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other)  

Approved for Submittal to 
City Council: 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Staff worked with Burke Sunday of Gallagher Benefits Services, Inc., to obtain quotes for the City’s dental care 
benefits. Assurant Employee Benefits submitted a proposed 0.0% for the DHMO and 0.0% for the PPO Plan, 
due to the rate being guaranteed for two years for FY14-15 and FY15-16. The employees pay 100% of the 
premium.  
 
The annual renewal premium will be $85,791.00 for the PPO Plan and $12,877.20 for the DHMO Plan, totaling 
$98,668.20.  
 
The Employee Benefits Trust (Trust) met on Wednesday, July 15, 2015. At that time, the Trust considered 
approval of the Contract with Assurant Employee Benefits and recommended approval of same to City Council.  
Please note that a draft minute excerpt was not yet available for this item at print time for this Agenda packet. 
Funding for the Contract and proposed rates at $98,668.20 would provide for one (1) year coverage with 
Assurant Employee Benefits beginning October 01, 2015, through September 30, 2016.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-2013, a Resolution authorizing funding for a Contract with 
Assurant Employee Benefits for dental care benefits for City employees, qualified retirees, and their dependents; 
and, authorizing the Rosenberg Employee Benefits Trust to negotiate and execute a Contract for same. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2013 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING FUNDING FOR A CONTRACT 
WITH ASSURANT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FOR DENTAL CARE 
BENEFITS FOR CITY OF ROSENBERG EMPLOYEES, QUALIFIED 
RETIREES, AND THEIR DEPENDENTS; AND, AUTHORIZING THE 
ROSENBERG EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TRUST TO NEGOTIATE AND 
EXECUTE A CONTRACT FOR SAME. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 

WHEREAS, it is the goal of City Council to provide employees, qualified retirees, 
and their dependents with appropriate dental care benefits; and, 

 
WHEREAS, City Council and staff have made every effort to provide 

comprehensive yet affordable dental care to said employees, qualified retirees, and 
their dependents; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Rosenberg Employee Benefits Trust has reviewed, approved, 

and been authorized to execute a Contract with Assurant Employee Benefits, on behalf 
of said employees, qualified retirees, and their dependents; now, therefore, 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

 Section 1.  City Council hereby approves and authorizes funding to facilitate a 

Contract with Assurant Employee Benefits for the provision of dental care benefits to 

City of Rosenberg employees, qualified retirees, and their dependents. 

 Section 2. The Rosenberg Employee Benefits Trust is hereby authorized to 

negotiate and execute a Contract for said dental care benefits. 

 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor 



 

Dental Plan Renewal Rates  
(PPO/DHMO) 

 

Dental Plan Rate History 

2008 Plan Year through 2015‐2016 Plan Year 

Dental PPO  2008  2008‐2009  2009‐2010  2010‐2011  2011‐2012  2012‐2013  2013‐2014  2014‐2015  2015‐2016 

   Plan Year¹  Plan Year  Plan Year  Plan Year  Plan Year²  Plan Year  Plan Year  Plan Year  Plan Year 

Employee Only  $31.58  $33.16  $31.70  $32.98  $29.41  $29.41  $32.50  $26.75  $26.75 

Employee + Spouse  $67.82  $71.21  $68.09  $70.95  $58.81  $58.81  $64.99  $54.00  $54.00 

Employee + Children  $79.17  $83.13  $79.49  $82.70  $79.68  $79.68  $88.05  $75.00  $75.00 

Employee + Family  $115.41  $121.18  $115.68  $120.55  $109.08  $109.08  $120.53  $102.00  $102.00 

Annual Variance (EE)     5.00%  ‐4.40%  4.04%  ‐10.82%  0.00%  10.51%  ‐17.69%  0.00% 

Cumulative Variance     5.00%  0.38%  4.43%  ‐6.87%  ‐6.87%  2.91%  ‐15.29%  ‐15.29% 

Dental DHMO  2008  2008‐2009  2009‐2010  2010‐2011  2011‐2012  2012‐2013  2013‐2014  2014‐2015  2015‐2016 

   Plan Year¹  Plan Year  Plan Year  Plan Year  Plan Year  Plan Year  Plan Year  Plan Year  Plan Year 

Employee Only  $14.98  $15.73  $10.05  $10.41  $9.75  $9.75  $10.14  $10.00  $10.00 

Employee + Spouse  $32.18  $33.79  $21.58  $22.34  $20.19  $20.19  $21.00  $17.24  $17.24 

Employee + Children  $37.56  $39.44  $25.19  $26.08  $24.32  $24.32  $25.29  $23.22  $23.22 

Employee + Family  $54.76  $57.50  $36.72  $38.01  $32.45  $32.45  $33.75  $31.81  $31.81 

Annual Variance (EE)     5.01%  ‐36.11%  3.58%  ‐6.34%  0.00%  4.00%  ‐1.38%  0.00% 

Cumulative Variance     5.01%  ‐32.91%  ‐30.51%  ‐34.91%  ‐34.91%  ‐32.31%  ‐33.24%  ‐33.24% 

¹ January ‐September (Short Plan Year to reposition plan to coincide with City's 
Fiscal Year) 

² Annual Maximum benefits increased to $1,500

 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

July 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

16 Resolution No. R-2014 – Premium Contribution Rates for FY2016 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-2014, a Resolution approving employee and retiree 
premium contribution rates to the City’s health insurance plan.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[X] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

Insurance Fund (601) 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Resolution No. R-2014 
2. Health Insurance Comparison 
3. Resolution No. R-1688 – 08-20-13 
4. Resolution No. R-697 – 12-06-05 
5. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 08-20-13 
6. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 12-06-05 
7. Employee Benefits Committee Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 07-29-14 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Joyce Vasut 
Executive Director of 
Administrative Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Human Resources Director

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On August 20, 2013, the City Council approved Resolution No. R-1688, which adopted a Premium Incentive 
Program under the Affordable Care Act (ACA) health care reform law, effective January 01, 2014. In January 
2014, the Biometric Screening and Risk Assessment incentive was implemented. In Fiscal Year 2014-2015, the 
Tobacco Use incentive was implemented. In order to receive the premium incentive deductions, the employee 
must comply with the established incentive regulations. The Premium Incentive Program will continue in FY2016. 
 
As noted in the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Contract (previous Agenda item), the health insurance rates will 
increase 10.98% for FY2016.  During the July 15, 2015, Employee Benefits Committee/Employee Benefits Trust 
Meetings, the Committee Members reviewed the premium contribution rates. City staff submitted two (2) options.  
In Option 1, the percentage paid by the employee and the City remain the same at 10% by employee and 90% 
by the City for employee coverage and 48.5% paid by employee and 51.5% by City for dependent coverage.  In 
this option, the increase affects both the employee and the City.  In Option 2, the percentage paid by the 
employee and the City are adjusted to 100% paid by the City for employee coverage and 50% paid by employee 
and 50% by the City for dependent coverage.  This option was presented as requested by the Employee 
Benefits Committee/Employee Benefits Trust during last year’s meeting.  Based on this option, the City’s cost 
increases by $130,000.   
 
The Employee Benefits Committee/Employee Benefits Trust discussed the first two (2) options on the Health 
Insurance Comparison at the meeting on July 15, 2015, and is recommending City Council approval for Option 2 
which includes the City paying 100% of the employee’s insurance premium and the employees paying 50% of 
the dependent coverage while the City pays the remaining 50%.  Option 2 allows the City to continue the City’s 



target to reduce the City’s percentage paid for dependent coverage while providing 100% of the employee’s 
coverage.   
  
Following the Employee Benefits Committee/Employee Benefits Trust meetings, a Committee and Council 
member requested additional options to be presented.  Option 3 was suggested in which the City pays the 
amount of the 10.98% increase for both the employee and the dependent coverage.  This option is more 
economical for the City but it contradicts the City target to reduce the City’s contribution for dependent coverage. 
 
Option 4 was also prepared as a more economical option for the City while remaining on target to increase the 
City’s contribution for employee coverage and to decrease the City’s contribution for dependent coverage.  In 
Option 4, the percentage paid by the employee and the City are adjusted to 5% paid by the employee and 95% 
paid by the City for employee coverage and 50% paid by employee and 50% by the City for dependent 
coverage.   
 
On December 06, 2005, the City Council approved Resolution No. R-697, amending the policy on health 
insurance premium payments for its retirees based on a sliding scale for the years of service to the City of 
Rosenberg, effective January 01, 2006. This policy continues to govern retiree contribution rates for healthcare 
premiums. 
 
The Employee Benefits Committee/Employee Benefits Trust recommends approving employee and tenured 
retiree premium contribution rates to the City’s health insurance plan as Option 2, in which the percentage paid 
by the employee and the City are adjusted to 100% paid by City for employee coverage and 50% paid by 
employee and 50% by the City for dependent coverage. The percentages will be inserted in Resolution No. 2014 
as directed by the City Council. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2014 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, APPROVING EMPLOYEE AND RETIREE 
PREMIUM CONTRIBUTION RATES TO THE CITY’S HEALTH 
INSURANCE PLAN. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 

WHEREAS, it is the goal of City Council to provide employees, qualified retirees, 
and their dependents with appropriate healthcare benefits; and, 

 
WHEREAS, City Council and staff have made every effort to provide 

comprehensive yet affordable healthcare to said employees, qualified retirees, and their 
dependents; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Rosenberg Employee Benefits Trust has reviewed and 

approved, the established premium contribution rate; now, therefore, 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

 
 Section 1.  City Council hereby approves employee and retiree premium 

contribution rates to the City’s health insurance plan.  

Section 2. The employee and retiree premium contribution rates for coverage 

to the City’s health insurance plan are hereby established at ___%.  

 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 

 

 

              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Cynthia A. McConathy, Mayor 



Employee City Employee City Employee City Employee City Employee City

Employee/Retiree Only 94.63$     351.65$  99.53$       395.75$         50.00$        445.28$         $94.63 $400.65 74.76$    420.52$        
21.2% 78.8% 20.1% 79.9% 10.1% 89.9% 19.1% 80.9% 15.1% 84.9%

Spouse 238.09$   252.82$  264.23$     280.58$         272.41$      272.41$         $238.09 $306.72 272.41$  272.41$        
48.5% 51.5% 48.5% 51.5% 50.0% 50.0% 43.7% 56.3% 50.0% 50.0%

Employee and Spouse 332.72$   604.47$  363.76$     676.33$         322.41$      717.69$         $332.72 $707.37 347.17$  692.92$        

Children 194.80$   206.85$  216.19$     229.56$         222.88$      222.88$         $194.80 $250.95 222.88$  222.88$        
48.5% 51.5% 48.5% 51.5% 50.0% 50.0% 43.7% 56.3% 50.0% 50.0%

Employee and Children 289.43$   558.50$  315.72$     625.31$         272.88$      668.16$         $289.43 $651.60 297.64$  643.39$        

Family 454.54$   482.65$  504.45$     535.65$         520.05$      520.05$         $454.54 $585.56 520.05$  520.05$        
48.5% 51.5% 48.5% 51.5% 50.0% 50.0% 43.7% 56.3% 50.0% 50.0%

Employee and Familty 549.17$   834.30$  603.98$     931.40$         570.05$      965.33$         $549.17 $986.21 594.81$  940.57$        

Employee City Employee City Employee City Employee City Employee City

Employee/Retiree Only 69.63$     376.65$  74.53$       420.75$         25.00$        470.28$         $69.63 $425.65 49.76$    445.52$        
15.6% 84.4% 15.0% 85.0% 5.0% 95.0% 14.1% 85.9% 10.0% 90.0%

Spouse 238.09$   252.82$  264.23$     280.58$         272.41$      272.41$         $238.09 $306.72 272.41$  272.41$        
48.5% 51.5% 48.5% 51.5% 50.0% 50.0% 43.7% 56.3% 50.0% 50.0%

Employee and Spouse 307.72$   629.47$  338.76$     701.33$         297.41$      742.69$         $307.72 $732.37 322.17$  717.92$        

Children 194.80$   206.85$  216.19$     229.56$         222.88$      222.88$         $194.80 $250.95 222.88$  222.88$        
48.5% 51.5% 48.5% 51.5% 50.0% 50.0% 43.7% 56.3% 50.0% 50.0%

Employee and Children 264.43$   583.50$  290.72$     650.31$         247.88$      693.16$         $264.43 $676.60 272.64$  668.39$        

Family 454.54$   482.65$  504.45$     535.65$         520.05$      520.05$         $454.54 $585.56 520.04$  520.05$        
48.5% 51.5% 48.5% 51.5% 50.0% 50.0% 43.7% 56.3% 50.0% 50.0%

Employee and Familty 524.17$   859.30$  578.98$     956.40$         545.05$      990.33$         $524.17 $1,011.21 569.80$  965.57$        

  
Employee City Employee City Employee City Employee City Employee City

Employee/Retiree Only 44.63$     401.65$  49.53$       445.75$         -$            495.28$         $44.63 $450.65 24.76$    470.52$        
10.0% 90.0% 10.0% 90.0% 0.0% 100.0% 9.0% 91.0% 5.0% 95.0%

Spouse 238.09$   252.82$  264.23$     280.58$         272.41$      272.41$         $238.09 $306.72 272.41$  272.41$        
48.5% 51.5% 48.5% 51.5% 50.0% 50.0% 43.7% 56.3% 50.0% 50.0%

Employee and Spouse 282.72$   654.47$  313.76$     726.33$         272.41$      767.69$         $282.72 $757.37 297.17$  742.92$        

Children 194.80$   206.85$  216.19$     229.56$         222.88$      222.88$         $194.80 $250.95 222.88$  222.88$        
48.5% 51.5% 48.5% 51.5% 50.0% 50.0% 43.7% 56.3% 50.0% 50.0%

Employee and Children 239.43$   608.50$  265.72$     675.31$         222.88$      718.16$         $239.43 $701.60 247.64$  693.39$        

Family 454.54$   482.65$  504.45$     535.65$         520.05$      520.05$         $454.54 $585.56 520.05$  520.05$        
48.5% 51.5% 48.5% 51.5% 50.0% 50.0% 43.7% 56.3% 50.0% 50.0%

Employee and Familty 499.17$   884.30$  553.98$     981.40$         520.05$      1,015.33$      $499.17 $1,036.21 544.81$  990.57$        

City of Rosenberg
Health Insurance Comparison

Current Plan FY 2015 vs Proposed Options FY 2016

With Both Incentives With Both Incentives With Both Incentives
      

With 1 Incentive
      

Without Incentives
  

Option # 1 Option # 2
Proposed Plan - FY 2016

With 1 Incentive

    

With 1 Incentive
  

Without Incentives Without Incentives

Current Plan - FY 2015 Proposed Plan - FY 2016 Proposed Plan - FY 2016
Option # 4

Without Incentives

With Both Incentives

Proposed Plan - FY 2016
Option # 3

Without Incentives
  

With 1 Incentive

  

  

With 1 Incentive
  

With Both Incentives



 

Employee City Employee City Employee City Employee City
 Monthly Annual Monthly Annual Monthly Annual Monthly Annual

# Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease)

Employee/Retiree 133 4.90$         70,383.60$    (44.63)$       149,430.29$   $0.00 78,200.81$   (19.86)$   109,906.94$ 

Employee and Spouse 31 31.04$       26,731.36$    (10.31)$       42,115.74$     $0.00 38,278.56$   14.45$    32,903.53$   
 

Employee and Children 35 26.29$       28,060.83$    (16.55)$       46,054.37$     $0.00 39,101.27$   8.21$      35,653.49$   
 
Employee and Family 44 54.81$       51,268.09$    20.88$        69,181.28$     $0.00 $80,205.92 45.65$    56,105.89$   

 
Annual Cost to City 176,443.88$  306,781.67$  235,786.55$ 234,569.85$ 

Increase in Cost over Option 1 130,337.79$ 59,342.67$  58,125.97$  

Monthly Increase to Employee and Total Annual Cost to City+A35

Option # 1 Option # 2 Option # 3 Option # 4







ashleys
Text Box



ashleys
Rectangle



ashleys
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



D
R
A
FT

 
Page 3 of 4 * EMPLOYEE BENEFITS COMMITTEE MEETING * JULY 29, 2014 

• --DHMO Benefits co-pay schedule comparable 
• --Two (2) Year rate cap on DHMO 
• Recommendation – Accept the Best Offer from Assurant Employee Benefits (Dental Plans) 
• --Rationale – best value proposition 
• --Demonstrates “larger” number of PPO network providers in Fort Bend County 
• --Opportunity to reduce cost to employees who participate at 100% of the total cost 
• Recommendation – Accept the Best Offer from Assurant Employee Benefits 

(Dental DHMO/PPO). 
Dental DHMO:  

Employee (42) $10.00 

Employee + Spouse (11) $17.24 

Employee + Children (9) $23.22 

Employee + Family (8) $31.81 

Total Monthly $1,073.10 

Total Yearly $12,877.20 

Variance to Current -7.05% 

Second Year Rate Offer/Cap 2 year 

  

Dental PPO:  

Employee (59) $26.75 

Employee + Spouse (23) $54.00 

Employee + Children (21) $75.00 

Employee + Family (27) $102.00 

Total Monthly $7,149.25 

Total Yearly $85,791.00 

Variance to Current -16.05% 

  

In Network/Out of Network:  

Annual Deductible (I) $50.00 

Annual Deductible (F) $150.00 

Preventative 100% 

Basic 80% 

Major 50% 

Annual Maximum (I) $1,500 

Orthodontia (less than 19) 50% 

Orthodontia Lifetime $1,500. 

 
Action:  Councilor Bolf made a motion, seconded by Councilor Pena to accept the best and final 
proposal from Blue Cross/Blue Shield proposal for the health benefits (core) and the best and final 
proposal from Assurant Employee Benefits for the DHMO and PPO dental plans for the City 
employees/active retirees for the 2014-2015 Plan Year. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

3. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RECOMMENDATION FOR HEALTH INSURANCE RATES 
FOR FY2014-2015. 
Executive Summary:  This item provides the Committee the opportunity to discuss recommendations 
for Health Insurance rates for FY14-15. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Joyce Vasut explained that the City pays 90% of the employee’s health insurance and the 
employee pays 10%.  If the City keeps these rates, this will be about a 2% savings for everyone.  
Currently, there are 131 employees taking the medical insurance and 26 taking employee-
spouse; 36 taking Employee-Children, and 40 taking Employee-Family. 

• If the employee uses in-network physicians the deductible is $1,000 (Individual); $2,000 (Family 
deductible) per year; out of network, the deductible is $2,000 (Individual); $4,000 (Family 
deductible). 

• The retirees have a pre-65 retiree health option and the over-65 retiree health option. 

• Burke Sunday explained how this affects the GASB liability and the debt the City was in when 
the City was self-funded some years back.  He also explained that some cities pay 100% of the 

ashleys
Rectangle



D
R
A
FT

 
Page 4 of 4 * EMPLOYEE BENEFITS COMMITTEE MEETING * JULY 29, 2014 

employee cost and some that pay the base plan. 

• Councilor Bolf stated she would like to see all of the employee’s medical cost paid by the City. 

• Burke Sunday stated he would bring those figures to the Employee Benefits Trust meeting on 
August 19, 2014 and they could decide at that point which direction they wanted to proceed. 

 
Action:  No action was taken. 
 

4. REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE PREMIUM INCENTIVE PROGRAM, AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary:  This item provides the Committee the opportunity to discuss the Premium 
Incentive Program. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Lisa Olmeda and Burke Sunday stated this is the second year of the Biometric Health Screening 
program which is part of the incentive program.  This second year also provides for non-tobacco 
incentive.  Next year the City will add another incentive for various health issues and for people 
to become more proactive with their health. 

• Lisa Olmeda advised the Employee Trust Committee will be meeting on August 19, 2014 at 6:00 
p.m. prior to the City Council Meeting. 

 
Action:  No action was taken. 
 

3. ADJOURNMENT. 
Action:  There being no further business, Mayor Morales adjourned the Employee Benefits Meeting at 
6:15 p.m. 

 
     ***DRAFT*** 

Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary 
City of Rosenberg 

ashleys
Rectangle



 

 
 

ITEM 17 
 

Hold Executive Session to deliberate the 
potential purchase, exchange, lease, or value 
of real property pursuant to Section 551.072 
of the Texas Government Code.  



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 18 
 

Adjourn Executive Session, reconvene into 
Regular Session, and take action as necessary 
as a result of Executive Session. 



 

 
 
 

 
ITEM 19 

 
Announcements. 

 



 
 
 
 

 
ITEM 20 

 
Adjournment. 

 


	Regular City Council Meeting Agenda - 07-21-15
	-- Presentation of Award to City of Rosenberg for Achieving Public Protection Classification Rating of ISO Class 2
	-- Presentation of the Willie D. McQueen, Jr., Employee of the Quarter Award
	-- Presentation of Certificates of Achievement to 2015 Pitch, Hit and Run Skills Competition Winners
	-- Presentation of Certificates of Appreciation to 2015 Pitch, Hit, and Run Skills Competition Volunteers
	-- Presentation of Certificate of Recognition to Rosenberg Xtreme Girls Softball Team for Finishing 2nd Place in State Championship
	-- General Comments from the Audience
	-- Comments from the Audience for Regular and Consent Agenda Items
	1 - Review of Consent Agenda
	A - Minutes
	Special City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes - 06-30-15
	Regular City Council Meeting Minutes - 07-07-15

	B - Ordinance No. 2015-21 - No Parking on Ward Street
	Ordinance No. 2015-21
	Location Map
	Ordinance No. 2013-11 - 02-19-13
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 02-19-13

	C - Ordinance No. 2015-22 - MUD No. 152 Voluntary Annexation
	Ordinance No. 2015-22
	Resolution No. R-1991 - 07-07-15
	Vicinity Map
	Charter Excerpt - Part I, The Charter, Article I, Section 1.03(c) 
	City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 07-07-15

	D - Ordinance No. 2015-23 - MUD No. 152 Disannexation
	Ordinance No. 2015-23

	2 - Proposed Eagle Scout Project for Brazos Park - Edible Arbor Trail
	Presentation - Edible Arbor Trail for Brazos Park
	Parks and Recreation Board Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 06-25-15

	3 - Appointments to City of Rosenberg Boards, Committees and Commissions
	Advertisement - City of Rosenberg Calling for Volunteers - May 31, June 7, and June 14, 2015 
	List of Current Committee Members and Applicants - 07-10-15

	4 - Resolution No. R-2003 - Designating West Fort Bend Management District Director
	Resolution No. R-2003
	Bronsell Correspondence - 06-29-15

	5 - FY2016 Budget Presentation and Discussion
	6 - Resolution No. R-2005 - Sanitary Sewer Pipe Bursting Project Engineering Services Contract
	Resolution No. R-2005
	Project Location Map - Phase II
	Wastewater Treatment Plant 1-A - Service Area Map
	Wastewater Treatment Plant 1-A Collection Line Rehab Cost Estimate
	Resolution No. R-1997 - 07-07-15
	City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 07-07-15
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 01-28-14

	7 - Resolution No. R-2006 - Lift Station No. 2 Replacement Engineering Services Proposal
	Resolution No. R-2006
	Project Location Map

	8 - Resolution No. R-2007 - Fort Bend County Cooperation Agreement
	Resolution No. R-2007
	Kindell Correspondence - 07-08-15
	Cooperation Agreement - 06-14-94
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 06-07-94

	9 - Resolution No. R-2008 - Authorizing Disannexation Survey for Spacek Tracts
	Resolution No. R-2008
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 03-24-15

	10 - Resolution No. R-2004 - Interlocal Agreement for Fire Code and Investigations
	Resolution No. R-2004

	11 - Resolution No. R-2009 - Reading Road Office Park Agreement Assignment and First Amendment
	Resolution No. R-2009
	16 Rose, Ltd. Development Agreement Excerpt - Section 5.03(b)
	Reading Road Office Park Development Traffic Impact Analysis Excerpt - 04-05-10
	Resolution No. R-1214 - 09-21-10
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 09-21-10

	12 - Resolution No. R-2010 - Employee Benefits Trust Declaration of Trust
	Declaration of Trust - Redlined
	Resolution No. R-2010
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 08-19-14
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 08-20-13
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 03-01-11
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 09-02-08

	13 - Resolution No. R-2011 - Administrative Services Agreement for the Rosenberg Employee Benefits Trust
	Resolution No. R-2011

	14 - Resolution No. R-2012 - BlueCross BlueShield of Texas Healthcare Plan and Life Insurance Funding
	Resolution No. R-2012
	BlueCross BlueShield FY2015-2016 Proposal - Medical/Rx Plans Renewal Rates

	15 - Resolution No. R-2013 - Assurant Employee Benefits Dental Plan Funding
	Resolution No. R-2013
	Assurant Employee Benefits PPO and DHMO FY15-16 Proposed Rates

	16 - Resolution No. R-2014 - Premium Contribution Rates for FY2016
	Resolution No. R-2014
	Health Insurance Comparison
	Resolution No. R-1688 - 08-20-13
	Resolution No. R-697 - 12-06-05
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 08-20-13
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 12-06-05
	Employee Benefits Committee Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 07-29-14

	17 - Hold Executive Session
	18 - Adjourn Executive Session
	19 - Announcements
	20 - Adjournment



